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AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL
October 28, 2019
6:00 PM

ROLL CALL

READING OF MINUTES

REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR & HEADS OF

DEPARTMENTS AND INTERESTED PARTIES AND CITY

CLERK’S NOTES

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED FROM CITY CONTROLLER DATED OCTOBER 9,
2019 IN REFERENCE TO REVIEW OF GAS CARD DISCREPANCIES.

Correspondence from City Controller - Gas Card Discrepancies
10-9-19.pdf

CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED FROM CITY CONTROLLER DATED OCTOBER 9,
2019 REGARDING OVERTIME FIGURES FOR ALL CITY DEPARTMENTS.

Correspondence from City Controller - Overtime Figures
10-9-19.pdf

TAX ASSESSOR’S RESULTS REPORT FOR HEARING DATE HELD OCTOBER 16,
2019.

Tax Assessor's Results Report for 10-16-19.pdf

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE
SCRANTON SEWER AUTHORITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018
PREPARED BY KOHANSKI COMPANY, PC.

Scranton Sewer Authority Financial Statements 3-31-18.pdf


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/458750/Correspondence_from_City_Controller_-_Gas_Card_Discrepancies_10-9-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/458750/Correspondence_from_City_Controller_-_Gas_Card_Discrepancies_10-9-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/458751/Correspondence_from_City_Controller_-_Overtime_Figures_10-9-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/458751/Correspondence_from_City_Controller_-_Overtime_Figures_10-9-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/458739/Tax_Assessor_s_Results_Report_for_10-16-19.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/458517/Scranton_Sewer_Authority_Financial_Statements_3-31-18.pdf

5.

5.

5.

CITIZENS PARTICIPATION

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS,
APPOINTMENT AND/OR RE-APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS &
COMMISSIONS MOTIONS & REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

MOTIONS

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - RATIFYING AND APPROVING OF
THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE
CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF LACKAWANNA COLLEGE, TO THE
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ACTING THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH
FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT, PURSUANT
TO THE PA RACE HORSE DEVELOPMENT AND GAMING ACT IN THE AMOUNT
OF $202,599.66 FOR THE PROJECT TO BE KNOWN AS “LACKAWANNA
COLLEGE - MOBILE E-SPORTS ARENA SPACE” LOCATED 501 VINE STREET,
SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON, PA, TO
ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE AND ENTER INTO A
LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND COMMITMENT LETTER WITH
THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TO ACCEPT AND UTILIZE THE
GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,599.66 AWARDED BY THE COMMONWEALTH
OF PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

Resolution-2019 LSA Grant Lackawanna College.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - RATIFYING AND APPROVING OF
THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE
CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF GARDEN OF CEDAR, TO THE
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ACTING THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH
FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT, PURSUANT
TO THE PA RACE HORSE DEVELOPMENT AND GAMING ACT IN THE AMOUNT
OF $100,000.00 FOR THE PROJECT TO BE KNOWN AS “GARDEN OF CEDAR
- GROWING COMMUNITY, JOBS, AND FOOD PARK PROJECT” LOCATED AT
715 CEDAR AVENUE, SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA AND AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR AND OTHER APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF
SCRANTON, PA, TO ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE
AND ENTER INTO A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/456882/Resolution-2019_LSA_Grant_Lackawanna_College.pdf

5.

.E

COMMITMENT LETTER WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TO
ACCEPT AND UTILIZE THE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000.00
AWARDED BY THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

Resolution-2019 LSA Grant Garden of Cedar.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - RATIFYING AND APPROVING OF
THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE
CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF THE SCRANTON CULTURAL CENTER TO
THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ACTING THROUGH THE
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT
GRANT, PURSUANT TO THE PA RACE HORSE DEVELOPMENT AND GAMING ACT
IN THE AMOUNT OF $140,000.00 FOR THE PROJECT TO BE KNOWN AS
“SCRANTON CULTURAL CENTER - ELEVATOR REPLACEMENT PROJECT”
LOCATED AT 420 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, AND AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR AND OTHER APPROPRAITE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF
SCRANTON, PA, TO ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE
AND ENTER INTO A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND
COMMITMENT LETTER WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TO
ACCEPT AND UTILIZE THE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $140,000.00
AWARDED BY THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

Resolution-2019 LSA Grant Scranton Cultural Center.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - RATIFYING AND APPROVING THE
EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE CITY
OF SCRANTON POLICE DEPARTMENT TO THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF
COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (DCED) FOR A LOCAL SHARE
ACCOUNT GRANT (GAMING FUNDS) MONROE COUNTY IN THE AMOUNT OF
$38,740.00 TO PURCHASE AND INSTALL SECURITY CAMERAS AT EACH OF
THE FOUR (4) CITY PARKS: CONNORS PARK, CONNELL PARK, TRIPP
PARK, AND FELLOWS PARK, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL,
AND DISBURSE THE GRANT FUNDS FOR THE CITY OF SCRANTON POLICE
DEPARTMENT TO PURCHASE AND INSTALL SECURITY CAMERAS AT EACH OF
THE FOUR (4) CITY PARKS.

Resolution-2019 Security Cameras for Four City Parks.pdf


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/456898/Resolution-2019_LSA_Grant_Garden_of_Cedar.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/456901/Resolution-2019_LSA_Grant_Scranton_Cultural_Center.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/456905/Resolution-2019_Security_Cameras_for_Four_City_Parks.pdf
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FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - RATIFYING AND APPROVING THE
EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE CITY
OF SCRANTON TO THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AND
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (DCED) FOR A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT
(GAMING FUNDS) MONROE COUNTY IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,892.00 TO
PURCHASE AND INSTALL SECURITY CAMERAS AT FOUR (4) DOWNTOWN
PARKING GARAGES: MEDALLION PARKING GARAGE LOCATED ON ADAMS
AVENUE, THE CASEY PARKING GARAGE LOCATED ON ADAMS AVENUE, THE
CONNELL PARKING GARAGE LOCATED ON NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE, AND
THE LINDEN STREET PARKING GARAGE; AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND
OTHER APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS TO ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF
SUCCESSFUL, AND DISBURSE THE GRANT FUNDS FOR THE PURCHASE AND
INSTALLATION OF SECURITY CAMERAS AT FOUR (4) DOWNTOWN PARKING
GARAGES.

Resolution-2019 Security Cameras for Parking Garages.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND
OTHER APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS TO APPLY FOR AND EXECUTE A
GRANT APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF SCRANTON TO THE PENNSYLVANIA
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT (“DCED”) FOR A
LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT (GAMING FUNDS-MONROE COUNTY) IN THE
AMOUNT OF $75,000.00 FOR THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF A NEW
LINER (MEMBRANE) FOR THE POOL AT THE NAY AUG PARK SWIM COMPLEX.

Resolution-2019 LSA Grant for New Liner for Nay Aug Pool.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - APPOINTMENT OF CAROL ANN
MIGLIORINO, 1114 MARION STREET, SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA, 18509
AS A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF ETHICS FOR A ONE (1) YEAR TERM, AND
HER EFFECTIVE DATE WILL BE AUGUST 29, 2019. HER TERM WILL
EXPIRE ON AUGUST 31, 2020.

Resolution-2019 Appt. Carol Migliorino to Ethics Board.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF
THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON TO SIGN
AND SUBMIT THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(“PENNDOT”) APPLICATION FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL APPROVAL FOR TRAFFIC
SIGNAL PERMIT NO. 40166 NORTH MAIN AVENUE AT SCHIFF’S DRIVEWAY
AND JOHNSON COLLEGE DRIVEWAY UNDER PROPOSED PROJECT ECMS/MPMS
#105713; THIS INTERSECTION, WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS, WILL


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/456907/Resolution-2019_Security_Cameras_for_Parking_Garages.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/456912/Resolution-2019_LSA_Grant_for_New_Liner_for_Nay_Aug_Pool.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/456913/Resolution-2019_Appt._Carol_Migliorino_to_Ethics_Board.pdf
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RECEIVE TRAFFIC SIGNAL UPGRADES/MODIFICATIONS AND NEW DURABLE
PAVEMENT MARKING. THE OVERALL PROJECT INCLUDES VARIOUS ROADWAY
IMPROVEMENTS TO K-0107 (MAIN AVENUE/MAIN STREET- COUNTY ROAD).

Resolution-2019 PennDOT app Traffic Signal Approval 40166.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - AUTHORIZING THE DIRECTOR OF
THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON TO SIGN
AND SUBMIT THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(“PENNDOT”) APPLICATION FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL APPROVAL FOR TRAFFIC
SIGNAL PERMIT NO. 40167 NORTH MAIN AVENUE AT INTERSTATE 81
SOUTHBOUND RAMPS (SR8011) UNDER PROPOSED PROJECT ECMS/MPMS
#105713; THIS INTERSECTION, WITHIN THE PROJECT LIMITS, WILL
RECEIVE TRAFFIC SIGNAL UPGRADES/MODIFICATIONS AND NEW DURABLE
PAVEMENT MARKING. THE OVERALL PROJECT INCLUDES VARIOUS ROADWAY
IMPROVEMENTS TO K-0107 (MAIN AVENUE/MAIN STREET- COUNTY ROAD).

Resolution-2019 PennDOT app Traffic Signal Approval 40167.pdf

FOR INTRODUCTION - A RESOLUTION - AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND
OTHER APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS TO APPLY FOR AND EXECUTE THE
GRANT APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF SCRANTON TO THE DEPARTMENT OF
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF
PENNSYLVANIA FOR A MULTIMODAL TRANSPORTATION FUNDS GRANT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $1,586,000.00 FOR THE COMPLETE REPLACEMENT OF THE ASH
STREET BRIDGE.

Resolution-2019 Grant Application Replace Ash Street Bridge.pdf

CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCES - READING BY TITLE

NO BUSINESS AT THIS TIME.

FINAL READING OF RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY - FOR
ADOPTION - FILE OF THE COUNCIL NO. 75, 2019 - - AN ORDINANCE -
ESTABLISHING PERMIT PARKING ON THE EVEN SIDE OF THE 900 BLOCK
OF JEFFERSON AVENUE.


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457426/Resolution-2019_PennDOT_app_Traffic_Signal_Approval_40166.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457429/Resolution-2019_PennDOT_app_Traffic_Signal_Approval_40167.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/458924/Resolution-2019_Grant_Application_Replace_Ash_Street_Bridge.pdf

7.

7.

7.

Ordinance-2019 Permit Parking Even Side 900 blk Jefferson
Avenue.pdf

FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE ON RULES - FOR ADOPTION -
RESOLUTION NO. 168, 2019 - - AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS TO EXECUTE AND ENTER INTO A CONTRACT
WITH FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP TO PROVIDE LEGAL SERVICES TO THE CITY
OF SCRANTON IN THE REFUSE CLASS ACTION LITIGATION.

Resolution-2019 Contract with Fox Rothschild LLP to Settle
Refuse Class Action Litigation.pdf

FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE ON RULES - FOR ADOPTION -
RESOLUTION NO. 169, 2019 - AUTHORIZING APPOINTMENT OF GLYNIS
JOHNS, 801 TOWNHOUSE BOULEVARD, SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA, 18508
TO SERVE AS A MEMBER OF THE SCRANTON PUBLIC LIBRARY AUTHORITY
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2019. MS. JOHNS IS BEING APPOINTED TO A
FIVE (5) YEAR TERM WHICH WILL EXPIRE ON OCTOBER 1, 2024.

Resolution-2019 Appt. Glynis Johns to Scranton Public Library
Authority.pdf

FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE ON PUBLIC SAFETY - FOR
ADOPTION - RESOLUTION NO. 170, 2019 - AUTHORIZING THE
DIRECTOR OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS OF THE CITY OF
SCRANTON TO SIGN AND SUBMIT THE PENNSYLVANIA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION ("PENNDOT") APPLICATION FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL
APPROVAL FOR TRAFFIC SIGNAL PERMIT NO. 40040 7TH
AVENUE/PROVIDENCE ROAD (SR3029) AND OLIVE STREET/MUNCHAK WAY
AND OLIVE PLAZA FOR MODIFICATIONS TO ACCOMMODATE NEW CINGULAR
WIRELESS D/B/A/ AT&T MOBILITY SMALL CELL SITES PROJECT,
INCLUDING MAST ARM REPLACEMENT.

Resolution-2019 PennDOT app to Accomodate New Cingular
Wireless.pdf


https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457431/Ordinance-2019_Permit_Parking_Even_Side_900_blk_Jefferson_Avenue.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457431/Ordinance-2019_Permit_Parking_Even_Side_900_blk_Jefferson_Avenue.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457435/Resolution-2019_Contract_with_Fox_Rothschild_LLP_to_Settle_Refuse_Class_Action_Litigation.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457435/Resolution-2019_Contract_with_Fox_Rothschild_LLP_to_Settle_Refuse_Class_Action_Litigation.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457441/Resolution-2019_Appt._Glynis_Johns_to_Scranton_Public_Library_Authority.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/457441/Resolution-2019_Appt._Glynis_Johns_to_Scranton_Public_Library_Authority.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/454233/Resolution-2019_PennDOT_app_to_Accomodate_New_Cingular_Wireless.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/454233/Resolution-2019_PennDOT_app_to_Accomodate_New_Cingular_Wireless.pdf

8. ADJOURNMENT




Cuﬁy o/[ éamanfon
[ Q. a
Eﬂ)’li‘y (o) )ZL
%Oi&anﬂ, ._//\/Otjaml;’u,no
Cty aonbwffm

<L RANTON, PENN,

e

&

RECEIVE]).
dl/(uniaipa[ Buﬂmg B E
Saranton, _(ps)z)z&ﬂfuah_ia 18503 %b,,c,ww m‘ﬂﬁ 0CT 10 2019
(5'70) 348-4725 (Df leg o][ the dufy Controllen OFFICE OF CITY
. COUNCIL/CITY CLERK

and Bursau o ][ ﬂnoaiﬁLg ations

October9, 2019

Michael Lynady

D.P.W.

340 N. Washington Ave,
Scranton, PA 18503

M. Lynad_y

After a review of the gas card statements, the following discrepancies need to be addressed in
order for The City Controller’s office to perform an accurate report that Council requested:

Mr..Lynady you have 3 cards in your name. Card #38, #76, #77
Card #76 is billed in your name and shows Justin Butler (Police Dept.) using lt

Card #95 is billed to (Ford Van FD)

Jay Murphy (DPW Mechanic) shows use.

Jay Murphy has card #5 issued to him.

Card #5 shows use by Patrick McMullen (DPW Foreman)

Patrick McMullen has card #10 issued to him. He also shows use on house cards that are placed
at three gas stations for Police Patrol.

House cards are stationed at:
Card #64 551 Moosic Street
Card #65  220S.7" Ave.

Card #67 1227 S. Main Street

Card #77 is issued to Mike Lynady but shows use from ABrian Lynady (Police Dept.).
Brian Lynady has card #88 Issued to him and shows use. :

Card #69 is issued to Bill Ritter (DPW) and shows usage by Tony Santoli (DPW-Tree
Maintenance) ' s
Tony Santoli has card #26 issued to him and shows use.



The following cards have been issued but show no use for the last 5 months

#87-Gifford (Police)
#84-Cantafio (Police)
#80-Lubeck (Police)

#79-Baizan (Police)

#78-Wega (No longer employed)
#74-Carroll (Police)
#59-Detective

#38-SID (Police)

Please rectify these issues.

Sincerely, .
D\m\{\w‘&yw -

Roseann Novembrino
City Controller

Cc: Wayne Evans, Mayor
David Bulzoni, Business Administrator
Jessica Eskra, City Solicitor
Dennis Gallagher, Director of DPW
Scranton City Council
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October 9, 2019

City Council

Municipal Building

340 N. Washington Avenue
Scranton Pa, 18503

- Dear Councilman Gaughan,

10

C?.Ety o/( Seranton

gjmniy Loania
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&
865 » N
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ard Burcan of ﬁnvzﬁ.ﬂgationﬁ.

RECEIVED
0CT -9 2013

OFFICE OF CITY
COUNCIL/CITY CLERK

Per your request, here is an update on all overtime figures, for all city departments, Year to date.

Respectfully,

D\W@w

Roseann Novembrino

City Controller
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October 10, 2019

City Council | D
Municipal Building R E @ E “v E D
340 N. Washington Avenue j
Scranton Pa, 18503 , UCT 1 0 2019
OFFICE OF CITY
COUNCIL/CITY CLERK
- Dear Councilman Gaughan,

As Per your request, here are the over-time figures for the Fire Department.

e Allocated: $350,000.00
e Balance: $ $94,617.68/ Pay ending 9/27/2019

Respectfully,

Roseann Novembrino

City Controller -
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(02/02) 10/22/2019 10:10:29 PM

Melissa Maguire 5709636385

TAX ASSESSOR'S REPORT

Hearing Date: ~ 10/16/19
Time Name Boro/Twp. Pin Number Attorney Proposed/Curren  After Appeal
t Assesed Value  Value
9:50 AM RSP ENTERPRISE LLC SCRANTON 1571601003502 FRED RINALDI 2500 2500
9:50 AM RSP ENTERPRISE LLC SCRANTON 15716010034 FRED RINALDI 35000 35000
9:50 AM RSP ENTERPRISE LLC SCRANTON 1571601003501 FRED RINALDE 2424 2424
10:00 AM JBAS REALTY LLC SCRANTON 1458203000202 150500 130900
10:15 AM BUNEVITCH DANIEL SCRANTON 13509030014 79650 62650
10:30 AM DIAMOND 307 LLC SCRANTON 15704010002 FRED RINALDI 12200 6100
10:30 AM DIAMOND 307 LLC SCRANTON 15716010035 FRED RINALDI 230000 192000
11:00 AM TWELVE OLIVE LLC DUNMORE 13502020016 MARK CONWAY . 679500 679500
11:00 AM TWELVE OLIVE LLC DUNMORE 1350202001601 MARK CONWAY 75700 49000
11:45 AM MARYWOOD UNIVERSITY DUNMORE 1351805000321 WILLIAM JONES 1367300 893000
11:45 AM MARYWOOD UNIVERSITY SCRANTON 13518030033 WILLIAM JONES 387900 387900
12:15PM RLROBERTSLLC DUNMORE 13601010005 GREGORY SCHAFFER 459650 459650
12:45 PM 0SJ OF SCRANTON LLC DICKSON CITY 1120402000102 BRIAN STAHL 590000 590000
1:00 PM SDO FUND 11 D32 LLC SCRANTON 1563501001301 GLEN-DAVID SCHWARZ 800000 800000
1:00 PM USPG PORTFOLIO FIVE LLC MOOSIC 18601010015 GLEN-DAVID SCHWARZ 4900000 4900000
1:30 PM BIRNEY 1LP MOOSIC 17612010014 FRANCIS HOEGEN 741544 741544
1:30 PM FURNITURE EXECUTIVES NO.2 LP SCRANTON 1240104000102 FRANCIS HOEGEN 775000 775000
1:30 PM PP & M REALTY COMPANY SCRANTON 1230302003202 FRANCIS HOEGEN 200000 200000
215 PM GPH SCRANTONLP SCRANTON WD-9 14661030004 DAVID SCHNEIDER 656000 656000
215PM ROLLING FRITO LAY SALES LP MOOSIC 1850303000502 DAVID SCHNEIDER 259000 259000
TOTAL RECORDS 20

Tuesday, October 22, 2019
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KOHANSKI

Company:-PC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
The Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Sewer Authority of the
City of Scranton, a component unit of the City of Scranton (the "Authority") as of and for
the year ended March 31, 2018 and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Authority's basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

3939 Birney Avenue T: 570.941.2248

Moosic, PA 18507 F:570.941,2236
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton, as of
March 31, 2018, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matters

Management has omitted a management's discussion and analysis that accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such missing information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this
missing information.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated October 17, 2019, on our consideration of the Authority's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

il
Moosic, PA
October 17, 2019



THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
MARCH 31, 2018

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 886,815
Accounts receivable, net 116,191
Prepaid insurance 22,196
Escrow deposits 16,811,213
Total Current Assets 17,836,415
CAPITAL ASSETS, net of accumulated depreciation 5,885
$ 17,842,300
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accrued expenses $ 699,906
Accrued payroll 3,029
Total Current Liabilities 702,935
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 5,885
Restricted for escrow agreements 16,811,213
Unrestricted 322,267
Total Net Position 17,139,365
$ 17,842,300

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2018

19

OPERATING REVENUES:
Lien payments
Miscellaneous income
Interest income.

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salary and wages
Employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Professional fees
Easements
Insurance
Miscellaneous
Bank charges
Office expenses
Postage
Utilities
Advertising
Depreciation
Maintenance

Total Operating Expenses
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION - Beginning

As previously. reported
Prior-period adjustments

As Restated

NET POSITION - Ending

$ 207,856
80,851
75,220

363,927

168,025
135,192
11,925
190,575
119,600
76,569
10,559
10,500
2,953
2,457
2,131
1,605
1,502
69

723,462

(359,53%5)

17,729,654
(230,754)

17,498,900

$ 17,139,365

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

2-



20

L THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
! (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

——]

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDING MARCH 31, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

1 Cash received for liens $ 205,105
| Cash received from miscellaneous fees 80,851
, Cash paid to employees for services (155,171)
: Cash paid for legal fees and easements (218,346)
' Cash paid for operating expenses (1,534,658)
Net Cash Used By Operating Activities (1,622,219)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Cash received from interest 75,220
NET CHANGE IN CASH (1,546,999)
CASH - BEGINNING 2,433,814
CASH - ENDING $ 886,815

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss from operations $ (359,535)
Adjustments to reconcile loss from operations
to net cash used by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,502
i Change in assets and liabilities:
| Accounts receivable (2,751)
Prepaid insurance (22,196)
Escrow deposits 111,819
Accrued payroll 2,854
Accrued expenses -(1,353,912)
Net Cash Used By Operating Activities $ (1,622,219)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial stétements.

-3-
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

The Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton ( the "Authority") is a body corporate and
politic organized under the Pennsylvania Municipalites Act of 1945, P.C. 382, as
amended and supplemented. By a Certificate of Joinder dated August 17, 1966, the
Borough of Dunmore became an Authority member.

On July 14, 1971, the City of Scranton appointed the Authority to be its agent in the
operation of the sewer system. The terms of this service agreement continues for a one-
year period and automatically extends itself on a year-to-year basis until one of the parties
thereto gives notice of its intent to cancel 30 days prior to the termination of any yearly
period.

On March 28, 2016, the Authority's Board of Directors adopted a resolution approving the
sale of substantially all of the Authority's assets to Pennsylvania American Water
Company ("PAWC") pursuant to the terms of the Asset Purchase Agreement entered into
between the two parties. The sale transaction was completed on December 29, 2016.

The reporting entity has been defined in accordance with the criteria established in
Government Auditing Standards Board ("GASB") Statement No. 39, "Determining
Whether Organizations are Component Units." The specific criteria used is as follows: a)
financial interdependency; b) selection of governing authority; c) designation of
management; d) ability to significantly influence operations, e) accountability for fiscal
matters; f) scope of public service; and g) special financing relationships. As defined,
there are no other related organizations which should be included in the financial
statements.

The Authority has determined that it is a component unit of the City of Scranton since the
City guaranteed the Authority's loans with the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authority ("PENNVEST"); therefore, the Authority is included in the reporting entity of the
City of Scranton.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting to conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, as they apply to
enterprise funds of governmental units.
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Basis of Presentation: Proprietary Fund

The governmental fund category used by the Authority is the proprietary fund. Proprietary
category funds are used to account for and report those governmental activities that are
designed to be self-supporting from fees charged to consumers of the fund's goods and
services or where the governing body has decided that the periodic determination of
revenues, expenses, and net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, publlc policy,
management control, accountability or other purposes. The accounting and financial
reporting practices of proprietary funds are similar to those used for business enterprises
and focus on capital maintenance and the flow of economic resources.

Proprietary fund statements provide both long-term and short-term financial information
which is similar to the information reported by a business-type entity. All assets and all
liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are included on the statement of net
position. Net position is segregated into net investment in capital assets and unrestricted
net assets. The statement of changes in fund net position presents increases (i.e.
revenues) and decreases (i.e. expenses) in total net position.

Two fund types are included in the proprietary fund category; enterprise and internal
services funds. The Authority uses the enterprise fund type.

Enterprise funds account for operations that provide goods or services to the general
public on a continuing basis. Such operations are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private businesses and are intended to be self-supporting through charges to
users.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing
and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
The principal operating revenues for the Authority is the collection of outstanding sewage
treatment fees. Operating expenses for the Authority include the cost of services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation of capital assets. All revenue and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.

-5-
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATENMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Cash

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Authority considered all unrestricted
highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months or less to be cash.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consists of customer accounts, delinquent over one-year, which were
not purchased by PAWC, The Authority retained these customer accounts as part of the
sales transaction. The Authority, as an operation of law, maintains the ability to convert its
past due accounts into municipal claims through legal liens which were filed against the
customer's property prior to December 29, 2016,

Since a major portion of the accounts receivable is considered uncollectible, the Authority
has an allowance equal to its estimate of collection losses.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of computer equipment and software which are carried
at cost and are depreciated on the straight-line method over 5 years.

Income Taxes

The Authority is exempt from Federal and state income tax and therefore, no provision for
income tax has been made. :

Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Assets

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Authority's
policy to use restricted resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are
needed.

Effects of New Pronouncements

The following summarizes recent GASB pronouncements and their impact, if any, on the
financial statements:
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Effects of New Pronouncements (Cont'd)

In November 2016, GASB issued statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement
Obligations. This statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain
asset retirement obligations ("ARQs"). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability associated
with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that has a legal obligation to
perform future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should
recognize a liability based on the guidance of this Statement.

The provisions of Statement No. 83 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15,
2018. The Authority is currently evaluating the effects of this statement on its financial
statements.

Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 17, 2019, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued, for events requiring recording or
disclosure in the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018.

NOTE 2: ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT, INDEMNITY ESCROW FUND AND
INDEMNITY ESCROW AGREEMENT

On March 28, 2016, the Authority entered into an asset purchase agreement
("agreement"), which was amended and restated on October 28, 2016 with PAWC for its
acquisition of the sewer collection system and wastewater treatment operations
("system"), including substantially all of the Authority's business assets, other than
excluded assets as stipulated by the agreement. The transaction closed on December 29,
2016. The agreement provides that the Authority will sell to PAWC, free and clear of all
liens, exclusive of permitted liens, all of the Authorities right, title and interest in and to all
assets, properties, business, goodwill and rights, of every kind and description, tangible or
intangible, real, personal or mixed, wherever situated, in each case used in, held for use
in, or acquired or developed for use in its system, or otherwise related to, or arising out of,
the operation or conduct of the system.

As part of the excluded assets, the Authority would retain the rights and title to all of its
storm water system assets. Historical cost and net book value information for these
retained storm water sewer system assets is not available. The Authority has deemed it
impractical to identify, value and reflect these retained storm water system assets in the
accompanying statement of net position.
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 2: ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT, INDEMNITY ESCROW FUND AND
INDEMNITY ESCROW AGREEMENT (CONT'D)

Pursuant to the sales agreement the Authority was responsible to obtain all easements
related to parts of its system which were not recorded with the recorder of deeds to allow
for access to all parts of the system in event of the need for repair. Prior to closing the
Authority was unable to obtain all the necessary easements. Related to the easement
matter there was a class action lawsuit filed against the Authority in the Court of Common
Pleas, Lackawanna County, captioned as Hadley, et al v. Scranton Sewer Authority, Case
No. 2016-06261 ("Class Action Litigation").

To facilitate and allow the parties to close the transaction while continuing to try to resolve
the easement matters, as well as to provide security to the buyer to ensure the Authority’s
Representations and Warranties as part of the agreement it was agreed that two escrow
accounts would be established.

Due to the restrictions that are placed on those escrow funds, the Authority has
determined that the proper accounting for these funds will be restricted assets until such
time as they become available to the Authority through the operations of their respective
Escrow Agreement.

Essential Easement Fund

The Essential Easement Fund of Twelve Million Dollars ($12,000,000) was deposited
with First National Community Bank ("FNCB"). The Authority, PAWGC and FNCB
executed an escrow agreement which governs the types of disbursements allowable,
the forms that need to be filed to request withdrawals and the procedures that will
govern in the event of disagreement or dispute. The balance in the Essential
Easement Fund was $11,819,545 at March 31, 2018.

The Authority is solely responsible and may not utilize any funds from this escrow to
obtain any easements from the City of Scranton, the Borough of Dunmore or any
governmental Authority (including school districts, redevelopment authorities or
housing authorities).

Indemnification Obligation Fund and Escrow

The second escrow agreement, the Indemnification Obligation Fund of Five Million
Dollars ($5,000,000) was deposited with Delaware Trust Company ("DTC"). The
Authority, PAWC and DTC executed an Escrow Agreement which governs the types of
disbursements allowable, the forms that need to be filed to request withdrawals, and
the procedures that will govern in the event of disagreement or dispute.

-8-
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A CONMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 2: ASSET PURCHASE AGREEMENT, INDEMNITY ESCROW FUND AND
INDEMNITY ESCROW AGREEMENT (CONT'D)

Indemnification Obligation Fund and Escrow (Cont'd)

The primary purpose of this fund is to indemnify PAWC, its employees, officers,
directors, trustees and agents from any and all damages resulting from
misrepresentations made by the Authority as part of the Asset Purchase Agreement,
and any other related agreement, breaches or nonfulfillment of any covenants by the
Authority, or to the extent PAWC incurs any liabilities which were not previously
disclosed to it as part of the sales transaction. The balance in the Idemnification
Obligation Fund was $4,991,668 at March 31, 2018.

NOTE 3: CASH AND ESCROW DEPOSITS

Deposits with Financial Institutions

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's deposits
may not be returned to it. The Authority's investment policy requires deposits to be made
in insured bank accounts. The Authority maintains cash balances with a local financial
institution. Accounts at this institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. As of March 31, 2018, $637,031 of the Authority's cash
balances of $887,031 was secured by securities pledged as collateral by the financial
institution, not in the Authority's name.

Credit Risk

Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the
holder of the investment. In accordance with the escrow agreements, any restricted
assets held by the trustee can be invested as detailed in the agreements. Unrestricted
funds are invested at management's discretion.

The Authority has retricted funds which are maintained under escrow agreements with
FNCB and DTC. Pursuant to the escrow agreements, these funds may be invested in
BlackRock T-Fund Cash Management Shares or any other investments at the direction by
the Authority and PAWG, if those investments are acceptable to the escrow agent.
BlackRock T-Fund Cash Management Shares have an average credit quality rating of
AAAM (Standard & Poor's) / Aaa-mf (Moody's).



27

THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 3: CASH AND ESCROW DEPOSITS (CONT'D)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair-value of an investment. The longer the maturity an investment has, the greater its fair-
value sensitivity to changes in market interest rates. The Authority does not have a formal
investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure
to fair-value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS

Property and equipment activity consisted of the following for the year ended March 31,
2018:
Balance Balance
April 1, March 31,
2017 Additions Disposals 2018

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Operating equipment $ 7510 $ - $ - $ 7,510

Less accumulated depreciation:
Operating equipment 123 1,502 - 1,625

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net $ 7,387 $ 15602 % - $ 5,885

Depreciation expense charged to operations for 2018 was $1,502.
NOTE 5: OPERATING LEASES

Office Facility Usage

The Authority conducts its post December 29, 2016 operations from office space located
at City of Scranton Municipal Building, N. Washington Avenue Scranton, Pennsylvania.
" The office space is provided for under an oral agreement, continuing on a month-to-
month basis, with the City of Scranton. The Authority is charged no rent for its usage of
these facilities: however, it is responsible to pay for all its operating expenses, and
insurance costs associated with its use of this office space. Both parties have deemed it
immaterial to value and record the Authority's office facility usage as a non-exchange
transaction.

-10-
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2018

NOTE 6: DEFEASED REVENUE BONDS

Pursuant to the Asset Purchase Agreement entered between the Authority and PAWC, all
outstanding obligations of the Authority were required to be repaid or redeemed using
proceeds existing in the various trust accounts established under the indentures for which
the bonds were issued. In accordance with the Trust Indentures for each of the
outstanding bonds payable, the Authority issued a Notice of Defeasance to Fidelity
Deposit and Discount Bank ("Fidelity") who is the Trustee for each of the outstanding
bond issues.

Concurrent with the closing of the Agreement of Sale of the Authority, the Authority
entered into an escrow agreement with Fidelity to act as the escrow agent for the payment
of interest and the early redemption of each of the outstanding bond issues. Fidelity, as
Trustee, transferred $20,485,110 in cash balances held in the various trust accounts
relating to each of the outstanding bond issues. As part of the closing, proceeds from the
sale were set aside and transferrred to Fidelity in the amount of $28,937,185 to account
for the total Gross Escrow Requirement of $49,422,295. Accordingly, the Trust account
assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the Authority's financial
statements. At March 31, 2018, the balances of defeased bonds were as follows:

Issue Balance
Series A of 2011 $ 17,515,000
Series B of 2011 $ 5,140,000
Series of 2014 $ 10,000,000
Series of 2015 $ 7,985,000

NOTE 7: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Authority is involved in various claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course
of business. In the opinion of the Authority, the ultimate disposition of any matters
outstanding at March 31, 2018 will not have a material effect on the Authority's financial
position.

NOTE 8: PRIOR-PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

The March 31, 2017 financial statements of the Authority contained an understatement of
accrued expenses related to improvements of the capital assets sold to PAWC,
equipment rentals, employee benefits and easements.

As a result, the Authority's net position as of March 31, 2017 has been decreased by
$230,754.

-11-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of
The Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton:

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States,
the financial statements of the Sewer Authority of the City of Scranton, a component unit
of the City of Scranton (the "Authority"), as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority's
basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 17, 2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the
Authority's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") to determine the
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. '

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material
weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the Authority's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

3939 Birney Avenue T.570.941.2248

Moosic, PA 18507 F:570.941.2236
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in
internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

The Authority's Response to Findings

The Authority's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The Authority's response was
not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this
communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Moosic, PA
October 17, 2019

-13-
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THE SEWER AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

FINDING 2018-1 RECONCILIATION OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Condition/Cause: The Authority's internal controls over financial reporting did not ensure
that all adjustments and transactions related to the collection of outstanding sewer fees
were recorded consistently in the general ledger and subsidiary ledger. It was noted that
credits recorded in the general ledger during the year ended March 31, 2017 were not
recorded in the subsidiary ledger. In addition, liens satisfied in the current year through
sheriff sale or partial payment, which were recorded in the subsidiary ledger, were not
recorded in the general ledger.

Criteria: Subsidiary ledgers of accounting data should agree to the amount reported in the
general ledger.

Effect The financial statements of the Authority may not accurately reflect the
outstanding balance of sewer fees receivable.

Recommendation: The Authority should reconcile the accounts receivable subsidiary
ledger on a monthly basis to ensure that all transactions have been properly recorded in
the general ledger.

Response: The Authority agrees with the finding and is currently working on reconciling
the subsidiary ledger to the general ledger.

-14-
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RESOLUTION NO.
2019

RAT TFYING AND APPROVING OF THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF
THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF
LACKAWANNA COLLEGE, TO THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ACTING THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR
A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT, PURSUANT TO THE PA RACE HORSE
DEVELOPMENT AND GAMING ACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,599.66 FOR
THE PROJECT TO BE KNOWN AS " LACKAWANNA COLLEGE - MOBILE E-
SPORTS ARENA SPACE" LOCATED 501 VINE STREET, SCRANTON,
PENNSYLVANIA, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON, PA, TO
ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE AND ENTER INTO A
LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND COMMITMENT LETTER
WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TO ACCEPT AND
UTILIZE THE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,599.66 AWARDED BY THE
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City of Scranton, through the Office of Economic and Community
Development, will submit a grant application on behalf of Lackawanna College to the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("the Commonwealth") acting through the Commonwealth
Financing Authority (the "Grantor”) for a Local Share Account Grant, pursuant to the PA
Race Horse Development and Gaming Act, for the purchase of technology for a mobile E-
sports arena ("Project”) located at 501 Vine Street, Scranton, Pennsylvania. A copy of such
“Project” details is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein as if set forth at
length; and

WHEREAS, the City of Scranton intends herein to ratify and approve the execution
and submission of the Grant Application; and

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania will review the Grant Application
for funding for the Local Share Account Grant in the amount of $202,599.66 ("Grant") for -
the "Project"; and

WHEREAS, if the Grant Application is approved, the City of Scranton intends
herein to authorize the execution of the Local Share Account Grant Contract and
Commitment Letter, and the acceptance, disbursement, and utilization of the Grant for the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SCRANTON that the execution and submission of the “Grant” Application is hereby

ratified and if approved, the Mayor and other appropriate City Officials are hereby
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authorized to enter into and execute and submit any additional related paperwork for this
“Grant”, and if successful, to accept the grant funds to be used for the “Project” as attached
hereto. This approval anticipates and authorizes the execution of any and all related
documentation necessary for the “Grant” or to accept, disburse, and utilize the “Grant” for
the “Project.”

SECTION 1. If any section, clause, provision or portion of this Resolution
shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such
decisions shall not affect any other section, clause, provision or portion of this
Ordinance so long as it remains legally enforceable minus the invalid portion. The
City reserves the right to amend this Ordinance or any portion thereof from time to
time as it shall deed advisable in the best interest of the promotion of the purposes
and intent of this Ordinance, and the effective administration thereof.

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
approval.

SECTION 3. This Resolution is enacted by the Council of the City of
Scranton under the authority of the Act of the Legislature, April 13, 1972, Act No.
62, known as the “Home Rule Charter and Optional Plans Law”, and any other

applicable law arising under the laws of the State of Pennsylvania.
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Scranton

OE(D

Office of Economic and
Community Development

October 17,2019

Via Hand Delivery

Jessica Eskta, Esquire

340 Notth Washington Avenue
4" Fl, Law Depattment
Scranton, PA 18503

Re:  Resolution
City of Scranton, OECD on behalf of Lackawanna College — Mobile E-Sports Arena
Space
LSA Grant Application

Deat Attorney Eskra:

The City of Sctanton, specifically OECD, is requesting approval to submit a LSA Grant
application on behalf of Lackawanna College for their mobile E-spotts atena project.

OFECD is tequesting that you review the attached Resolution and submit it to City Council
for approval.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you should need additional information.

/20

Maty-Pat Ward

Executive Director

/mpw

CITY OF SCRANTON OFFICE OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
340 N. Washington Avenue « Scranton, Pennsylvania 18503 «+ Tel: (570) 348-4216 + Fax (570)348-4123 = www.scrantonpa.gov
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Scranton

HD

Office of Economic and
Community Development

" Septembet 30, 2019

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building :

Attn: Customer Setvice Centet

400 Notth Street, 4* Floot

Hartisburg, PA 17120-0225

Re:  LSA Grant Application (Montoe County) — Lackawanna College
Mobile e-Sports Arena Space

Single Application Id: 201909309219

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed please find 2 Single Application for Assistance with Program Addenda regarding
the above-tefetenced matter. '

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter. Please do not hesitate to contact
" me if you should need additional information.

Sincerel

Mary;Pat Ward

Executive Ditector

MPW/
Ce: Cathy Wechsler

CITY OF SCRANTON OFFICE OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
340 N. Washington Avenue = Scranton, Pennsylvania 18503 « Tel: (570) 348-4216 « Fax (570)348-4123 ° www.scrantonpa.gov
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Agency: Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Applicant: The City of Scranton

Web Application #: 8347494

Company: Lackawanna College

Program: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Fact Sheet Program Guidelines

Application Certification

Afée of $100.00 Was collected for this application. Authorization code: 61035G, Transaction -
1D: 4588754602

Single Application ID #: 201209309219
The web application has been successfully submitted for processing.

| hereby certify that all information contained in the single application and supporting materials
submitted via the Internet, Single Application # 201909309219 and its attachments are true

and correct and accurately represent the status and economic condition of the Applicant, and 1
also certify that, if applying on behalf of the applicant, | have verified with an authorized
representative of the Applicant that such information is true and correct and accurately
represents the status and economic condition of the Applicant. 1also understand that if |
knowingly make a false statement or overvalue a security to obtain a grant and/or loan from the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, | may be subject to criminal prosecution in accordance with

18 Pa.C.S. § 4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to authorities) and 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 and
3802 (relating to false claims and statements).

The signature page may also be printed now. You may also print submitted applications from
the Home page. Click the link labeled "Submitted Applications" in the top toclbar.

Print Signature Page only

Print Entire Application with Signature Page

The signature page along with any paper supporting documents can be mailed to the following
address:

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

Attn: Customer Service Center

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED)
Single Application for Assistance, Version Release 5.8.0.1n8

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Certification.aspx?requestkey=06a59dc8-5948-448f-b2cc...  9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance
Web Application Id: 8347494

Applicant: The City of Scranton
Company: Lackawanna College
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Single Application Id: 201909309219

Applicant Information

Applicant Entity Type

:1Government

Applicant Name

: ﬁhe City of Scranton

NAICS Code

FEIN/SSN Numbe

T [[XXOXKXXKX

DUNS Number:|[136814287 |

CEQ:

|Wayne E. Evans

CEOQ Title: {{Mayor

SAP Vendor #:

) 9,0,0.0,0.4

Contact Name: ||Mary-Pat Ward

Contact Title: IExecutive Director, OECD

Phone:|[(570)-348-4216 |  Ext.
Fax:|| |
E-mail: |mpward@scrantonpa.gov I

Mailing Address;

340 North Washington Avenue

City:

IScranton

State: |PA

Zip Code:

18503

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application Id: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton
Company: Lackawanna College

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application 1d: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton
Company: Lackawanna College

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Company Entity Type:|Non-Profit Corporation

Company Name: lLackawanna College

Charitable organization?|True

NAICS Code

FEI

DUNS Number:

[075091505 |

CEO:

|Mark Volk

CEOQ Title:

IPresident

SAP Vendor #:

XAKXKXX

Contact Name:

|Cathy Wechsler

Contact Title:

lManager of Corp., Foundation and Govt. Relations

Phone:|[570)-961-7869 | Ext.| |
Fax: || | :
E-mail: |wechsler@lackawanna.edu

Mailing Address:

501 Vine Street

City:

|Scranton

State:

PA

Zip Code:

18509

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019
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Single Application
Web Application Id: 8347494
Applicant: The City of Scranton
Company: Lackawanna College

for Assistance

Single Application Id: 201309309219

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

‘Business Specifics

Current # of Full-time
Employees:

(In PAY):

(World Wide:)

206
206

Minority Owned:

No

Select

Woman Owned:

Total Sales $:

Total Export Sales $:

No
b
O

R&D Investment:

(% of Budget)

Employee Training
Investment:

|
(% of Budget)

-Enterprise Type--—

indicate the types of enterprises that describe the organization listed above. You may select more than one type.

D Advanced Technology D Agri-Processor D Agri-Producer

DAuthority D Biotechnology / Life Sciences I:l Business Financial Services
I:l Call Center D Child Care Center D Commercial

D Community Dev. Provider D Computer & Clerical Operators I:l Defense Related

D Economic Dev. Provider M Educational Facility L__| Emergency Responder

D Environment and Conservation D Exempt Facility D Export Manufacturing

D Export Service D Food Processing D Government

D Healthcare D Hospitality D Industrial

D Manufacturing D Mining L—_] Other

D Professional Services D Recycling D Regional & National Headquarters
D Research & Development D Retail l__._| Social Services Provider

D Tourism Promotion

D Warehouse & Terminal

Educational Facility,

r

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Webh Application Id: 8347494 Single Application Id: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton
Company: Lackawanna College

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund {(Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Overview

Project Name:
Lackawanna College - Mobile E-Sports Arena Space

Is this project related to another previously submitted project?

No

If yes, indicate previous project name:

Have you contacted anyone at DGED about your project?

No

If yes, indicate who:

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application id: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton

Company: Lackawanna College
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Site Locations

Address: [501 Vine Street

City: |Scranton

State: |PA

Zip Code: | 18509

County: |Lackawanna

Municipality: |Scranton City

PA House: |Kyle Mullins (112)

PA Senate: |John P. Blake (22)

Designated Areas: |Act 47 Distressed Community, Keystone Opportunity Zone

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application Id: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton

Company: Lackawanna College

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Budget

Local Share Private Total
Account Private
Fund
(Gaming
Funds)
Monroe
County
Machinery & Equipment $191,904.72 $.00
New Equipment Purchase $191,904.72 $.00| $191,904.72
Operating Costs / Working Capital $1,000.00 $.00
Audit , $1,000.00 $.00 $1,000.00
Miscellaneous $1,000.00 $8,695.24
City Grant Admin (5%) $1,000.00 $8,695.24 $9,695.24
Total . $193,804.72 $8,695.24
Budget $202,599.96
1Total:

Basis of Cost
Provide the basis for calculating the costs that are identified in the Project Budget.

Bids/Quotations, Budget Justification

Budget Narrative

The narrative must specifically address each of the cost items identified in the Project Budget section. If an amount is placed in any of the OTHER
categories, you must specify what the money will be used for. NOTE: Some programs have specific guidelines regarding the narrative necessary to
qualify for that particular resource. Please read the Program Guidelines for details.

LC is asking for $193,904.72 for the final phase of the project. In the first stage of the project, the College
will spend an estimated $450,000 for additional state-of-the-art technology for the first phase of the
project.

From the grant funding, $191,904.72 will be spent on technology including $37,763.78 on gaming
computers and peripherals including monitors and mouse pads from DellEMC. From JP Lilley $60,284
will be spent for the lighting and quality control console which includes 12 Chauvet Rogue Moving Effects
Heads, 6 Chauvet Wash Pixel Moving Heads, 1 Elation Obsidian Lighting Console, 2 Elation Obsidian
EN 12 Ethernet to DMX gateway, 5 Generico 12 Inch Box Truss 5 foot Silver, 3 Generico 12 Inch Box
Truss 10 Foot Silver, 2 Generico 6 Way Corner Block Silver and 2 Applied Electronics 36 Inch Base Plate

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application Id: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton

Company: Lackawanna College
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Budget

Silver: $59,530 for the projection and main stream which includes 2 Digital Projection 21K lumens laser
projectors, 2 Digital Projection Long Throw Lens and 2 Projector Mounting Hardwear; $14,500 for a
Newtek Instant Replay System with Controller for the Broadcast booth; green room technology at $2,490
which includes 1 Glensound Beatrice D4 Intercom Desktop Station and a Sharp 60 Inch Display for a
total of $136,804. The APC Smart-UPS VT Rack Mount costing $16,719 and four APC Rack PDU at
$240.093 each for a total of $17,680.27 from Schaedler Yesco Distribution. Thirteen Logitech Gaming
Mouse devices at $54.99 each, five HyperX Cloud Alpha Gaming Headsets at $88.37 each and five
HyperX Cloud Il Gaming Headsets at $99.99 each will be purchased at Amazon for a total of $1,656.67.
Plus three HyperX-Cloud Alpha Wired Stereo Gaming Headsets at $88.99 each will be purchased at Best
Buy for a total of $266.97. The additional $1,000 will be utilized for the required grant audit, and $1,000
will be paid for grant administration to the City of Scranton.

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019



Single Application for Assistance Page 8 of &
- <

Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application 1d: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton

Company: Lackawanna College
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Narrative

What do you plan to accomplish with this project?
Identify the problem(s) that need to be resolved.

Collegiate eSports takes the form of organized multiplayer video game competitions between colleges
and universities. Lackawanna College joined the ranks of 60 institutions across the US and Canada,
offering the first known program in NEPA. ESPN has announced the creation of the College Esports
Championship. These competitions have created a vital need for venues. To accommodate that need
there is a focus on adapting spaces to be used for competitions. Venues are economic drivers for the
regions where they are located. During these tournaments, the participants and audience will fill the local
hotels, restaurants and bars, producing economic impact for the region. Lack. College will upgrade its
1,000-seat theater into a state-of-the-art venue to host esports tournaments. This project is estimated to
cost over $600,000 and would not only be an economic development project for the region, but also
improve the quality of life by creating additional recreational activities.

How do you plan to accomplish it?

Include expected outcomes that are measurable, cbtainable, clear and understandable, and valid. Examples of measurable outcomes include jobs
created or retained, people trained, land or building acquired, housing units renovated or built, etc.

Lackawanna College will update its 1,000-seat theater with cutting-edge technology to attract national
esports tournaments to Scranton. The first phase of the project will start in January 2020, for an
estimated cost of $450,000 and will be paid for by the College. The final phase will be funded with the
$193,904.72 LSA grant request and will be completed by April of 2020. The physical structure of LC’s
historical theater will remain intact, but the technology infrastructure will be state-of-the-art. The plan will
include 12 mobile competition stations, allowing two teams of six players to compete on the stage. Digital
mapping will project 3D images on every wall, including a projected scoreboard. Slight physical changes
will be made in the balcony region to construct a Podcast and Shoutcasting Booth, the esports version of

a broadcast booth. Our team will grow exponentially and LC will continue to educate local students in
high-priority occupations.

How do you plan to use the funds?
Should include specific use of funds and reflect the budget provided with the application.

Technology in the Peoples Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna College will be upgraded to provide a
state-of-the-art esports competition venue, while not changing the historical nature of the theater. LC is
asking for $193,904.72 for the final phase of the project. For the earlier phases of the project, LC will
spend an estimated $450,000 for additional technology. From the grant funding $193,904.72 will be spent
on technology including $37,687.42 on gaming computers and peripherals including monitors, headsets,
mouse devices and mouse pads; $80,284 for the lighting and quality control console; $59,530 for the
projection and main stream; $14,500 for a broadcast booth for live streaming; green room technology at
$2,490; and an APC Smart UPS and four APC Rack PDUs costing a total of $17,680.26. The additional

$1,000 will be utilized for the required grant audit and $1,000 will be paid to the City of Scranton for grant
administration.

Projected Schedule and Key Milestones and Dates

A detailed schedule of activities, including key milestones and dates, must accompany this application if applicable to the project.
Upon the LSA award announcement, LC will open the bidding process.

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application 1d: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton

Company: Lackawanna College
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Narrative

Bids will be awarded two weeks later.

The final phase of the purchase and installation of the innovative esports technology into the Peoples

Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna College will start in March 2020 and is scheduled to be completed
before the end of April 2020.

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application Id: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton

Company: Lackawanna College

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Addenda

In addition to the Single Application, the Applicant shall submit the following list of items. All items marked with a red diamond are required to be
uploaded to the application. The items that are not required should be uploaded if they are applicable to the project.

1, Provide a description of the project which discusses all of the following: (a) a detailed project description to include specific project activities and
expected results; (b) the specific location of the project site; (c) whether the proposed project is consistent with an existing regional, county, or local
comprehensive plan; (d) whether the proposed project has been identified as a priority investment in a local or regional economic development plan or
strategy; (e) the anticipated employment, investment, and/or community impact of the project; (f) if a difference exists, the historical and proposed use
of the project site; and (g) if applicable, the experience of the developer to include a discussion of previously completed.projects.

Uploaded Documents

E

1. 2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, Description of Project.pdf ~ View

2. A projected schedule and detailed timeline for the project;

Uploaded Documents

2.2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, Project Schedule and Timeline.pdf ~ View

3. A budget accompanied by a description of the basis of costs for the project and sources of funding;

Uploaded Documents

3. 2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, Project Budget.pdf ~ View

4. Copies of signed bids/quotations, contractor estimates, sales agreements, or engineer estimates verifying project costs. Bids should be current and
dated;

Uploaded Documents

4. 2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, Bids Quotes Estimates.pdf ~ View

H

5, Evidence of conformity of the project with local and regional comprehensive plans and zoning (in the form of a letter from the applicable
planning/zoning office), if applicable;

Uploaded Documents

5. 2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, City Planning Support Letter.pdf View

6. A letter of support for the project from the affected community;

Uploaded Documents

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347494 Single Application 1d: 201909309219
Applicant: The City of Scranton
Company: Lackawanna College

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Addenda

6. 2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, Mayor Support Letter.pdf ~ View

7. Provide a resolution duly adopted by the applicant's governing board formally requesting the grant, designating an official to execute ail documents,
describing briefly the project scope, and identifying the grant amount;

|

Uploaded Documents

7. 2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, Legislation.pdf ~ View

8. Copies of funding commitment letters from all other project funding sources, if applicable; and

% Uploaded Documents |

9. Copy of the Applicant's and/or project user's latest financials.

Once submitted, please print one {1) copy of the completed application, to include all required and additional applicable supplemental information, and
send via US Mail. Please reference the Application |D number on all mailed documents.

Uploaded Documents

9. 2019 LSA Application -Lackawanna College, Applicant Financials.pdf ~ View

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic

Development
Single Application for Assistance

Single Application #: 201909309219

This page must accompany all required supplemental information Mail to:

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

Attn: Customer Service Center

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

| hereby certify that all information contained in the single application and supporting materials submitted to DCED via
the Internet, Single Application # 201909309219 and its attachments are true and correct and accurately represent the
status and economic condition of the Applicant, and | also certify that, if applying on behalf of the applicant, 1 have
verified with an authorized representative of the Applicant that such information is true and correct and accurately
represents the status and economic condition of the Applicant. | also understand that if | knowingly make a false
statement or overvalue a security to obtain a grant and/or loan from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, | may be
subject to criminal prosecution in accordance with 18 Pa.C.S. § 4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to authorities)
and 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 and 3802 (relating to false claims and statements).

—c1Signature: Mary-Pat Ward

The Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development reserves the right to accept or reject any or

all applications submitted on the Single Application for Assistance contingent upon available funding sources and
respective applicant eligibility.

https://www.esa.dced.state. pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Addenda 1

Founded in 1894, Lackawanna College is a private, 501(c)(3) non-profit, open enrollment
institution which provides a quality education to all persons who seek to improve their lives and
better the communities in which they live. In addition to our Main Campus in Scranton,
Pennsylvania, the College operates regional satellite locations, in Hawley, Hazleton, New
Milford, Sunbury, Towanda, and an Environmental Education Center in Covington Township.

With a student body of approximately 1,900, the majority of students, 82%, reside in the 14
counties of Northeastern Pennsylvania. Lackawanna College students tend to come from
educationally or economically disadvantaged backgrounds; many (39%) are first-generation
‘college students and 97% of students qualify for financial aid. In addition, 77% of Lackawanna
College’s full-time freshmen receive Pell Grants, more than any other postsecondary institution
in Pennsylvania with over 500 students.

Committed to the revitalization of downtown Scranton, the College has a history of restoring
timeworn, underutilized structures for modern use as classroom space, residential housing
facilities, Student Union. Most recently, in the fall of 2018, LC opened the newly renovated 409
Adams that includes a cafeteria, culinary teaching kitchens and a student run restaurant. This
continued revitalization has led to the stabilization of the downtown neighborhood and
economic growth in the Act 47 Distressed City of Scranton.

The Peoples Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna College is located in historic Angeli Hall, 501
Vine Street on the College’s Main Campus in Scranton. Through a $2.4 million renovation that
began in 1996, LC rescued the theater of the former Scranton Central High School from years of
neglect and disrepair. The Theater’s wall and ceiling ornamentation, glass windows, exit signs

and seats were carefully refurbished and replaced. The Theater is home to various academic
and community events.

With this project, LC will introduce the latest esports technology to the theater, without
disturbing the historical significance of the venue. This state-of-the-art technology will turn the
1,000-seat theater into an esports arena. Esports are competitive video gaming. Teams face
off against one another to compete while fans watch them play an organized multiplayer video
game. ltis a global phenomenon that is projected to top $1.1 billion in revenue this year
according to NewZoo, which tracks the industry.

Lackawanna College started its esports team in 2018, and was the first known esports program
of its kind in Northeastern Pennsylvania. At the time, LC was one of only 60 collegiate teams in
the US and Canada, currently there are over 200. The team competes in games including
Overwatch, League of Legends, and Rocket League. The program has many benefits, from
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offering students additional athletics opportunities and scholarships to encouraging
engagement on and off campus. Student athletes participating in the esports program also
have the potential to be viewed as prospects for jobs in the video game industry. In August
2019, the College debuted The Game Room, a podcast focused on collegiate esports.

LC is a member of the National Association of Collegiate Esports (NACE). NACE is the only
association of college and university sponsored esports programs that promotes the education
and development of students through intercollegiate esports. They have 117 member schools,
2,800+ student-athletes, and offer $15 million in esports scholarships and aid, an annual
national convention and interscholastic competition.

With the phenomenal growth, the esports industry is in desperate need of competition space,
both large and small. In addition to regional tournaments, there are many national esports
conventions and tournaments looking for competition space. ESPN has recently announced the
creation of the College Esports Championship and the National Junior College Athletic
Association (NJCAA) is developing a national championship, plus runner-up events for its two-
year schools. These venues are economic drivers for the regions where they are located.
During these tournaments, the participants and audience will fill the local hotels, restaurants
and bars, producing a tremendous economic impact for the region.

The mobile esports arena space at The Peoples Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna College
will have twelve moveable competition computers on the stage, allowing two teams of six to
compete against each other. Digital mapping technology will project 3D images on every wall,
including a projected scoreboard. In the balcony, there will be a Podcast and Shoutcasting
Booth installed. Shoutcasting is the esports version of broadcasting. This project is estimated
to cost over $600,000 and LC is requesting $194,171.69 in LSA funding to complete the final
phase. This is not only an economic development project for the region, but also improves the
quality of life by creating additional recreational activities.

This project is consistent with regional, county and local comprehensive plans including the City
of Scranton Comprehensive Master Plan, the Lackawanna-Luzerne Regional Plan and the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s Keystone Principles.

Scranton City Comprehensive Master Plan of 1992 was adopted in 1993 and constitutes an
overall program in consideration of the character of the city and its various parts, determining
the suitability of various parts for particular uses and structures. Lackawanna College’s project
is consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan and specifically the stated goals of
rehabilitating and repurposing underutilized buildings and expanding educational opportunities
in Northeast Pennsylvania. Located in a designated C-D zoning tract, Downtown Commercial,
this project is a permitted use.
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The Lackawanna-Luzerne Regional Plan includes the Land Use Plan with the goal of achieving an
overall future pattern of development that is responsive to existing and future economic, social,
and cultural needs of Lackawanna and Luzerne Counties, promoting revitalization in the area’s

urban centers, which are Priority Areas, while conserving and preserving natural and
agricultural resources.

Lackawanna College’s technological upgrade of The Peoples Security Bank Theater at
Lackawanna College is consistent with key provisions required by the plan. The continued
redevelopment of this property is an efficient and economical way to allow for both new
growth and revitalization in downtown Scranton.

This project conforms to the principals included in the state’s Keystone Principles for Growth,

Investment and Resource Conservation including Redevelop First and Plan Regionally,
Implement Locally.

A priority investment for the financially distressed City of Scranton, upgrading the technology in
the Lackawanna College Theater will be an economic driver for the region. This will not only
bring in up to 20 collegiate teams for each tournament, but also thousands of spectators to
watch the games, and fill the hotels, restaurants and bars of Scranton.

The City of Scranton has successfully managed and advanced a wide range of projects located
within the city, and will work in collaboration with Lackawanna College to oversee the
implementation of the expansion of technology in the Peoples Security Bank Theater at

Lackawanna College. Scranton has the necessary experience to administer the Local Share
Account (LSA) funding award.

Lackawanna College has extensive experience with large Federal, State and private grants and is
well versed in procurement processes and procedures. The College requires three bids for
procurement and is familiar with all aspects of wage determinations as applicable.

The College employs a full service fiscal department that serves as an additional layer of
oversight to ensure compliance and is comprised of approximately 10 employees who work to
ensure the accuracy of all financial matters concerning LC. The department includes a finance
officer with fiscal responsibility for an over $31—millioh annual budget, including oversight for
the administration of million dollar-plus state and federal grants. A grant accountant specifically
manages all financial record keeping for grant-funded projects and provides assistance with

financial reports. The fiscal department includes a series of checks and balances and abides by
traditional accounting rules.

Representing significant potential as an economic stimulator, Lackawanna College has worked
to rehabilitate and repurpose underutilized buildings in the downtown as Scranton struggles to
recover from two decades of extreme financial duress. Starting in 1994, with the purchase of
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the old Scranton Central High School, LC has revitalized these buildings, creating diverse and
economic benefits to the City. The establishment of a mobile esports arena in The Peoples
Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna College will continue to boost the economy of the region
with the numerous collegiate esports competitors and spectators who will come to the region.
The hotels, restaurants and bars will be filled with thousands of visitors a year, resultingin a
tremendous economic growth for Scranton and all of Northeastern Pennsylvania.
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2. Project Schedule and Timeline
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Addenda 2
LSA Timeline
Upon the LSA award announcement, LC will open the bidding process.
Bids will be awarded two weeks later.
The final phase of the purchase and installation of the innovative esports technology into the Peoples

Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna College will start in March 2020 and is scheduled to be completed
before the end of April 2020
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3. Project Budget
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Addenda 3
Local Share Grant Budget

Gaming Mouse with Fully Customizable
Surface

Expenses—Machinery and Equipment | # of Cost per ltem Total Cost
: ltems

DellEMC

New Alienware 25 Gaming Monitor 13 S 479.89 S 6,238.57

Alienware AURORA R8 13 S 2,158.99 S 28,066.87

Alienware Extra Large Gaming-Mouse 13 S 25.79 S 335.27

Pads

Alienware Pro Gaming Keyboard 13 S 86.79 S 1,123.07

Subtotal S 35,763.78

JP Lilley

Digital Projection 21K lumens laser 2 S 25,495.00 S 50,990.00

projector

Digital Projection Long Throw.Lens 2 S 3,995.00 S 7,990.00

Projector Mounting Hardwear 2 S 275.00 S 550.00

Chauvet Rogue Moving Effects Head 12 S 1,395.00 S 16,740.00

Chauvet Wash Pixel Moving Head 6 S 4,495.00 S 26,970.00

Elation Obsidian Lighting Console 1 S 8,250.00 S 8,250.00

Flation Obsidian EN12 Ethernet to DMX | 2 S 1,150.00 S 2,300.00

gateway

Generico 12 Inch Box Truss 5 Foot Silver | 5 S 498.00 S 2,490.00

Generico 12 Inch Box Truss 10 Foot 3 S 598.00 S 1,794.00

Silver '

Generico 6 Way Corner Block Silver 2 S 475.00 S 950.00

Applied Electronics 36 Inch Base Plate 2 S 395.00 S 790.00

Silver

Newtek Instant Replay System with 1 $ 14,500.00 S 14,500.00

Controller

Glensound Beatrice D4 Intercom 1 S 1,495.00 S 1,495.00

Desktop Station )

Sharp 60 Inch Display 1 S 995.00 S 995.00

Subtotal S$136,804.00
Schaedler Yesco Distribution

APC Smart-UPS VT Rack Mount 1 S 16,719.90 S 16,719.90

APC Rack PDU, Basic 4 S 240.903 | S 960.37

Subtotal S 17,680.27
. Amazon

Logitech G502 Proteus Core Turnable 13 S 54,99 S 714.87
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HyperXAlpha Cloud Gaming Headset S 88.37 S 441.85
HyperX Cloud |l Gaming Headset S 99.99 S 499,95
Subtotal S 1,656.67
Best Buy

HyperX-Cloud Alpha Wired Stereo S 88.99 S 266.97
Gaming Headset

Subtotal S 266.97
Administration Expenses

Audit S 1,000.00 S 1,000.00
City of Scranton Grant Administration S 1,100.00 S 1,000.00
Fee

Total Expenses $193,904.72
Revenue

Local Share Account—Monroe County S 193,904.72
Total Revenue $ 193,904.72

Technology in the Peoples Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna College will be upgraded to provide a
state-of-the-art esports competition venue, while not changing the historical nature of the theater. LCis
asking for $193,904.72 for the final phase of the project. In the first stage of the project, the College will
spend an estimated $450,000 for additional state-of-the-art technology for the first phase of the project.

Erom the grant funding, $191,904.72 will be spent on technology including $37,763.78 on gaming
computers and peripherals including monitors and mouse pads from DellEMC. From JP Lilley $60,284
will be spent for the lighting and quality control console which includes 12 Chauvet Rogue Moving
Effects Heads, 6 Chauvet Wash Pixel Moving Heads, 1 Elation Obsidian Lighting Console, 2 Elation
Obsidian EN 12 Ethernet to DMX gateway, 5 Generico 12 Inch Box Truss 5 foot Silver, 3 Generico 12 Inch
Box Truss 10 Foot Silver, 2 Generico 6 Way Corner Block Silver and 2 Applied Electronics 36 Inch Base
Plate Silver; $59,530 for the projection and main stream which includes 2 Digital Projection 21K lumens
laser projectors, 2 Digital Projection Long Throw Lens and 2 Projector Mounting Hardwear; $14,500 for a
Newtek Instant Replay System with Controller for the Broadcast booth; green room technology at
$2,490 which includes 1 Glensound Beatrice D4 Intercom Desktop Station and a Sharp 60 Inch Display
for a total of $136,804. The APC Smart-UPS VT Rack Mount costing $16,719 and four APC Rack PDU at
$240.093 each for a total of $17,680.27 from Schaedler Yesco Distribution. Thirteen Logitech Gaming
Mouse devices at $54.99 each, five HyperX Cloud Alpha Gaming Headsets at $88.37 each and five
HyperX Cloud Il Gaming Headsets at $99.99 each will be purchased at Amazon for a total of $1,656.67.
Plus three HyperX-Cloud Alpha Wired Stereo Gaming Headsets at $88.99 each will be purchased at Best
Buy for a total of $266.97. The additional $1,000 will be utilized for the required grant audit, and $1,000
will be paid for grant administration to the City of Scranton.
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4.Bids/Quotes, Estimates
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JP Lilley Inc

DELLEMC

Schaedler Yesco Distribution
Amazon

Best Buy

Addenda 4
Budget Estimates
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»2009 N 3rd Street
Harrisburg, PA 17102
Ph: (717) 238-8123
Fax: (717) 238-3770

1230 Remington Avenue
Scranton, PA 18505

Ph: (570) 344-8293

Fax: (570) 346-3744
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Quote Number: 2231002
Quote Date: 9/27/2019
T Quote by: Joe Jackson

Email; joe,jackson@jplilley.com

Valid Until: 1/1/2020
Terms: 50/50
Quote Subject: Esports Theater

Scranton, PA 18503

Attention: Joya Whittington
Phone:
Email: WhittingtonJ@lackawanna.edu

Scranton, PA 18503

Contact: Accounts Payable
Phone:

Cell:

Email:

R T i A R L s e ee o Sutt R D L v |
INVOICE TO: SHIP TO:

Lackawanna College Lackawanna College

501 Vine St. 501 Vine St.

Projection and Main Screen

Quantity Part Number Description Price Subtotal
2 M-Vision 21000 Digital Projection 21K lumens laser projector $25,495,00 $50,990.00
Consideration should be given to substitute two of the
edge blending 1080 projectors with two 4K resolution
projectors. An added cost of $49,000 would be required.
2 Digital Projection Long Throw Lens $3,995.00 $7,990.00
2 Projector Mounting Hardware $275.00 $550.00
Projection and Main Screen Total: $59,530.00
Lighting and Control Console
Quantity Part Number Descripfion Price Subtotal
12 Rogue R1 FX-B Chauvet Rogue Moving Effects Head $1,395.00 $16,740.00
6 Maverick MK3 Wash Chauvet Wash Pixel Moving Head $4,495.00 $26,970.00
1 NX2 - Elation Obsidian Lighting Console $8,250.00 $8,250.00
2 EN12 Elation Obsidian EN12 Ethernet to DMX gateway $1,150.00 $2,300.00
5 TBD Generico 12 Inch Box Truss 5 Foot Silver $498.00 $2,490.00
3 TBD Generico 12 Inch Box Truss 10 Foot Silver $598.00 $1,794.00
2 TBD Generico 8 Way Gorner Block Silver $475.00 $950.00
2 Applied Electronics 36 Inch Base Plate Silver $395.00 $790.00
Lighting and Control Console Total: $60,284.00

Page 1 of 3
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Broadcast Booth / Streaming

Quantity Part Number Description Price Subtotal
1 3Play 425 Newtek Instant Replay System with Controller $14,500.00 $14,500.00
Broadcast Booth / Streaming Total: $14,500.00
Green Room
Quantity Part Number Description ' Price Subtotal
1 Beatrice D4 Glensound Beatrice D4 Intercom Desktop Station $1,495.00 $1,495.00
For Greenroom Communications
1 PNUH601 Sharp 60 Inch Display $995.00 $995.00
For main fournament content monitoring.
Green Room Total: $2,490.00
Misc: $0.00
Subtotal: $136,804.00
Tax: $0.00
Job Total: $136,804.00

\ J'LJJMF‘ EEJ ”M E .[j_“-'! e |
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' Proposal
2009 N 3rd Street

Ha'rrisburg. PA 17102 S Quote Number: 2231002
i .(717) £3B123 LA S ine Quote Date: 9/27/2019
Fax: (717) 238-3770 i s Quote by: Joe Jackson

- video ~ audio Email: joe.jackson@jplilley.com
é%?gniimg\ﬁtggsﬁvsenue Valid Until: 1/1/2020

! Terms: 50/50 .
ESX(?g$%)3§Zé8327924 Quote Subject: Esports Theater

Ordering Information and Payment Terms:
Ordering:

JP Lilley & Son, Inc requires a copy of the client's "Purchase Order" to process an order. If a purchase order is not available from the
customer, an authorized client representative must submit a written letter of infent of purchase before an order is processed. Authorized
signatures may be faxed from a JP Lilley & Son, Inc. quotation form.

Payment Terms:
JP Lilley & Son, Inc. requires the above payment terms.

New customers need to submit a credit application with the purchase in order to apply for terms. Please note: no equipment will be
ordered until the following paperwork and payment has been received: '

+ Customer purchase order
+ Signed acceptance of this document
+ Deposit or full payment if required by the stated terms

Paperwork and deposits may be delivered to your Account Manager or sent to:

JP Lilley & Son, Inc.
PO Box 62280
Harrisburg, PA 17106-2280

Finance Charge:

A service charge of 1 1/2% per month, 18% per annum will be accessed on past due accounts.

Warranties:

JP Lilley & Son, Inc., warranties system installation workmanship for one (1) year from date of completion. All manufacturers' warranties
are in effect as of the final invoice date. : :

Preventative Maintenance Plans:

To assure the best support on your investment, Preventative Maintenance Plans are available, upon request, on all systems installed by
JP Lilley & Son, Inc. For mare details and a price quote on our support plans, please contact your Account Manager.

Return Policy:

If equipment is defective or damnaged upon receipt, these items shall be returned for equal replacements. Returned items are subject to
a manufacturer approval. Non-defective returned items are subject to manufacturer approval of 25% manufacturer restocking fee.
Custom products are non-returnable. lterns must be returned in original cartons with all original packing materials and accessories. All
requests for stich returns must be made within 10 days of invoice date. After 10 days, manufacturer's warranty shall apply.

Accepted By:

Name: PO: Date: / /

Signature: Title:

Page 3 of 3 Printed 9/27/2019 5:19 PM



A quote for your consideration.

Based on your business needs, we put the following quote together to help with your
purchase decision. Below is a detailed summary of the quote we've created to help you with

your purchase decision.

To proceed with this quote, you may respond to this email, order online through your

Premier page, or, if you do not have Premier, use this Quote to Order.

Quote No. 3000047223799.1 Sales Rep
Total $35,763.78 Phone
Customer # 6675534 Email
Quated On Sep. 27, 2019 Billing To
Expires by Oct. 27, 2019

Message from your Sales Rep

Please contact your Dell sales representative if you have any questions or when you're ready to place an order.

Thank you for shopping with Dell!

Regards,
Jackie Bassett

Jackie Bassett

(800) 456-3355, 7254119
Jackie Bassett@Dell.com
ACCOUNT PAYABLE
LACKAWANNA COLLEGE
501 VINE ST
SCRANTON, PA 18509-3206

Shipping Group

Shipping To Shipping Method
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Standard Delivery
LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

MAIN CAMPUS

501 VINE ST

SCRANTON, PA 18509-3206
(570) 961-7822

Product

Alienware Extra Large Gaming - Mouse
pad

Alienware Pro Gaming Keyboard:
AW768

New Alienware 25 Gaming Monitor:
AW2518H

Alienware AURORA R8

Unit Price

$25.79

$86.39

$479.89

$2,158.99

Qty

13

13

13

13

Subtotal

$335.27

$1,123.07

$6,238.57

$28,066.87
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Subtotal: $35,763.78

Shipping: $0.00
Non-Taxable Amount: $35,763.78
Taxable Amount: $0.00
Estimated Tax: $0.00

Total: $35,763.78

Special lease pricing may be available for qualified customers and offers. Please contact your DFS
Sales Representative for details.
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Shipping Group Details

Shipping To Shipping Method
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Standard Delivery
LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

MAIN CAMPUS

501 VINE ST

SCRANTON, PA 18509-3206
(570) 961-7822

66

Alilenware Extra Large Gaming - Mouse pad
Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Oct, 09, 2018

Contract # 78ADB 2

Customer Agreement # COSTARS003-051

Description

Alienware Extra Large Gaming - Mouse pad

Alienware Pro Gaming Keyboard: AW768
Estimated delivery if purchased today:

QOct. 08, 2018

Coniract # 78ADB

Customer Agreement # COSTARS003-051

Description
Alienware Pro Gaming Keyboard: AW768

New Alienware 25 Gaming Monitor: AW2518H
Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Qct. 08, 2019

Contract # 78ADB

Customer Agreement # COSTARS003-051

Description
New Alienware 25 Gaming Monitor: AW2518H

Alienware AURORA R8

Estimated delivery if purchased today:

Oct. 16, 2019

Contract # 78ADB

Customer Agreement # COSTARS003-051

Description
Alienware Aurora R8

8th Gen Intel(R) Core(TM) i7 9700K (8-Core, 12MB Cache,
Overclocked up to 4.6GHz across all cores)

Windows 10 Pro (84bit) English

No Option Included

SKU
A9581761

SKU
580-AGJP

SKU
210-AMSR

SKU
210-ARGS

338-BSXJ

619-AHCR
340-ACQQ

Alienware 850 Watt Power Supply with High Performance Liquid 391-BEWM

Cooling

NVIDIA GeForce RTX 2070 8GB GDDRS (OC Ready)
16GB (2x8GB) DDR4 2666MHz UDIMM Non-ECC
Killer 1535 2x2 802.11ac Wi-Fi Wireless + Bluetooth 4.2

256GB M.2 PCle NVMe SSD (Boot) + 1TB 7200RPM SATA
6Gb/s (Storage)

490-BFJN
370-ADUB
555-BCRM

400-BCFJ

$25.79

Unit Price

$86.39

Unit Price

$479.89

Unit Price

$2,158.99

Unit Price

Qty
13

Qty
13

Qty
13

Qty
13

Qty
13

Qty

13
Qty
13

Qty
13

13

13
13

13

13
13

13

13

Subtotal
$335.27

Subtotal

Subtotal
$1,123.07

Subtotal

Subtotal
$6,238.57

Subtotal

Subtotal
$28,066.87

Subtotal

Page 3
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Not selected in this configuration 817-BBBC - 13 -
Keyboard Not Included 580-ABUI - 13 -
Alienware Mouse Is Not Included 570-AACN - 13 -
US Power Cord 450-AAGO - 13 -
Quiick Start Guide 340-CKSR - 13 -
Thank you for Choosing Dell 800-BBEV - 13 -
No Optian Included 340-ACQQA - 13 -
Wireless Driver for Killer 1535 555-BEQK - 13 -

Safety/Environment and Regulatory Guide (English/French

Multi-language) 340-AGIK ) 19 h
No FGA é17—BBBB - 13 -
Dell.com Order 332-1530 - 13 -
Shipping Material 340-BYWQ - 13 -
Regulatory Label 389-DOSG - 13 -
(ntel(R) Core(TM) i7 Processor Label 340-CKVM - 13 -
Additional Software 658-BCUO - 13 -
Not ENERGY STAR Quialified 817-BBBP - 13 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Initial Year 801-1493 - 13 -
ProSupport: Next Business Day Onsite, 1 Year 801-1508 - 13 -
ProSupport; Next Business Day Onsite, 2 Year Extended 801-1529 - 13 -
ProSupport: 7x24 Technical Support, 3 Years 8011579 - 13 -
Dell Limited Hardware Warranty Extended Year(s) 975-3461 - 13 -
Thank you choosing Dell ProSupport. For tech support, visit 089-3449 - 13 R

Jlsupport.dell.com/ProSupport or call 1-866-516-3115

Subtotal: $35,763.78
Shipping: $0.00
Estimated Tax: $0.00

Total: $35,763.78
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Important Notes

Terms of Sale

Unless you have a separate written agreement that specifically applies to this order, your order will be subject to and governed by the following
agreements, each of which are Incorparated herein by reference and available in hardcopy from Dell at your request: Dell's Terms of Sale,

which Include a binding consumer arbitration provision and incorporate Dell's U.8, Return Policy and Warranly {for Gonsumer warranties; for
Commercial warranties).

If this purchase includes software: in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of the software is subject to the ficense terms
accompanying the softwars, and in the absence of such terms, then use of the Dell-branded application softwars is subject to the Dell End
User License Agreement - Type A and use of the Dell-branded system software is subject to the Dell End Usei License Agreement - Type S.

f your purchase is for Mozy, in addltién to the foregoing applicable terms, your use of the Mozy seivice is subject to the terms and conditions
located at https://mozy.com/about/legaliterms. 3

If your purchase is for Boorni services or support, your use of the Boomi Services (and related professional service) is subject to the terms and
conditions located at https://boomi.cam/msa.

If your purchase is for-Secureworks services or support, your use of the Secureworks services (and related professional service) is subject to
the terms and conditions located at https://www.secureworks.com/eula/eula-us,

Ifthis purchase is for (a) a storage product identified in the DELL EMC Satisfaction Guarantse Terms and Conditions located at  (“Salisfaction
Guarantee”) and (ii) three (3) years of a ProSupport Service for such storage product, in addition to the foregoing applicable terms, such
storage product is subject to the Satisfaction Guarantee.

You acknowledge having read and agree to be bound by the foregoing applicable terms in their entirety. Any terms and conditions set forth in
your purchase order or any other correspondence that are In addftion to, inconsistent or in conflict with, the foregoing applicable online terms
will be of no force or effect unless specifically agreed to in a writing signed by Delf that expressly references such terms.

Pricing, Taxes, and Additional Information

All product, pricing, and other information is valid for U.S, customers and U.8. addresses only, and is based on the latest information available
and may be subject to change. Dell reserves the right to cancsl quotes and orders atising from pricing or other errors. Please indicate any tax-
exempt status on your PO, and fax your exemption certificate, including your Customer Number, to the Dell Tax Department at 800-433-8023.
Please ensure that your tax-exemption certificate reflects the cotrect Dell entity name: Dell Marketing L.P.

Note: All tax quoted above is an estimate; final taxes will be listed on the involce.
If you have any questions regarding tax please send an e-mail to  Tax_Depariment@deli.com.

For certain products shipped to end-users in Galifornia, a State Environmental Fee will be applied to your invoice. Dell encourages customers
to dispose of electronic equipment properly.

Page 5 Dell Marketing LP. U.S. only. Dell Marketing LP. s iocaled al Ona Dell Way, Mail Stop 8129, Round Rock, TX 78682
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SCHAEDLER YESCO DISTRIBUTION Quotation
RGN
QUOTE DATE QUOTE HUMBER
HARRISBURG, PA 17111-0990
717“233"1621 FaX 717"‘233"1626 03 / 05/19 95344794
REMIT TO: PAGE 110.
schaadlex Yesco Distribution
3982 Paxbon St
PO BOX 4990 1
HARRISBORG PA 17111-03950
QUOTE TO: SHIP TO:
LACKAWANNA COLLEGE LACKAWANNA COLLEGE
501 VINE ST 501 VINE ST
SCRANTON, PA 18509 SCRANTON, PA 18509
CUSTOMER HUMBER J0B HAME REQUESTED BY
78603 35168 - Dave Karr
VWRITER SHIP VIA TERMS SHIP DATE IS FREIGHT ALLOWED?
RANDY STAMM | SCRN-1DLY gtandard 10th Prox No
ORDER QTY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE HET AMOUHT
1EA| APC SUVTR20KF3B5S 16719.902EA 16719.90
APC SMART-UPS VT RACK MOUNT
20kVA 208V W/3 BATTERY MODULES
EXP. TO 5, W/PDU & STARTUP
AEA| APC AP7530 240.093EA 960.37
RACK PDU, BASIC, ZERO U, 20A, 120V,
(24)5-20
TAXES NOT INCLUDED
If you have any questions regarding this
quotation, please contact Randy Stamm
via email at rstamme@sydist.com or via
phone at extension 2463.
Prices are pre-tax and are firm for 30 days unless Subtotal| 17680.27
noted. Pipe and wire prices valid for 24 hours. Due to
tariffs, lighting prices valid for 7 days. Availability
may differ at time of order. Returns may result in a _
restocking charge. See www.sydist.com for our Terms. Bid Total| 17680.27
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9/30/2019 Amazon.com Shopping Cart
ol
L] .
Try Prime
EN Hello, Sign in 23
Best Sellers  Giftldeas New Releases «| Account & Lists -~ Orvders Try Prime v Cart
0 |
e
Get a $50 Current  $ 1,656.67 ’ Your order qualifies for FREE Shipping. :
ArMazan .o Gift Total: Choose this option at checkout, See details
Card instantly upon savings: - § 50.00 ‘—’—AW
approval for the Cost $ 1,606,67 - Subtotal (23 items): $1,656.67
Amazon Rewards ’S“’te_r ) (J This order contains a gift
Visa Card avingss
[ Proceed to checkout J
Price
HyperX Cloud Alpha Gaming Headset - $88.37 ‘

Your recently viewed items
Dual Chamber Drivers - Award Winning

Comfort - Durable Aluminum Frame - HyperX Cloud Alpha

Detachable Microphone - Works with PC, T z1

PS4, PS4 PRO, Xhox One, Xbox One S .

(HX-HSCA-RD/AM)

In Stock

Eligible for FREE Shipping . .

(7} This is a gift Learn more Logitech GSOZGZ{SERO
Qty: 5 Delete  Save for later $53.79

HyperX Cloud If Gaming Headset ~ 7.1 $99.99

Surround Sound - Memory Foam Ear St Tecthcom 103

Pads - Durable Aluminum Frame - Multi

51
Platform Headset - Works with PC, PS4, \@ $34.18
PS4 PRO, Xbhox One, Xhox One S - Red e

(KHX-HSCP-RD)

fn Stock
Eligible for FREE Shipping Tripp Lite DisplayPort to
() This is a gift Learn more 2

Qty: 5§ Delete  Save for later $26.57

Compare with similar items

s Add to Cart

Logitech G502 Proteus Core Tunable $54.99
Garmning Mouse with Fully Customizable

Surface, Weight and Balance Tuning

in Stock

Eligible for FREE Shipping

() This is a gift Learn more

Delete  Save for later

Compare with similar items

BUFFALO TeraStation 1400D Desktop 4 TB NAS with Hard Drives Incl... was removed from Shopping
Cart.

Subtotal (23 items): $1,656.67

The price and avallability of items at Amazon.com are subject to change. The Cart is a temporary place to store a list
of your items and reflects each item’s riost recent price, Learn more
Do you have a gift card or promotlonal cade? We'll ask you to enter your claim code when it's time to pay.

Customers who shopped for HyperX Cloud Alpha Page 1 of 3
Gaming Headset - Dual Chambe... also shapped for:

hitps://www.amazon.com/g p/cartiview.html?ref_=nav_cart 118
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9/30/2019 Cart - Best Buy

Top Deals Dealof theDay Credit Cards  For Your Business  Gift Cards  Gift Ideas

Search Best Buy Q Scrantan PA Open till 9 pm 3 Cart
Products Brands Deals Services Account Shopping History Order Status Saved ltems
Your Cart Gheckotit
= [tems (3)
HyperX - Cloud Alpha Wired (O Pick up at Scranton - Change Store yur i $266.97
Stereo Gaming Headset for PC Order now and it will be ready for pickup Sun, Oct 6 ‘ 3 ; ($88.99 each)
R g Available Sat, Oct 6 at a store 37 miles away © &k - :
PS4, Xbox One and Nintendo Ratmave Save $33
Switch - Red/black (O FREE Shipping to 18518 - Update Location Save for Later Was $2_9(“;‘?7_
Gt by ied, 0ct2fyou order ithin 12 s 10 minutes $44.50/mo,”
Next-Day Delivery Is also available in checkout

Suggested monthly payments
with 8-Month financlng

Show me how >
- Got everything you need?

'Geel 9-Year Geek Squad Product Replacement $9.99
iSQUAD’ Learn more | Terms & Conditions
HyperX - Alloy FPS RGB Mechanical Gaming $109.99
EEms  Wired Kailh Speed Silver Switch Keyboard with
RGB Back Lighting - Black ‘
A.8(62) Save for Later |
___ HyperX - Fury § Pro Gaming Mouse Pad (Extra $20.99 |
B - | Large) - Black ’
' Save for Later I
o o . - . 3. o =P
10% back in rewards Today's Savings $33.00
on first day of purchases or flexible financing for new My Best Buy® Product Total $266.97
Cardmembers. )
Learn more» j
Checkout
Or pay with
B Pay P Gheckout
Sign in or create an account how to get My Best Buy™ Paints
People also bought

Page1of 3

hitps://www.bestbuy.com/cart 112



5. City Planning Support Lettet

72



CRE RN LY ANA

BUREAU OF CITY PLANNING

73

CITY HALL : 340 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE : SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 18503 : PHONE 570-348-4280 ; FAX 570-348-4171

September 30, 2019

Cathy Wechsler

Manager of Corporate, Foundation & Government Relations
Lackawanna College

501 Vine St.

Scranton, Pa 18848

Re:  Lackawanna College
Local Share Grant

Please accept this letter as evidence of support for your Local Share Grant funds application for
funding to undertake improvements to The Peoples Security Bank Theater at Lackawanna
College. Lackawanna College has played a large part in the revitalization of downtown Scranton.
The College has continued to restore timeworn, underutilized buildings in the downtown for
modern use as residential housing facilities, classroom space and a state-of-the-art Student
Union. This project will further the works of the College in revitalizing the city of Scranton
downtown business district.

We have determined that your project is consistent with our comprehensive plan and specifically
the stated goals of rehabilitating and repurposing underutilized buildings and expanding
educational opportunities in Northeast Pennsylvania. Further after a review of the project

activities we have found that the project would be consistent with our zoning and planning
requirements.

Good luck with your application. If you have any further needs or questions please do not
hesitate to contact me at 570-348-4280 or dking@scrantonpa.gov.

Sincerely,

Donald J. King, AICP, CFM
City Planner
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PENNSYLVANIA CITYHALL » 340 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE o SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 18503 ® PHONE: 570-348-4101 » FAX: 570-348-4251

September 30, 2019

Cathy Wechsler
Lackawanna College
501 Vine Street
Scranton, PA 18509

RE: LSA Grant Application (Monroe County) — Lackawanna College
Mobile E-Sports Arena

Dear Ms. Wechsler:

It is my pleasure to offer the support of the City of Scranton for the Lackawanna College
Mobile-E-Sports Arena. The City is committed to expanding services that meet the needs of our
community through public interest, community improvement, economic development, and
roadway improvement projects.

The proposed project plan to create an E-Sports Arena space certainly supports and enhances
community and economic well-being which is the very purpose of the LSA Grant.

Lackawanna College meets a public need for the City of Scranton and beyond. The City’s
Administration is in full support of this project and looks forward to working with you.

Sincerely,

é/% vﬁ?ﬁ '

Wayne E. Evans
Mayor

“Every day is our chance to make the City a [ittle better.”
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7. Legislation
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Resolution

Please Note: Upon approval by Scranton City
Council, legislation will be submitted regarding this
application.
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8. Funding Commitment Letter
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9. Applicant Financials
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

SINGLE AUDIT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Trustees of
Lackawanna College
Scranton, Pennsylvania

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Lackawanna College which
comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the related

statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to

the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

E’gﬂ;ﬁ ﬁnﬂvx[i"a"“‘“— RbM us Aﬂlancc prondcs. i m:mbcmmih acciEd la nsourccs vF RSM IJS LL'P RSH' US :\H'an:«. Huimber firms Sre sn:pzuatc end 1)1dcpcndmt busihesses an&.‘»
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To the Board of Trustees of
Lackawanna College
Scranton, Pennsylvania

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lackawanna College as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements
as a whole. The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional
analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
November 8, 2018 on our consideration of Lackawanna College’s internal conftrol over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and
not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering Lackawanna College’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Rl s

Scranton, Pennsylvania
November 8, 2018
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCTAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

ASSETS

2018
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,758,068
Student accounts receivable, less
allowance for doubtful accounts

of $111,089 and $22,313, respectively 595,458
Grants receivable 2,157,243
Other receivables 129,185
Prepaid expenses 411,771

Total current assets 10,651,725
Cash restricted for programs and scholarship fund 925,462
Investments 8,436,984
Land, buildings and equipment, net 40,346,349

Other assets

Contributions receivable 351,058
Beneficial interest in charitable trust 166,694
Loans receivable 340,064
Total other assets 857,816
Total assets $61,218,336

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

3.
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2017

$ 5,213,144

434,679
20,988
96,936

714,889

6,480,636
1,026,865
8,168,561

35,271,226

590,849
160,962
334,248

1,086,059

852,033,347
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION - (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2018 2017
Current liabilities
Line of credit $ 2,406,753 $ z
Current portion of obligations under capital lease 53,756 -
Current portion of long-term debt 848,769 1,252,475
Accounts payable 1,142,555 789,138
Accrued construction expenses 1,768,452 -
Other accrued expenses 453,272 308,643
Deferred tuition 528,334 290,852
Total current liabilities 7,201,891 2,641,108
Other liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion 16,695,692 15,957,868
Less unamortized debt issuance costs 457,092 427,026
Long-term debt, net 16,238,600 15,530,842
Obligations under capital lease 180,068 -
Federal government advance for student loans 407,220 387,296
Total other liabilities 16,825,888 15,918,138
Total liabilities 24,027,779 18,559,246
Net assets
Unrestricted
Undesignated 8,727,269 7,910,848
Net investment in land, buildings and equipment 20,799,612 18,042,201
Board designated endowment fund 6,160,462 5,682,376
Total unrestricted 35,687,343 31,635,425
Temporarily restricted 1,443,214 1,778,676
Permanently restricted endowment funds 60,000 60,000
Total net assets 37,190,557 33,474,101
Total liabilities and net assets $61,218,336 $52,033,347

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Operating activities
Increase (decrease) in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Net realized (gain) loss on disposal of assets
Net realized gain on sale of investments
Net unrealized gain on investments
Loss from early extinguishment of debt
Provision for doubtful accounts
Change in beneficial interest in charitable trust
Note receivable write off
Decrease (increase) in operating assets:
Student accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Other receivables
Prepaid expenses
Contributions receivable
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued construction expenses
Other accrued expenses
Deferred tuition

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities

Change in cash restricted for programs and scholarship fund

Note receivable payments
Proceeds from sale of investments
Purchase of investments
Purchase of fixed assets
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Principal collected on student loans
Net cash used in investing activities

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

6.
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2018 2017

$ 3,716,456 $ (1,169,297)
2,027,773 2,611,974
(21,644) 11,669
(186,588) (126,405)
(146,517) (243,538)

89,721 :
88,276 500
(5,732) (8,796)
; 208,550
(249,055) 79,106
(2,736,255) 14,242
(32,249) 13,020
303,118 (130,387)
239,791 (158,872)
353,417 361,531

1,768,452 -
144,629 75,468
237,482 2,506
5,591,075 1,541,271
101,403 79,528
- 15,100
1,169,318 610,127
(1,104,636) (847,328)
(7,098,167) (2,476,320)
49,726 501,007
(5,816) 24,859
(6,888,172) (2,093,027)




LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - (CONTINUED)

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2018 AND 2017

Financing activities
Proceeds from capital lease
Proceeds from line of credit
Proceeds from debt
Principal payments on capital lease
Principal payments on long-term debt
Debt issuance costs
Net receipts from Federal government advances
for student loans
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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2018 2017

$ 300,709 $ "

2,406,753 -
1,226,503 1,054,454
(66,885) (35,163)
(892,385) (1,100,614)
(152,598) (72,033)
19,924 (41,681)
2,842,021 (195,037)
1,544,924 (746,793)
5,213,144 5,959,937
$ 6,758,068 $ 5,213,144




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Nature of Operations

Lackawanna College (the College), founded in 1894, is an accredited private, non-
profit educational institution located in Scranton, Pennsylvania with five branch campuses in
surrounding counties. The College provides opportunities for career and personal

development within selected associate and baccalaureate degree, certificate and continuing
education programs.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include short-term deposits with original maturities of
three months or less.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The College establishes an allowance for uncollectible student accounts receivable
based on historical collection percentages and management's evaluation of collectibility.

Investments

Equity securities with readily determinable fair values and debt securities are valued
at fair value based on quoted market prices. Adjustments to reflect increases or decreases in

market value, referred to as unrealized gains and losses, are reported in the Statements of
Activities.

The cost of investments received as gifts is fair value as determined upon receipt.
The cost of investments sold is determined by use of the specific identification method.

All realized gains and losses arising from the sale of investments and ordinary
income from investments are reported as changes in unrestricted net assets unless their use is
temporarily or permanently restricted by explicit donor imposed stipulations.
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Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

Land, Buildings and Equipment

Land, buildings and equipment purchases are capitalized at cost. Donations of land,
buildings or equipment are recorded at estimated fair value and are included in support unless

restricted to a specific purpose. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line method over
the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Collection items are capitalized at cost, if purchased, or at their fair value, if
contributed. Gains or losses from deaccessions of these items are reflected on the Statement

of Activities as a change in the appropriate net asset classes, depending on the existence and
type of donor-imposed restrictions.

Promises to Give

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to be collected in future years are
recorded at the present value of estimated future cash flows and are due in one to five years.

Contributions receivable amounted to $351,058 and $590,849, at June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable is the Title IV revolving loan fund for the Perkins program and
represents loans made to students and the corresponding repayments.

Debt Issuance Costs

Costs related to acquiring the College’s financing have been deferred and are being
amortized over the lives of the loans.

T.ong-Lived Assets

The College reviews the carrying value of long-lived assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amounts of the assets might not be
recoverable.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use by the College have been
limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. Permanently restricted net assets have
been restricted by donors to be maintained by the College in perpetuity.

Recognition of Donor-Restricted Contributions

Support that is restricted by the donor is reported as an increase in unrestricted net
assets if the restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in temporarily or permanently
restricted net assets depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets.
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Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

Advertising

All advertising costs are expensed as incurred. For the years ended June 30, 2018
and 2017, advertising expense amounted to $589,559 and $554,991, respectively.

Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes

cash and highly liquid money market funds and excludes temporarily and permanently
restricted cash and cash equivalents.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the College paid interest of $687,732, which
includes interest in the amount of $230,348 that was capitalized. For the year ended June 30,

2017, the College paid interest of $577,477, which includes interest in the amount of
$117,274 that was capitalized.

Income Taxes

The College is exempt from Federal and State income taxes under Section 501(c)(3)
of the Internal Revenue Code.

In accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards Board guidance on
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes, management evaluated the College’s tax
positions and concluded that the College had taken no uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the financial statements to comply with the provisions of this guidance. With
few exceptions, the College is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S.
federal, state or local tax authorities for years before 2014.

Subsequent Events

The College has evaluated subsequent events through November 8, 2018, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued
Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.
This new accounting guidance outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue from contracts with customers. ASU No. 2014-09 is effective for the
College for fiscal 2020. BEarly application is permitted for fiscal years beginning after

December 15, 2016. The College is assessing the impact this new standard will have on its
financial statements.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958):
Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The new guidance is intended
to improve and simplify the current net asset classification requirements and information
presented in financial statements and notes that is useful in assessing a not-for-profit's
liquidity, financial performance and cash flows. ASU 2016-14 is effective for the College for
fiscal 2019, with early adoption permitted. ASU 2016-14 is to be applied retroactively with
transition provisions. The College is assessing the impact this standard will have on its
financial statements.

10.
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Note 1 - Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements - (Continued)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases. ASU No. 2016-02
was issued to increase transparency and comparability among entities. Lessees will need to
recognize nearly all lease transactions (other than leases that meet the definition of a short-
term lease) on the statement of financial position as a lease lability and a right-of-use asset
(as defined). Lessor accounting under the new guidance will be similar to the current model.
ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for the College for fiscal 2021. Early application is permitted.
Upon adoption, lessees and lessors will be required to recognize and measure leases at the
begiming of the earliest period presented using a modified retrospective approach, which
includes a number of optional practical expedients that entities may elect to apply. The
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College is assessing the impact this standard will have on its financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year's

presentation.

Note 2 - Investments

Investments consisted of the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017:

2018 2017
Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
Unrestricted
Undesignated funds
U.S. Agencies $ 216776 $ 209,196 $§ 272,189 § 269,131
Corporate bonds 1,350,997 1,318,843 1,392,304 1,401,001
Mutual funds 140,414 140,000 161,398 147,303
Equities 494,572 618,652 541,873 670,179
2,202,759 2,286,691 2,367,764 2,487,614
Board designated endowment fund
U.S. Agencies 801,502 780,597 732,162 735,767
Corporate bonds 1,313,494 1,298,148 1,183,042 1,205,658
Mutual funds 345,968 537,969 495,968 665,728
Equities 2,061,505 3,473,579 1,823,786 3,013,794
4,522,469 6,090,293 4,235,558 5,620,947
Permanently restricted
Cash 60,000 60,000 60,000 60,000
Total investments $ 6,785,228 $ 8,436,984 § 6,663,322 $ 8,168,561

11.



Note 2 - Investments - (Continued)

The following schedule summarizes the investment return for the years ended June 30, 2018
and 2017.

93

Unrestricted 2018 2017
Undesignated funds
Tnterest and dividends ' $ 91,223 $ 79,613
Realized and unrealized (losses) gains on investments (18,585) 25,117
Total undesignated funds 72,638 104,730
Board designated endowment fund
Interest and dividends 151,900 134,555
Realized and unrealized gains on investments 357,422 353,622
Total Board designated endowment fund 509,322 488,177
Total unrestricted investment income $ 581,960 $ 592,907

Note 3 - Beneficial Interest in Charitable Trust

The College receives income from a charitable trust held by a third party; it is not the sole
beneficiary of the trust. Under the terms of the trust, the College has the irrevocable right to receive
its stated portion of the income earned on the trust’s assets. Upon termination of the trust, the College
will receive its portion of the remaining trust assets. The beneficial interest in the trust at June 30,
2018 and 2017, in the amount of $166,694 and $160,962, respectively, was recorded at fair value,
measured by the present value of estimated future distributions. '

Note 4 - Land, Buildings and Equipment

Land, buildings and equipment consisted of the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Depreciable
2018 2017 Lives

Land, buildings and improvements $49,883,847  $49,114,361 20-40 Years

Equipment 10,185,628 8,808,628 3-10 Years
Collection items 62,800 62,800
Construction in progress 9,008,327 4,066,428
69,140,602 62,142,217
Less: Accumulated depreciation 28,794,253 26,870,991

Land, buildings and
equipment, net $ 40,346,349 $ 35,271,226

Depreciation expense amounted to $1,988,903 and $2,570,902 for the years ended June 30,
2018 and 2017, respectively.

Construction in progress at June 30, 2018 and 2017 consisted of costs incurred for the Adams
Avenue property and various other smaller projects.

12.



Note 5 - Short-Term Debt

The College has a line of credit available in the amount of $500,000 at June 30, 2018 and
2017. The line is secured by substantially all of the College's assets and bears interest at the national
prime rate plus 0.25%, subject to a 3.5% floor, effective October, 2015. There was no balance

outstanding at June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Effective December 5, 2017, the College has a line of credit available in the amount of
$3,000,000. The line is secured by substantially all of the College's assets and bears interest at the
national prime rate plus 0.26%, subject to a 4.5% floor. All outstanding principal and interest is due
December, 2018. Amounts drawn down and outstanding on the line of credit at June 30, 2018 total

$2,406,753.

Note 6 - Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017:

Installment note with monthly payments of
$514, including interest at 0%, through
December, 2020; secured by a vehicle.

Installment note with monthly payments of
$329, including interest at 2.99%, through
September, 2021; secured by a vehicle.

Installment note with monthly payments of
$381, including interest at 0%, through
December, 2021; secured by a vehicle.

Installment note with monthly payments of
$4,705, including interest at 3.49%, through
January, 2024, secured by real estate.

Loan payable — 2008 Revenue Note (See Note 7)

Loan payable — 2010 Revenue Note (See Note 7)

Loan payable — 2012 Revenue Note (See Note 7)

Loan payable — 2014 Revenue Note (See Note 7)

Loan payable — 2017 Revenue Note (See Note 7)

Less: Current portion

Less: Debt issuance costs
Long-term debt, net

13.

2018

$ 14,897

12,181

16,013

285,786

4,653,507

3,420,651

4,520,462

4,620,964

17,544,461
848,769
457,092

$16,238,600

2017

$ 21,575

15,710

20,588

331,235
3,998,296
4,956,974
3,612,866

4,253,099

17,210,343

1,252,475
427,026

$15,530,842
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Note 6 - Long-Term Debt - (Continued)

The aggregate maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Amount

2019 $ 848,769

2020 1,153,406

2021 1,189,746

2022 1,221,344

2023 1,231,273
Thereafter 11,899,923

Total $ 17,544,461

Note 7 - Loans Payable

Loan Pavable - 2008 Revenue Note

The loan balance consists of the proceeds of an $8,000,000 tax-exempt borrowing
through the Scranton-Lackawanna Health and Welfare Authority which issued a Revenue
Note, Series of 2008. The proceeds were used for capital expenditures and to refund the
1998 bonds. The Note is subject to a Loan Agreement dated October 17, 2008 between the
Authority and Community Bank & Trust Co. Under the Loan Agreement, the College has
agreed to make payments sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the Note. Monthly
payments of $60,588, including interest of 4.35%, are due until October, 2023. In January,
2015, the Loan Agreement was amended, changing the interest rate to 3.60% and monthly
payments to $59,008. The Loan Agreement is a general obligation of the College secured by
a pledge of and a security interest in certain revenues of the College and a mortgage granted
by the College on the main campus facility. In December, 2017, the outstanding loan balance
was refunded with the 2017 Revenue Note.

Loan Pavyable - 2010 Revenue Note

The loan balance consists of the proceeds of a $6,700,000 tax-exempt borrowing
through the Abington Township Municipal Authority which issued a Revenue Note, Series of
2010. The proceeds are to be used for capital expenditures. The Note is subject to a Loan
Agreement dated September 29, 2010 between the Authority and Peoples Security Bank and
Trust Company (formerly Penn Security Bank and Trust Company). Under the Loan
Agreement, the College has agreed to make payments sufficient to pay the principal and
interest on the Note. Monthly payments of $40,439, including interest of 3.866%, are due
until September, 2030. In January, 2015, the Loan Agreement was amended, changing the
interest rate to 3.25% and monthly payments to $38,523. The Loan Agreement is a general
obligation of the College secured by a pledge of and a security interest in certain revenues of

the College and a mortgage granted by the College. Refer to the loan agreement for complete
details on the loan.

14.
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Note 7 - Loans Payable - (Continued)

Loan Pavable - 2012 Revenue Note

The loan balance consists of the proceeds of a $4,500,000 tax-exempt borrowing
through the Waverly Township Municipal Authority which issued a Revenue Note, Series of
2012. The proceeds are to be used for capital expenditures and to redeem the 2001 bonds.
The Note is subject to a Loan Agreement dated May 15, 2012 between the Authority and
Peoples Security Bank and Trust Company (formerly Penn Security Bank and Trust
Company). Under the Loan Agreement, the College has agreed to make payments sufficient
to pay the principal and interest on the Note. " Monthly payments of $25,402, including
interest of 3.15%, are due until May, 2032. The Loan Agreement is a general obligation of
the College secured by a pledge of and a security interest in certain revenues of the College

and a mortgage granted by the College. Refer to the loan agreement for complete details on
the loan.

Loan Payable - 2014 Revenue Note

The loan balance consists of the proceeds of a $6,500,000 tax-exempt borrowing
through the Waverly Township Municipal Authority which issued a Revenue Note, Series of
2014. The proceeds are to be used for capital expenditures. The Note is subject to a Loan
Agreement dated December 17, 2014 between the Authority and Peoples Security Bank and
Trust Company. Under the Loan Agreement, the College has agreed to make payments
sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the Note. From January, 2015 to December,
2016, interest only is due on principal advances. Beginning January, 2017, monthly principal
and interest payments were due. In October, 2016, the interest only period was extended to
December, 2017. In February, 2018, the interest only period was extended to December,
2018. Beginning January, 2019, monthly payments of $42,950, including interest of 3.25%,
are due until December, 2022. Beginning January, 2023, monthly payments of $38,403,
including interest of 3.25%, are due until August, 2036 with a final monthly payment of
$76,129 due September 2036. The Loan Agreement is a general obligation of the College
secured by a pledge of and a security interest in certain revenues of the College and a

mortgage granted by the College. Refer to the loan agreement for complete details on the
loan. :

Loan Pavable - 2017 Revenue Note

The loan balance consists of the proceeds of a $6,815,000 tax-exempt borrowing
through the Waverly Township Municipal Authority which issued a Revenue Note, Series of
2017. The proceeds are to be used for capital expenditures and to refund the 2008 Revenue
Note. The Note is subject to a Loan Agreement dated' December 28, 2017 between the
Authority and Peoples Security Bank and Trust Company. Under the Loan Agreement, the
College has agreed to make payments sufficient to pay the principal and interest on the Note.
From January, 2018 to December, 2018, interest only is due on principal advances.
Beginning January, 2019, monthly payments of $38,818, including interest of 3.25%, are due
until December, 2038. The Loan Agreement is a general obligation of the College secured
by a pledge of and a security interest in certain revenues of the College and a mortgage
granted by the College. Refer to the loan agreement for complete details on the loan.
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Note 8 - Obligations Under Capital Lease

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the College obtained equipment under the provisions of
a long-term lease. For financial reporting purposes, minimum lease payments have been capitalized.
The lease will expire in June, 2022. The leased property under capital lease as of June 30, 2018 had a
cost of $300,709 and accumulated amortization amounted to $35,799. The leased property under
capital lease is included in the caption “Land, buildings and equipment, net.”

The minimum future lease payments and the present value of the net minimum lease
payments are as follows:

Year ending June 30,

2019 $ 66,886
2020 66,886
2021 66,886
2022 66,886
Total minimum lease payments 267,544
Less: Interest portion : 33,720
Present value of net minimum lease payments 233,824

Less: Current portion of net minimum lease
Payments 53,756

Obligations under capital leases, long-term ' $ 180,068

Note 9 - Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

At Tune 30, 2018 and 2017, temporarily restricted net assets are available as follows:

2018 2017
Program $ 58,455 $ 701,354
Scholarships 1,384,759 1,077,322
Total $1,443,214 $1,778,676

Net assets were released from donor restrictions by incurring expenses satisfying the
restricted purposes or by occurrence of other events specified by donors as follows:

Purpose restrictions accomplished:

2018 2017
Program $ 484,049 $ 404,526
Scholarships 90,100 82,567
Total restrictions released $ 574,149 $ 487,093

Note 10 - Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Permanently restricted net assets consist of investments to be held indefinitely, the income
from which is expendable for scholarships.
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Note 11 - Government Grants and Student Aid

The amounts under these captions do not include amounts remitted to students under the
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) Program and the PELL Grants
Program. Had these amounts been included, revenues and expenditures would have increased by
$6,847,381 in 2018 and $5,779,672 in 2017. The grants are similar to agency funds because the
College acted only as custodian and disbursing agent for these funds.

Note 12 - Pension and Employee Benefits

The College has a defined contribution pension plan. It was established by the Board of
Trustees and effective January 1, 1970. Benefits are provided through investments offered by
Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association (TIAA) and the College Retirement Equities Fund
(CREF). The Plan operates under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code. For participants that
contribute a minimum of four percent (4%) of their annual salary to the plan, the College will
contribute six percent (6%) of the participant's annual salary to the Plan. Participants are allowed to
contribute an amount equal to the maximum allowed by the Internal Revenue Service. The pension

expense for this plan for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $421,261 and $399,857,
respectively.

Note 13 - Leases

The College leases its Hazleton, Lake Region, Sunbury and Towanda campuses under

operating leases. The lease terms vary from one to ten years, with renewal options subject to
negotiation at the expiration of the leases.

Total rent expense for all leases for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 amounted to
$635,147 and $551,599, respectively.

Future minimum rental payments are as follows for the years ending June 30,:

2019 $ 607,528
2020 617,068
2021 415,444
2022 376,800
2023 285,600
Thereafter 1,097,100
Total $ 3,399,540

On November 13, 2007, in connection with the acquisition of the Academic Building from
Lackawanna County, the College entered into a lease agreement with the County for their continued
use of a portion of the building. The lease term expired August 31, 2009. In November, 2009, the
County and the College executed a rent payment agreement which extended the County’s use of the
building until November, 2019 and extinguished the College’s $350,000 obligation to the county.

On November 5, 2012, in connection with the lease of the Lake Region campus, the College
issued a note receivable to the owner of the property. Interest is at prime plus 1% and the term is ten
years. In January, 2017, the College terminated the lease for certain areas of the campus. The
termination of the lease and the related note receivable resulted in a loss in the amount of $551,976.
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Note 14 - Concentration of Credit Risk

Most of the College's business activity is with students located in Scranton, Pennsylvania and

surrounding communities within Lackawanna County. The College grants credit to its students for
tuition and fees.

The College maintains its cash accounts in various commercial banks located in Northeastern
Permnsylvania. Accounts at each bank are insured, in aggregate, by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) up to $250,000.

Note 15 - Contingencies

Real Estate Taxes

As a not-for-profit Corporation in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, the College is
an organization which presently qualifies for an exemption from real property taxes;
however, a number of cities, municipalities and school districts in the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania have challenged and continue to challenge such exemption. The possible future
financial effects of this matter on the College, if any, are not presently determinable.

Grant Programs

The College participates in both Federal and State assisted grant programs. These
programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.

The College is potentially liable for any expenditures which may be disallowed
pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not aware of any material

items of noncompliance which would result in the disallowance of program expenditures.

Union Contract

The faculty of the College are members of the Lackawanna College Education
Association. The current contract expires June 30, 2020.

Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. In determining fair value,
the College uses various methods including market, income and cost approaches. Based on these
approaches, the College often utilizes certain assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk and or the risks inherent in the inputs
to the valuation technique. These inputs can be readily observable, market corroborated, or generally
unobservable inputs. The College utilizes valuation techniques that maximize the use of observable
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. Based on the observability of the inputs used in
the valuation techniques, the College is required to provide the following information according to
the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy ranks the quality and reliability of the information
used to determine fair values. Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified
and disclosed in one of the following three categories:
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements - (Continued)

Level I — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets, such as the
New York Stock Exchange.

Level II — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in less active dealer or broker markets.

Valuations are obtained from third party pricing services for identical or similar assets or
liabilities.

Level TIT — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are derived from other valuation
methodologies, including option pricing models, discounted cash flow models and similar
techniques, and not based on market exchange, dealer, or broker traded transactions.
Tevel ITI valuations incorporate certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair
value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

The asset’s or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs. .

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value.

Mutual funds, Equities, Corporate bonds, U.S. Agencies, and Certificates of deposit: Valued
at the closing price reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

The preceding methods may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the College believes its
valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different
methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result
in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements - (Continued)

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the assets at fair value
as of June 30, 2018 and 2017.

Tune 30, 2018

Assets: Level 1 Level II Level IIT Total
U.S. Agencies $ 989,793 § - $ - $ 989,793
Corporate bonds :
Aaa 175,595 - - 175,595
Aal 49,880 - - 49,880
Aa2 238,357 - - 238,357
Aa3 238,315 - - 238,315
Al 558,252 - - 558,252
A2 937,108 - - 937,108
A3 264,976 - - 264,976
Baal 95,779 - - 95,779
Baa2 . 10,172 - - 10,172
Ba2 48,557 - - 48,557
Total Corporate bonds 2,616,991 - - 2,616,991
Equities
Consumer discretionary 267,227 - - 267,227
Consumer staples . 495,789 - - 495,789
Financial 700,982 - - 700,982
Healthcare 505,599 - - 505,599
Industrial 426,059 - - 426,059
Tnformation technology 778,521 - - 778,521
Materials 96,388 - - 96,388
Energy 347,650 - - 347,650
Technology 62,132 - - 62,132
Telecommunication 109,187 - - 109,187
Real estate 87,093 - - 87,093
Utilities 215,104 - - 215,104
Total Equities 4,092,231 2 - 4,092,231
Mutual funds 677,969 - - 677,969
Cash 60,000 - - 60,000
$ 8,436,984 § - $ - $ 8,436,984
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Note 16 - Fair Value Measurements - (Continued)

June 30, 2017

Assets: Level I Level IT Level 111 Total
U.S. Agencies $ 1,004,898 $ g $ - $ 1,004,898
Corporate bonds
Aaa 127,858 - - 127,858
Aal 103,386 - - 103,386
Aa? 215,403 - - 215,403
Aa3 297,663 - - 297,663
Al 845,348 - - 845,348
A2 437,850 - - 437,850
A3 390,897 - - 390,397
Baal - 29,997 - - 29,997
Baa2 98,672 - - 98,672
Baa3 10,524 - - 10,524
Ba2 49,061 - - 49,061
Total Corporate bonds 2,606,659 - - 2,606,659
Equities
Consumer discretionary 284,970 - - 284,970
Consumer staples 510,584 - - 510,584
Financial 546,950 - - 546,950
Healthcare 430,697 - - 430,697
Industrial 419,489 - - 419,489
Information technology 611,370 - - 611,370
Materials 131,509 - - 131,509
Energy 311,623 - - 311,623
Technology 61,626 - - 61,626
Telecommunication 135,066 - - 135,066
Real estate 88,491 - - 88,491
Utilities 151,598 - - 151,598
Total Equities 3,683,973 - - 3,683,973
Mutual funds 813,031 - - 813,031
Cash 60,000 - - 60,000
$ 8,168,561 $ - $ = $ 8,168,561

Note 17 - Endowments

The College’s endowment funds consist of approximately 20 individual funds established
primarily for student scholarships and financial aid that are both donor-restricted funds and funds
designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments. As required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, net assets associated with endowment funds,
including funds designated by the Board of Trustees to function as endowments, are classified and
reported based on existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.
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Note 17 - Endowments - (Continued)

Endowment Net Asset Composition by type of fund as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, is as

follows:

Donor-restricted endowment
Funds
Board-designated endowment
Funds
Total

Donor-restricted endowment
Funds
Board-designated endowment
Funds
Total

follows:

Endowment net assets,
beginning of year

Investment return:
Investment income
Net realized and unrealized losses
Total investment return

Contributions
Appropriation of endowment
assets for expenditure

Endowment net assets, end
of year

2018
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ - $ 1,384,759 $ 60,000 $ 1,444,759
6,160,462 - - 6,160,462
$ 6,160462 § 1,384,759 $ 60,000 $ 7,605,221
2017
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ - $ 1,077,322 $ 60,000 $ 1,137,322
5,682,376 - - 5,682,376
$ 5,682376 $ 1,077,322 $ 60,000 $ 6,819,698

Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, are as

2018
Temporarily Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 5,682,376 $ 1,077,322 $ 60,000 $ 6,819,698
151,900 - - 151,900
357,422 - - 357,422
509,322 - - 509,322
4,968 397,537 - 402,505
(36,204) (90,100) - (126,304)
$ 6,160,462 $ 1,384,759 $ 60,000 $ 7,605,221
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Note 17 - Endowments - (Continued)

2017
Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment net assets,

beginning of year $ 4,888,566 $ 1,094,232 $ 60,000 §$ 6,042,798
Investment return:

Investment income 134,555 - - 134,555

Net realized and unrealized losses 353,622 - - 353,622

Total investment return 488,177 - - 488,177

Contributions 341,111 65,657 - 406,768
Appropriation of endowment

assets for expenditure (35,478) (82,567) - (118,045)
Endowment net assets, end

of year $ 5,682,376 $ 1,077,322 $ 60,000 $ 6,819,698

The College has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt
to provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets.

The donor-restricted endowment assets are invested by the Trustees in a manner that is -

intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results of the S&P 500 index while
assuming a balanced level of investment risk. The College expects its donor-restricted endowment
funds, over time, to provide a rate of return commensurate with the portfolio risk. Actual returns in
any given year may vary from this amount. To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the
College relies on a total return strategy in which investment returns are achieved through both capital
appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and dividends). The College targets
a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve
its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints.

Note 18 - Federal Perkins Looan Program

The Federal Perkins Loan Program expired September 30, 2017. The College will be
liquidating its Federal Perkins Revolving Loan Fund at the direction of the Department of Education.
The College has begun assigning all eligible outstanding loans to the Department of Education.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of
Lackawanna College
Scranton, Pennsylvania

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Lackawanna College, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2018, and the
related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 8, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Lackawanna
College's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Lackawanna
College’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
Lackawanna College’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not
allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that
might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we
did not identify any deficiencies in intemnal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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To the Board of Trustees of
Lackawanna College
Scranton, Pennsylvania

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lackawanna College's financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards. '

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Scranton, Pennsylvania
November 8, 2018
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by the Uniform Guidance

To the Board of Trustees of
Lackawanna College
Scranton, Pennsylvania

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Iackawanna College’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on each of Lackawanna College’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Iackawanna College’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms
and conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Lackawanna College’s
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial andits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Lackawanna College’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Lackawanna
College’s compliance.

RYNECRILENY BEEALAVEC,

REMUS Alliance
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To the Board of Trustees of
Lackawanna College
Scranton, Pennsylvania

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Lackawanna College complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2018.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of nonmcompliance which are
required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2018-001. Our opinion on each
major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Lackawanna College’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying corrective action plan. Lackawanna College’s response was not

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Lackawanna College is responsible for establishing and maintaining
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Lackawanna College’s
internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material
effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control

over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Lackawanna
College’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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To the Board of Trustees of
Lackawanna College
Scranton, Pennsylvania

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described
in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Scranton, Pennsylvania
November 8, 2018
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SUMMARY OF AUDITOR'S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of report the auditor issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:  Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

o Material weakness(es) identified? _ Yes X No

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified? _ Yes _X None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? _Yes X No
Federal Awards

Tnternal control over major programs:

o Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No

o Significant deficiency(ies) identified? Yes X _None Reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unmodified

o Any audit findings disclosed that are
required to be reported in accordance
with Section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? X Yes No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Various Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between type A and type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

No matters were reported.

FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FINDING 2018-001 — CFDA 84.007 and 84.033 - Matching

CRITERIA:

The Federal Work Study Program and the Federal Supplemental Educational
Opportunity Grant Program have non-Federal share matching requirements. Unless a
waiver has been obtained from the U.S. Department of Education, the Federal share of
awards may not exceed 75 percent of the total program awards made by the College.
(34 CFR 676.21 and 34 CFR 675.26).

CONDITION:

Lackawanna College did not receive a waiver for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018
and did not match the Federal share of awards for the listed programs.

CONTEXT:

Lackawanna College did not match the Federal share of awards for the listed
programs.

CAUSE:

The Director of Financial Aid was not notified that the College did not receive the
waiver from the U.S. Department of Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

EFFECT:

Lackawanna College did not match the Federal share of awards for the listed
programs. '

QUESTIONED COSTS:

There were none.

30.

112



LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

1. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - Continued

RINDING 2018-001 — CEDA 84.007 and 84.033 — Matching - Continued

RECOMMENDATION:

Lackawanna College should review its procedures relating to the application for the
waiver of the non-Federal matching requirement for the listed programs. The Financial
Aid Office should be notified of the status of the application and should verify that a
waiver has been obtained prior to awarding funds for these programs.

MANAGEMENT COMMENTS:

See Lackawanna College’s corrective action plan.

31.
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Pass-through

Federal Grantor/ Pass-Through Federal Entity Passed
Grantor/Program or Cluster CFDA Identifying Through to Total Federal
Title Number Number Subrecipients  Expenditures

114

U.S. Department of Education
Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Federal Direct Student Loans 84.268 N/A N/A $ 12,166,137
Federal Pell Grant Program 84.063 N/A N/A 4,820,397
Federal Supplemental Educational
Opportunity Grants 84.007 N/A N/A 68,614
Federal Work-Study Program 84.033 N/A N/A 64,293
Federal Perkins Loan Program - :
Note 3 84.038 N/A N/A 334,248
Total Student Financial
Assistance Cluster 17,453,689

Pass-through from the Pennsylvania
Department of Education
Career and Technical Education -

Basic Grants to States 84.048 N/A N/A 272,999

Total Pass-through from the
Pennsylvania Department
of Education 272,999

Total - U.S. Department of Education 17,726,688

U.S. Department of TLabor
Pass-through from the Pennsylvania
Department of Labor & Industry
Trade Adjustment Assistance 17.245 N/A N/A 285,009

Appalachian Regional Commission
Appalachian Research, Technical Assistance,
and Demonstration Projects 23.011 N/A N/A 80,000

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 18,091,697

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of this Schedule.
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Note 1 - Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes
the federal award activity of Lackawanna College under programs of the federal government for
the year ended June 30, 2018. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with
the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of
Lackawanna College, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in
net assets or cash flows of the College.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting.
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to
reimbursement. Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits made
in the normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Lackawanna

College has elected not to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the
Uniform Guidance.

Note 3 - Federal Student Loan Programs

Loans granted under the Federal Perkins Loan Program (84.038) subsequently are
administered directly by Lackawanna College, and balances and transactions relating to this program
are included in the College’s basic financial statements. Loans outstanding at the beginning of the
year and loans made during the year are included in the federal expenditures presented in the
Schedule. At June 30, 2018, the total of Perkins Loans outstanding was $340,064.

33.
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LACKAWANNA COLLEGE
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINDING 2018-001- CFDA 84.007 and 84.033 - Matching

CRITERIA:

‘The Federal Work Study Program and the Federal Supplemental Educatjonal Opportunity Grant Program have non-
Federal share matching.requirements. Unless a waiver has been obtained from the US. Department of Education, the

Federal share of awards may not exceed 75 percent of the total program awards made by the College. (34 CFR 676.21
and 34 CFR 675.26)

CONDITION:

Lackawanna College did not receive a waiver for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and did not match the Federal share
of awards for the Federal Work Study Program and the Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program.

CONTEXT:
Lackawanna College did not match the Federal share of awards for the listed programs.

CAUSE:

The Director of Financial Aid was not notified that the College did not receive the waiver from the US. Department of
Education for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

EFFECT:
Lackawanna College did not match the Federal share of awards for the listed programs.

CORRECTIHVE ACTION PLAN:

Beginning with the application for the 2019/20 fiscal year, which i due February 8 2019, the College's Compliance
Analyst will be responsible for submitting the "Application for Designation as an Eligible Institution". This is the
application to receive the waiver from matching the Federal awards i the Federal Work Study and the Federal

Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Programs. Previously the Manager of Corporate, Foundation and
Government Relations submitted the application.

The Compliance Analyst will notify the Director of Financial Aid of the submittal of the application and its results. If the
College i ineligible for the waiver, the institution will award the appropriate matching funds.

If the Director of.Financial Aid does not receive .official notice from the Compliance Analyst, the Director of Financial Aid
will access the US. Department of Education's Eligibility Matrix at
 https://www2.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ope/idues/eligibility.html before awarding funds from the Federal Work Study
*“and Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant programs. If the Director of Financial finds that Lackawanna
College & not eligible for the waiver, the institution will award the appropriate matching awards.

CONTACT PERSONS:
Compliance Analyst - Kayla Guilford
Director of Financial Aid - Matthew Peters

BUSINESS OFFICE
570/961-7881 e 570/504-7977 o 570/961-7846 o Fax: 570/961-7811
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Sé‘/’ﬂlflﬁlfl DEPARTMENT OF LAW

PENNSYLVANLIA CITY HALL ® 340 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE @ SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 18503  PHONE: 570-348-4105 ® FAX: 570-348-4263

October 18, 2019

! Vil
To the Honorable Council R F—:‘ ‘“"*“? L \5' f—:: D

Of the City of Scranton
Municipal Building 0CT 1 I8 201
Scranton, PA 18503 OFFICE OF CITY

COUNCIL/CITY CLERK
Dear Honorable Council Membets:

ATTACHED IS A RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND APPROVING OF
THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF THE GRANT APPLICATION BY
THE CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF LACKAWANNA COLLEGE, TO
THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ACTING THROUGH THE
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR A LOCAL SHARE
ACCOUNT GRANT, PURSUANT TO THE PA RACE HORSE DEVELOPMENT
AND GAMING ACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,599.66 FOR THE PROJECT
TO BE KNOWN AS " LACKAWANNA COLLEGE — MOBILE E-SPORTS
ARENA SPACE" LOCATED 501 VINE STREET, SCRANTON,
PENNSYLVANIA, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON, PA, TO
ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE AND ENTER INTO
A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND COMMITMENT
LETTER WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TO ACCEPT
AND UTILIZE THE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $202,599.66 AWARDED BY
THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

Respectfully,

e Zr

Jesgicd L. Eskra, Esquire
City Solicitor

JLE/sl
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RESOLUTION NO.
2019

RATIFYING AND APPROVING OF THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF
THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF
GARDEN OF CEDAR, TO THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
ACTING THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR
A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT, PURSUANT TO THE PA RACE HORSE
DEVELOPMENT AND GAMING ACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000.00 FOR
THE PROJECT TO BE KNOWN AS " GARDEN OF CEDAR - GROWING
COMMUNITY, JOBS, AND FOOD PARK PROJECT" LOCATED AT 715 CEDAR
AVENUE, SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR
AND OTHER APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON,
PA, TO ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE AND ENTER
INTO A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND COMMITMENT
LETTER WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TO ACCEPT
AND UTILIZE THE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000.00 AWARD ED BY
THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City of Scranton, through the Office of Economic and Community
Development, will submit a grant application on behalf of the Garden of Cedar to the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("the Commonwealth") acting through the Commonwealth
Financing Authority (the "Grantor”) for a Local Share Account Grant, pursuant to the PA
Race Horse Development and Gaming Act, for the creation of a new community
garden/park ("Project") located at 715 Cedar Avenue, Scranton, Pennsylvania. A copy of
such “Project” details is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein as if set
forth at length; and

WHEREAS, the City of Scranton intends herein to ratify and approve the execution
and submission of the Grant Application; and

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania will review the Grant Application
for funding for the Local Share Account Grant in the amount of $100,000.00 ("Grant") for
the "Project"; and

WHEREAS, if the Grant Application is approved, the City of Scranton intends
herein to authorize the execution of the Local Share Account Grant Contract and
Commitment Letter, and the acceptance, disbursement, and utilization of the Grant for the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SCRANTON that the execution and submission of the “Grant” Application is hereby

ratified and if approved, the Mayor and other appropriate City Officials are hereby
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authorized to enter into and execute and submit any additional related paperwork for this
“Grant”, and if successful, to accept the grant funds to be used for the “Project” as attached
hereto. This approval anticipates and authorizes the execution of any and all related
documentation necessary for the “Grant” or to accept, disburse, and utilize the “Grant” for
the “Project.”

SECTION 1. If any section, clause, provision or portion of this Resolution
shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such
decisions shall not affect any other section, clause, provision or portion of this
Ordinance so long as it remains legally enforceable minus the invalid portion. The
City reserves the right to amend this Ordinance or any portion thereof from time to
time as it shall deed advisable in the best interest of the promotion of the purposes
and intent of this Ordinance, and the effective administration thereof.

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
approval.

SECTION 3. This Resolution is enacted by the Council of the City of
Scranton under the authority of the Act of the Legislature, April 13, 1972, Act No.
62, known as the “Home Rule Charter and Optional Plans Law”, and any other

applicable law arising under the laws of the State of Pennsylvania.
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Scranton

OE(D

Office of Economic and
Community Development

October 17, 2019

Via Hand Delivery

Jessica Eskra, Esquire

340 Notth Washington Avenue
4% Fl, Law Department
Scranton, PA 18503

Re:  Resolution
City of Sctanton, OECD on behalf of Garden of Cedar — Growing Community, Jobs,
and Food Park Project
LSA Grant Application

Dear Attotney Hskta:

The City of Scranton, specifically OECD, is tequesting approval to submit a LSA Grant
application on behalf of the Garden of Cedar for theit community gatden project.

OECD is tequesting that you teview the attached Resolution and submit it to City Council
for approval.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you should need additional information.

b

Maty-Pat Ward
Executive Director

/mpw

CITY OF SCRANTON OFFICE OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
340 N. Washington Avenue « Scranton, Pennsylvania 18503 « Tel: (570) 348-4216 « Fax (570)348-4123 « www.scrantonpa.gov



121

Scranton

OED

Office of Economic and
Community Development

September 30, 2019

Pennsylvania Depattment of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

Attn: Customer Setrvice Center

400 Notth Street, 4™ Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Re:  LSA Grant Application (Monroe County) — Garden of Cedar
Growing Community, Jobs, and Food Park Project
Single Application Id: 201909309209

To Whom It May Concern:

Enclosed please find a Single Application for Assistance with Program Addenda regatding
the above-referenced mattet. ' ‘

Thank you for yout time and consideration in this matter. Please do not hesitate to contact

me if you should need additional information.
Sincetely, .
ALY,

Maty-Pat Ward
Executive Ditectot

MPW/
Cc: Frank Dubas
Sara Hailstone

CITY OF SCRANTON OFFICE OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
340 N. Washington Avenue « Scranton, Pennsylvania 18503 ¢ Tel: (570) 348-4216 - Fax (570)348-4123 » www.scrantonpa.gov



. Single Application for Assistance

Page 1 of 11
N

Q]
—

Single Application for Assistance

Applicani: City of Scranton
Company: Garden of Cedar

Web Application Id: 8347394 Single Application Id: 201909309209

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

rApplicant Information-— - - -

Applicant Entity Type:|Government

Applicant Name: |{City of Scranton

NAICS Code

FEIN/SSN Number

DUNS Number:|[136814287 |

CEO: lWayne E. Evans

CEO Title: || Mayor

SAP Vendor #:

Contact Name: ||Mary-Pat Ward

Contact Title: IExecutive Director, OECD

Phone:||(570)-348-4216 |  Ext.

Fax:|| ]

E-mail: lmpwar_d@scrantonpa.gov

Mailing Address: [340 North Washington Avenue

City: |SCranton

State:|PA

2 Gode

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019



Single Application for Assistance
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Single Application for Assistance
Web Application Id: 8347394 Single Application Id: 201909309209
Applicant: City of Scranton
Company: Garden of Cedar
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund {(Gaming Funds) Monroe County
r‘ —— —— e o by s 4 A
[ 1 1

Single Application for Assistance
Web Application Id: 8347394
Applicant: City of Scranton
Company: Garden of Cedar
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund {(Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Single Application Id: 201909309209

-Company Information

Company Entity Type:

Non-Profit Corporation

Company Name:

lGarden of Cedar

Charitable organization? |False

NAICS Code

FEIN:

DUNS Number:

CEQ:||Francis J. Dubas

CEO Title: ||President

SAP Vendor #: | Z22XXX

Contact Name: ||Francis Dubas

Contact Title: |President

Phone:{[(203)-807-6264 | Ext.| |

Fax:|| l

E-mail: ‘|ﬁdubas@gmail.com

Mailing Address:|485 Cheese Spring Road

City:||New Canaan

State:|CT

2 Gode:

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019
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Web Application ld: 8347394
Applicant: City of Scranton
Company: Garden of Cedar

Single Application for Assistance

Single Application Id: 201909309209

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Business Specifics-

Current # of Full-time
Employees:

(In PA):

(World Wide:)

b1
b ]

Minority Owned:

No

Select

Woman Owned:

No

Total Sales $:

o ]

Total Export Sales $:

R&D Investment:

D (% of Budget)

Employee Training
Investment:

E:l (% of Budget)

Enterprise Type

indicate the types of enterprises that describe the organization listed above, You may select more than one type.
D Advanced Technology D Agri-Processor D Agri-Producer
D Authority D Biotechnology / Life Sc_iences D Business Financial Services
D Call Center D Child Care Center D Commercial
D Community Dev. Provider D Computer & Clerical Operators D Defense Related

D Economic Dev. Provider

Educational Facility

D Emergency Responder

Environment and Conservation

D Exempt Facility

D Export Manufacturing

D Export Service D Food Processing D Government

Healthcare Hospitality D Industrial

D Manufacturing D Mining D Other

D Professional Services D Recycling D Regional & National Headquarters
D Research & Development D Retail [Z Social Services Provider

Tourism Promotion

D Warehouse & Terminal

Provider, Tourism Promotion,

Educational Facility,Environment and Conservation,Healthcare,Hospitality,Social Services

- I

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance
Web Application Id: 8347394
Applicant: City of Scranton
Company: Garden of Cedar

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Overview

Single Application Id: 201909309209

Project Name:

Garden of Cedar - Growing Community, Jobs, and Food Park Project

Is this project related to another previously submitted project?

No

If yes, indicate previous project name:

Have you contacted anyone at DGED about your project?

Yes

If yes, indicate who:

Paul Macknosky

https://www.esa.dced.state. pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347394 Single Application Id: 201909309209
Applicant: City of Scranton .

Company: Garden of Cedar
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Site Locations

Address: | 715 Cedar Avenue

City: | Scranton

State: | PA

Zip Code: | 18505

County: |Lackawanna

Municipality: | Scranton City

PA House: | Kyle Mullins (112), Marty Flynn (113)
PA Senate: | John P. Blake (22)

Designated Areas: |Act 47 Distressed Community

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Page 6 of
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Single Application for Assistance
Web Application 1d: 8347394 Single Application 1d: 201909309209
Applicant: City of Scranton
Company: Garden of Cedar
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County
Project Budget
Local Share | Frank Dubas Other Total
Account Private Funders
Fund Private
(Gaming
Funds)
Nonroe
County
General Consfruction $75,000.00 $6,887.00 $25,596.00
New Construction $60,000.00 $.00 -$25,596.00 $85,596.00
Renovations $15,000.00 $6,887.00 $.00 $21,887.00
Infrastructure / Site Preparation $17,500.00 $.00 $6,580.00
Water/Sewer $15,000.00 $.00 $4,500.00 $19,500.00
Excavation/Grading $2,500.00 $.00 $2,080.00 $4,580.00
Related Costs $7,5600.00 $13,113.00 $12,791.89
Professional Services/Consuiltants $7,500.00 $13,113.00 $8,791.89 $29,404.89
Insurance $.00 $.00 $4,000.00 ~ $4,000.00
Miscellaneous $.00 $.00 $54,145.95
Site Amenities $.00 $.00 $54,145.95 $54,145.95
Total $100,000.00]  $20,000.00  $99,113.84
Budget
$219,113.84
Total:
Basis of Cost
Provide the basis for calculating the costs that are identified in the Project Budget.
Bids/Quotations, Budget Justification, Contractor Estimates
Budget Narrative
The narrative must specifically address each of the cost items identified in the Project Budget section. If an amount is placed in any of the OTHER
categories, you must specify what the money will be used for. NOTE: Some programs have specific guidelines regarding the narrative necessary to
qualify for that particular resource. Please read the Program Guidelines for details.
The budget for construction of The Garden of Cedar has been prepared by the landscape architectural
firm of Thomas J. McLane & Associates in Scranton, PA. The construction budget is approximately $220
K. ’

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print. aspx 9/30/2019
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https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347394 Single Application Id: 201909309209
BApplicant: City of Scranton

Company: Garden of Cedar
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Narrative

What do you plan to accomplish with this project?
Identify the problem(s) that need to be resolved.

This project will enhance the Cedar Avenue community and the surrounding area, which is home to a
diverse urban mix of recent industrious immigrants as well as long time residents, through the

development and sustainment of a community garden/park in a densely populated area currently
designated as a food desert.

How do you pian to accomplish it?

Include expected outcomes that are measurable, obtainable, clear and understandable, and valid. Examples of measurable outcomes include jobs
created or retained, people trained, land or building acquired, housing units renovated or built, ste.

The creation of the community garden/park will be provided by the residents of the Cedar Avenue
community who will be encouraged to "showcase" culturally significant vegetables and fruit. Additionally, a

specific plot will be allocated to Lackawanna College for crops beneficial to the culinary degree program
offered by the college.

How do you plan to use the funds? '
Should include specific use of funds and reflect the budget provided with the application.

The funding use would include construction management, insurance, bonding, site preparation,
hardscape, softscape, site amenities, professional services and administration.

Projected Schedule and Key Milestones and Dates

A detailed schedule of activities, including key milestones and dates, must accompany this application if applicable to the project.

December 31, 2019 — Soft Completion of all administrative and legal work

Early Spring 2020 — Funding Confirmed including 501(c)(3) Status

Spring 2020 through Summer of 2020 — Construction

Fall 2020 — Planting Beds

Spring 2021 — Planting vegetables/flowers, etc.

Spring 2021 through Summer 2021 — Fully operational: community garden open, work with local colleges
and universities program, educational programs, job programs implemented

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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[Smgi@ A@pﬂiéati@n for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347394 Single Application Id: 201909309209
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Garden of Cedar
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Addenda

In addition to the Single Application, the Applicant shail submit the following list of items. All items marked with a red diamond are required to be
uploaded to the application. The items that are not required should be uploaded if they are applicable to the project.

1. Provide a description of the project which discusses all of the following: (a) a detailed project description to include specific project activities and
expected results; (b) the specific location of the project site; (c) whether the proposed project is consistent with an existing regional, county, or local
comprehensive plan; (d) whether the proposed project has been identified as a priority investment in a local or regional economic development plan or
strategy; (e) the anticipated employment, investment, and/or community impact of the project; (f) if a difference exists, the historical and proposed use of
the project site; and (g) if applicable, the experience of the developer to include a discussion of previously completed projects.

{ Uploaded Documents

1. 2019 LSA Application, Garden of Cedar, Project Narrative.pdf ~ View

2. A projected schedule and detailed timeline for the project;

.r Uploaded Documents

2. 2019 LSA Application, Garden of Cedar, Project Schedule and Timeline.pdf ~ View

3. A budget accompanied by a description of the basis of costs for the project and sources of funding;

i

i Uploaded Documents

" 3.2019 LSA Application, Garden of Cedar, Project Budget.pdf View

4. Copies of signed bids/quotations, contractor estimates, sales agreements, or engineer estimates verifying project costs. Bids should be current and
dated;

Uploaded Documents

4. 2019 LSA Application, Garden of Cedar, B

e e

ids, Quotes, Estimates.pdf View

5. Evidence of conformity of the project with local and regional comprehensive plans and zoning (in the form of a letter from the applicable
planning/zoning office), if applicable;

Uploaded Documents
|

5. 2019 LSA Application, Garden of Cedar, City Planning Support Letter.pdf View

8. A letter of support for the project from the affected community;

Uploaded Documents

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347394 Single Application Id: 201909309209
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Garden of Cedar
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Addenda

T
!* 6. 2019 LSA Grant Application -Garden of Cedar, Mayor and Community Support
Letters.pdf  View

7. Provide a resolution duly adopted by the applicant's governing board formally requesting the grant, designating an official to execute all documents,
describing briefly the project scope, and identifying the grant amount,

Uploaded Documents
,_ v

7. 2019 LSA Application ~Garden of Cedar, Legislation.pdf  View

8. Copies of funding commitment letters from all other project funding sources, if applicable; and

l Uploaded Documents

? 8. 2019 LSA Application -Garden of Cedar, Funding Commitment Letter.pdf ~ View

{

9. Copy of the Applicant's and/or project user's latest financials.

Once submitted, please print one (1) copy of the completed application, to include all required and additional applicable supplemental information, and
send via US Mail. Please reference the Application ID number on all mailed documents.

Uploaded Documents

9. 2019 LSA Application -Garden of Cedar, Applicant Financials.pdf ~ View

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic
Development
Single Application for Assistance

Single Application #: 201908309209

This page must accompany all required supplemental information Mail to:

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

Attn: Customer Service Center

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

| hereby certify that all information contained in the single application and supporting materials submitted to DCED via
the Internet, Single Application # 201909309209 and its attachments are true and correct and accurately represent the
status and economic condition of the Applicant, and 1 also certify that, if applying on behalf of the applicant, | have
verified with an authorized representative of the Applicant that such information is true and correct and accurately
represents the status and economic condition of the Applicant. | also understand that if | knowingly make a false
statement or overvalue a security to obtain a grant and/or loan from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, | may be

subject to criminal prosecution in accordance with 18 Pa.C.S. § 4804 (relating to unsworn falsification to authorities) and
31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 and 3802 (relating to false claims and statements).

=

Signature: Mary-Pat Ward

The Pennsylvania Department of Gommunity and Economic Development reserves the right to accept or reject any or

all applications submitted on the Single Application for Assistance contingent upon available funding sources and
respective applicant eligibility.

https://www.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019



1. Desctiption of Project
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City of Scranton
Garden of Cedar Project Description

Detailed Project Description Including Project Activities and Expected Results

Private developer Frank Dubas purchased a vacant lot at 715 Cedar Avenue in
Scranton and is coordinating community support to transform it into a vibrant community
asset that creates opportunities for growing food, community building activities, and job
training. Dubas is in the process of creating a 501(c)3 not-for-profit corporation called

The Garden of Cedar. The property will be donated to this organization once it is
created.

The Garden of Cedar will offer a functional garden and a pleasing park to an ethnic
community in a manner that celebrates the diverse cultures of the area. This project will
enhance the Cedar Avenue community and the surrounding area, which is home to a
diverse urban mix of recent industrious immigrants as well as long-time residents,
through the development and sustainment of a community garden/park in a densely
populated area currently designated as a food desert. Garden plots will be provided for
the residents of the Cedar Avenue community who will be encouraged to “showcase”
culturally significant vegetables and fruits. In addition, a specific plot will be allocated to

Lackawanna College for cultivation of crops beneficial to the culinary degree program
offered by the college.

The Garden will be constructed as an aesthetically pleasing park-like setting. A central
path will begin at Cedar Avenue and proceed in a serpentine manner to the eastern
edge of the property. Upon entry at Cedar Avenue community residents and visitors will
be welcomed into a small staging area containing a meeting space, a flagpole with an
American flag, and an eye pleasing cascading waterfall. The meandering path will then
proceed to an area allocated for a small kiosk containing information, waist high
planters for people with physical disabilities, and specifically designated areas for herbs,
berries, and urban forage foods. To demonstrate the environmental significance of
compost, a composting area will be designated.

Continuing east along the serpentine path will be various raised planting beds allocated
to community groups for their plantings. Critical to this area will a designated spot for
residents of the community to gather, mingle, and spend time together. The primary
purpose of this area will be to raise healthy fruits and vegetables within a setting that
builds a sense of community among old and new neighbors. The design and
construction of the raised planters will be curvilinear. They will form a sort of “maze”
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where children can wander and discover safely within sight of watchful eyes. This area
will be bordered on the south by pollinating plants. Next, community residents and
visitors will be greeted by the signature planting in The Garden of Cedar — a fruit
bearing apple tree. This tree will have luscious healthy apples for the benefit of the
community at large. A planned event could be an apple baking contest.

The eastern end of the property will contain a small children’s playground which is also
intended to be a “discovery” station. This area, as well as other areas of the Garden, will
contain vertical green walls expected to cultivate edible plants in a confined urban
setting. For this purpose, Penn State University and Penn State Extension be engaged.

The Garden of Cedar will be a year-round functional park capable of hosting seasonal
events such as harvest festivals, a Halloween Spooktacular, winter holiday market,

scavenger hunts, and spring festivals. Alternative uses during the off season could
include ice skating and miniature golf.

Every local college and university will be involved in The Garden of Cedar project.
Johnson College students, faculty, and administration have been involved in the
architectural design. Penn State Scranton and Penn State Extension will be involved in
planting design and on-site education programs. A garden plot will be allocated fo
Lackawanna College for cultivation of vegetables and fruit for the college’s culinary
program. Marywood University’s School of Architectural Design will assist with the
visual design of the Garden’s structures. Keystone College will assist in seeking funding
through corporate grants and donations. An alignment will be made with the University
of Scranton’s community garden as well as the University’s entrepreneurial programs.

Dubas has committed $20,000 donation to the project through The Scranton Area
Foundation which will cover initial capital ($15,000) and operating ($5,000) expenses.

He will seek funding from private, corporate, and public sector sources for capital and
operating expenses.

The Garden of Cedar is requesting $100,000 from the Monroe Gounty Local Share
Account,

Specific Location of the Project Site

715 Cedar Avenue, Scranton, PA 18505

Consistency with Existing Regional, County, or Local Comprehensive Plans
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This project is consistent with the following goals in the Lackawanna and Luzermne
Counties Open Space,Greenways & Outdoor Recreation Master Plan:

e Provide a variety of outdoor recreation opportunities, including land and water-
based recreation, fo meet the diverse interests of citizens and visitors.
o Utilize innovative planning and development strategies and a variety of funding

sources and incentives to acquire, manage and preserve open space lands and
outdoor recreational resources. '

This project aligns with the following implementation strategies in the Lackawanna-
Luzerne Regional Plan:

e Greening Vacant Lots transforms otherwise derelict parcels from sources of
blight into valuable pieces of community green infrastructure.

° Neighborhood' Parks provide much-needed natural vegetation and trees in urban
settings and provide all the environmental and aesthetic benefits inherent in
community green infrastructure.

|dentification as a Priority Investment in a Local or Regional Economic Development
Plan or Strategy ' '

South Scranton, where the prbject is located, has been designated as a priority area by
the City.

Anticipated Employment, Investment, and/or Community Impact of the Project
This project will result in approximately $220,000 of initial investment in an underutilized
lot in a low-income, high-need area and create new opportunities for members of this

community to have positive interactions that improve the quality of life.

Historical and Proposed Use of the Project Site

The site previously had a blighted building on it which was demolished. The now vacant
lot will be transformed into a community garden and park.

Experience of the Developer Including Previously Completed Projects

Developer Frank Dubas is a native of Jessup, PA and a graduate of University of
Scranton. In 20186, he retired from Deloitte where he was the global managing partner
for Sovereign Financial Institutions (SF1). In this position, he oversaw a global network
of approximately 1,700 Deloitte professionals from more than 100 countries. In addition
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to the Garden of Cedar project, Dubas is developing a 40-room hotel on Lackawanna
Avenue in Scranton. He also serves on the board of trustees of University of Scranton
as well as on the President’s Business Council and the advisory committee to the Kania
School of Management.
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2. Project Schedule and Timeline
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Frank Dubas
Garden of Cedar

Growing Community, Jobs, and Food Park Project

Project Schedule & Timeline
December 31, 2019 — Soft Completion of all administrative and legal work
Early Spring 2020 — Funding Confirmed including 501(c)3 Status

Spring 2020 through Summer of 2020 — Construction
Fall 2020 — Planting Beds

Spring 2021 — Planting vegetables/flowers, etc.
Spring 2021 through Summer 2021 — Fully operational: community garden open, work with
local colleges and universities program, educational programs, job programs implemented
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3. Project Budget
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|OPINION OF PROBABLE COST FOR GARDEN OF CEDAR

'CEDAR AVENUE, SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

o

[GENERAL CONDITIONS

TOTAL COST !
ITEM# DESCRIPTION Qry UNIT MATERIAL LABOR (LABOR + MATERIAL)* QTY
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INSURANCE, BONDING,
1-1 MOBILIZATION 1ils $2,000.00 $2,000.00 4,000.00
:SITE PREPARATION & STABLIZATION TOTALCOST
(ITEM# DESCRIPTION Qry UNIT MATERIAL LABOR (LABOR + MATERIAL)* QTY |
2-1 CUT & FILL {OVERALL SITE BOUNDARY) 140]cy $22,00 $7.50 4,130.00
2-2. E&S CONTROLS (COMPOST FILTER SOCK) 45\LF $5.00 $5.00 450,00
iHARDSCAPE TOTAL COST ;
TTEM # DESCRIPTION qQry  UNIT MATERIAL LABOR (LABOR + MATERIAL)* QTY |
3-1 PRECAST CONCRETE HEXAGON SLAB 1300|SF $30.00 $10.00 $52,000.00
3-2 CONCRETE PATH AND PLAZAS 1758|SF $6.00 $6.00 $21,096.00
CUSTOM WATER FEATURE (SEATWALL, CISTERN STORAGE, PUMP,
33 RIVER ROCK) 11LS $4,500.00 $8,000.00 $12,500.00
‘SOFTSCAPE TOTAL
ITEM # DESCRIPTION QrY  UNIT MATERIAL LABOR {LABOR + MATERIAL)*QTY
4-1 HERB AREA {CHIVES, SAGE, BASIL, ETC.) 1|{LS $400.00 $200.00 $600.00
4-2 BERRY AREA (RASPBERRIES, BLACKBERRIES, ETC.) 1{1S $300.00 $200.00 $500.00
4-3 URBAN FORAGE AREA (LAMBS QUARTERS, PURSLANE, ETC.) 1]iS $300.00 $200.00 $500.00
4-4 ELEVATED PLANTING AREA (RAISED PLANTER BEDS) 6|EA $300.00 $100.00 $2,400.00
4-5 APPLE TREE (2.5" CALIPER, B&B) 1jEA $300.00 $300.00 $600.00
4-6 POLLINATOR PLANTING AREA (SEED, #t1 CONTAINERS) 605}SF $10.00 $10.00 $12,100.00
4-7 MULCH (DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD) 6|CY $32.00 $20.00 $312.00
4-8 AMENDED SOIL (IN-GROUND PLANTING AREAS ) 35|CY $45.00 $20.00 $2,275.00
4-9 TOP SOIL (ELEVATED PLANTING AREAS) 40jCY $45.00 $20.00 $2,600.00
IADDITIONAL SITE AMENITIES TOTAL
‘TEM# DESCRIPTION Qry UNIT MATERIAL LABOR (LABORHVIATERIAL)*QTY
5-1 FLAG POLE 1jEA $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,500.00
5-2 INFORMATION KIOSK 1{EA $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
5-3 COMPOST BIN 41EA $100.00 $50.00 $600.00
5-4 PICNIC TABLES 2|EA $500.00 $200.00 $1,400.00
5-5 CUSTOM ADA ACCESSIBLE PLANTERS 6]EA $1,000.00 $500.00 $9,000.00
5-6 FIREPIT WITH STUMP STOOLS 1{EA $1,000.00 $500.00 $1,500.00
5-7 PLAY AREA (SWING, CONCRETE FOOTERS) 1|EA $1,000.00 $1,300.00 $2,300.00 -
5-8 CONCRETE DEPRESSED CURB 99{LF $25.00 $15.00 $3,960.00
5-9 SAFETY SURFACE 181|SF $15.00 $20.00 $6,335.00
5-10 PLAYSURFACE GEQ-TEXTILE 181}SF $0.45 $1.50 $352.95
5-11 PLAYSURFACE SUB-DRAINAGE (4" PVC PERFORATED/SOLID PIPE) 12|LF $10.00 $14.00 $288.00
5-12 CONNECTION TO UTILITIES (WATER, GAS, ELECTIRC} 3|EA $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $19,500.00
5-13 BOLLARD LIGHTS 18{EA $300.00 $100.00 $7,200.00
514  GARDEN HOSE( HARDWARE, SPIGOT, HOSE, STAND) 21EA $300.00 $150.00 $900.00
5-15 IRRIGATION SYSTEM FOR ADA PLANTERS 6|EA $200.00 $150.00 $2,100.00
5-16 VERTICAL GARDEN WALLS {SOIL, PLANTS, MATERIALS, FOOTERS) 34|LF $50.00 $15.00 $2,210.00
CUSTOM BUILT SHED WITH GREEN ROOF + RAIN BARREL (TOOLS,
5-17 STORAGE, SEDUM) 1{LS $8,500.00 $3,000.00 $11,500.00
ESTIMATE SUB-TOTAL = $189,708.95
[IPROFESSIONAL SERVICES/ ADMINISTRATION TOTAL f
ITEM # DESCRIPTION QrY  UNIT MATERIAL LABOR (LABOR+UNIT COST)*QTY |
6-1 ADMINISTRATION {CONTRACT, GRANTS) (5% MAXIMUM) 1{LS N/A N/A $5,691.27
EINAL DESIGN, PERMITS, CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS, BID DOCS, PRE
6-2 BID MEETING, OVERSIGHT {10% MAXIMUM) 1S N/A N/A $14,228.17
6-3 CONTINGENCY (5%) 1S N/A N/A $9,485.45

ESTIMATE GRAND TOTAL

$219,113.84




Frank Dubas
Principal - The Garden of Cedar
485 Cheese Spring Road
New Canaan, CT 06840
fidubas@gmail.com
Cell—203-807-6264

September 30, 2019

Mr. Dennis M. Davin
Secretary

PA Department of Community & Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Dear Sir,

| wish to provide the following information to you with regard to my application for an LSA grant in the

amount of $100,000 to partially fund a community garden/park at 715 Cedar Avenue in Scranton, PA 18503.

Site Acquisition — 1 presently own the property (a vacant lot at 715 Cedar Avenue) free and clear. | have
engaged the law firm of Kreder Brooks Hailstone LLP in Scranton, PA to create a non-for-profit entity
(501c3) into which | will convey title to the property and relinquish all future economic interest. |
estimate the property has a fair market value of $12-15 thousand at present. | continue to pay all

expenses on the property such as property taxes, insurance, maintenance, etc. | will do so until the
property is conveyed to the non-for-profit entity.

Financial Statements — The not-for-profit has not yet been established. The budget for construction of
The Garden of Cedar has been prepared by the landscape architectural firm of Thomas J. Mclane &
Associates in Scranton, PA. The construction budget is approximately $220 K.

A proforma balance sheet of The Garden of Cedar as of today looks like this -

"Frank Dtibas donor désignated funds at the Scranton Area Foundation - $20,000
Frank Dubas property to be contributed - 15,000
Liabilities - 0
Total assets - $35,000
A proforma balance sheet of the Garden of Cedar as funded would look like this —

Frank Dubas donor designated funds at the Scranton Area Foundation - $20,000
Frank Dubas property to be contributed - _ 15,000
LSA grant - 100,000
Funding from additional sources - 100,000
Liabilities - 0
Total assets {i.e. The Garden of Cedar) $235,000

"LSA Eunding Request — The LSA funding request is specifically broken down below. All amounts are
" derived from thé total budgét cost of $219,113.84. -
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Land — NA the site has already been acquired
Buildings — NA
New Construction - $60,000 for portion of hardscape (item #3) per the architectural budget

Renovation - $15,000 for portion of soft scape (item #4) per the architectural budget
Roads/Streets - NA

Parking - NA

Water/Sewer - $15,000 for portion of connection to utilities (item #5-12)
Utilities — included in Water/Sewer

Demolition - NA

Excavation/Grading - $2,500 for portion of site preparation & stabilization (item #2)
Environmental Clean-up — included above

New Equipment Purchase - NA

Used Equipment Purchase - NA

Installation/Building Modification - NA

Vehicles - NA

Working Capital - NA

Salary - NA

Fringe Benefits - NA

Training/Technical Assistance - NA

Consumable Supplies - NA

Travel - NA

Promotion - NA

Office Equipment - NA

Space Costs — NA

Audit - NA

Indirect Costs - NA

Professional Service/Consultants - $7,500 included in professional services/administration (item #6)
Engineering — included in professional

fnspections - included in professional

Fees - included in professional

Insurance - included in professional

Environmental Assessment - included in professional
Legal Costs - included in professional

Closing - NA

Contingencies - NA

Other —NA

Project Schedule & Timeline — It is expected that all administrative and legal work will be completed by
December 31, 2019. Funding is to be completed by early spring 2020 in order that construction at the site
can begin soon thereafter. Construction would continue through the spring and conclude during the summer
of 2020. Planting beds would be prepared during the fall of 2020 such that the actual planting would be

done in the spring of 2021. It is expected that The Garden of Cedar will be fully operational in the spring of
2021 and thereafter.

I hope you find this information useful to your needs in the evaluation my request for a $100,000. | consider
this project to be a vital component to the needs and aspirations of the vital Cedar Avenue and surrounding
South Side Scranton Community. To that extent | have already contributed $20,000 of my own private funds.
| have also made the commitment to donate the land that | presently own to the project.
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During the remainder of 2019 and during early 2020 | will be seeking the additional funding necessary to

complete The Garden of Cedar. | have had preliminary discussions with several potential sources of funds.

| am available to answer your questions at any time. |look for to hearing from you.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Dubas
fidubas@gmail.com
Cell —203-807-6264

CC —Ms. Mary-Pat Ward, Executive Director, City of Scranton Office of Economic and Community
Development
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4. Bids/Quotes, Hstimates
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THOMAS J. McLANE & ASSOCIATES

Landscape Architecture
Environmental Science
Planning

September 25,2019

Stranton City Hall
340 N. Washington Ave.
Scranton, PA 18503

Attn:  Mary-Pat Ward
Re:  Garden of Cedar
Opinion of Probable Cost

601 Stafford Avenue
Scranton, PA 18505

Ph: (570) 347-3668
Fax: (570) 341-5413
E-mail: tmclane@mclaneassociates.com

Per your request, we estimate that $218,000(+-), would be a reasonable cost to complete
proposed “Garden of Cedar”, that includes an accessible walkway, play area, planting areas;,

pollinator area, water feature, and picnic area.

This opinion of costs is based upon recently completed projects at parks of similar size and
scope, such as Carbondale YMCA (Lackawanna County); Nay Aug Natural Play Area and
Crowley Park in Scranton (Lackawanna County); Pocono Heritage Land Trust Glen Run Nature

Area (Monroe County).

Should you have any questions or require any additional information please contact our office.

Sincerely,

Tom McLane, RLA, ASLA
Principal Landscape Architect
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[OPINION OF PROBABLE COST FOR GARDEN OF CEDAR

|CEDAR AVENUE, SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA

'GE Al GCONDITIONS TOTALCOST
\uggyj # DESCRIPTION Qry  UNIT MATERIAL LABOR (LABOR + MATERIALY* QTY
CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT, INSURANCE, BONDING,
11 MOBILIZATION 14LS $2,000.00 $2,000.00 4,000.00
iSITE PREPARATI®N & STABLIZATION TOTALCOST
ITEM# DESERIPTION aTry UNIT MATERIAL LABOR {LABOR + MATERIAL)F QTY
2-1 CUT & FILL (OVERALL SITE BOUNDARY) | 140icy $22.00 $7.50 4,130.00
2-2 E&S CONTROLS {COMPOST FILTER SOCK) | 45iLF $5.00 $5.00 450,00
{HARDSCAPE TOTAL COST 1
' V] DESCRIPTION ory UNIT MATERIAL LABOR {LABOR + MATERIAL)Y QTY
PRECAST CONCRETE HEXAGON SLAB 1300jSF $30.00 $10.00 $52,000.00
CONCRETE PATH AND PLAZAS 1758{SF $6.00 $6.00 $21,096.00
CUSTOM WATER FEATURE (SEATWALL, CISTERN STORAGE, PUMP,
3-3 RIVER ROCK) ' 1iLS $4,500.00 $8,000.00 $12,500.00
}?@FT‘:‘I CRPE TOTAL
‘TTEM # DESCRIPTION Qry  UNIT IIATERIAL LABOR (LABOR + MATERIALY*QTY
4-1 HERB AREA (CHIVES, SAGE, BASIL, ETC.) 1{Ls $400.00 $200.00 $600.00
4-2 BERRY AREA {RASPBERRIES, BLACKBERRIES, ETC.) 1]LS '$300.00 $200.00 $500.00
4-3 URBAN FORAGE AREA (LAMBS QUARTERS, PURSLANE, ETC.) 118 $300,00 $200.00 $500.00
4-4 ELEVATED PLANTING AREA (RAISED PLANTER BEDS) 6|EA $300.00 $100.00 $2,400.00
4-5 APPLE TREE {2.5" CALIPER, B&B) 1|EA $300.00 $300.00 $600.00
4-6 "POLLINATOR PLANTING ARFA (SEED, #1 CONTAINERS) 605|SF $10.00 $10.00 $12,100.00
4-7 MULCH (DOUBLE SHREDDED HARDWOOD) 6|CY $32,00 $20.00 $312.00
4-8 AMENDED SOIL (IN-GROUND PLANTING AREAS ) a5iCY $45.00 $20.00 $2,275.00
4-9 TOP SOIL{ELEVATED PLANTING AREAS) A0|CY $45,00 $20.00 $2,600.00
"IKDDiTIONAL SITE AMENITIES TOTAL i
ITEM # DESCRI PTION Qry UNIT MATERIAL LABOR (L&BQ_B;MA‘[EBJ_AL)*Q;_
51 FLAG POLE 1|EA $2,000.00 $1,500.00 $3,500.00
5-2 INFORMATION KIOSK 1|EA $500.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
53 COMPOST BIN AlEA $100,00 $50.00 $600.00
5-4 PICNIC TABLES 2|EA $500.00 $200.00 $1,400.00
5-5 CUSTOM ADA ACCESSIBLE PLANTERS 6lEA $1,000.00 $500.00 $9,000.00
5-6 FIREPIT WITH STUMP STOOLS 1|EA $1,000.00 $500.00 $1,500.00
5-7 PLAY AREA (SWING, CONCRETE FOOTERS) 1|EA $1,000.00 $1,300.00 $2,300.00
5-8 CONCRETE DEPRESSED CURB 99|LF $25.00 $15.00 $3,960.00
59 SAFETY SURFACE 181|SF $15.00 $20.00 $6,335.00
5-10 PLAYSURFACE GEO-TEXTILE 181|SF $0.45 $1.50 $352.95
5-11 PLAYSURFACE SUB-DRAINAGE (4" PVC PERFORATED/SOLID PIPE) 12|LF $10.00 . $14.00 $288.00
5-12 CONNECTION TO UTILITIES (WATER, GAS, ELECTI RC) 3|EA $5,000.00 $1,500.00 $19,500.00
513  BOLLARD LIGHTS 18|EA $300.00 $100.00 $7,200.00
5-14 GARDEN HOSE( HARDWARE, SPIGOT, HOSE, STAND) 21EA $300.00 $150.00 $900,00
5-15 IRRIGATION SYSTEM FOR ADA PLANTERS " B|EA $200.00 $150,00 $2,100.00
5-16 VERTICAL GARDEN WALLS (SOIL, PLANTS, MATERIALS, FOOTERS) 34jLF $50.00 $15.00 $2,210.00
CUSTOM BUILT SHED WITH GREEN ROOF + RAIN BARREL (TOOLS, .
517  STORAGE, SEDUM) 118 $8,500.00 $3,000.00 $14,500.00
ESTIMATE SUB-TOTAL = $189,708.95
IPROFESSIONAL SERVIEES/ ADMINISTRATION TOTAL 3
IITEM # DESCRIETION QY UNIT __ MATERIAL LABOR _ (LABOR:UNIT COST)}QTY
= ADMINISTRATION (CONTRACT, GRANTS) (5% MAXIMUM) 1{1S N/A N/A $5,691.27
FINAL DESIGN, PERMITS, CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS, BID DOCS, PRE
6-2 BID MEETING, OVERSIGHT (10% MAXIMUM) 1iLs N/A N/A $14,228.17
6-3 CONTINGENCY (5%) 1[Ls N/A N/A $9,485.45
ESTIMATE GRAND TOTAL =

$219,113.84




5. City Planning Support Letter
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CTFY HALL : 340 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE : SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANTA 18503 ; PHONE 570-348-4280 : FAX 570-348-4171

September 27, 2019

Sara Hailstone

Hailstone Economic, LLC
550 Clay Avenue Suite 5B
Scranton, PA, 18510

Re: . Garden of Cedar
TLocal Share Grant

Please accept this letter as evidence of support for your Local Share Grant funds application. for
funding to undertake the creation of the “Garden of Cedar” pocket park at 715 Cedar Ave.

We have determined that your project is consistent with our comprehensive plan and specifically
the stated goal of revitalizing the Cedar Avenue Corridor. Further after a review of the project

activities we have found that the project would be consistent with our zoning and planning
requirements.

Good luck with your application. If you have any further needs or questions please do not
hesitate to contact me at 570-348-4280 or dking@scrantonpa.gov.

Sincerely,

s "° n;\“.,

Donald J. King, AICP, CFM
City Planner



6. Mayor and Community
Support Letters
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Sé‘/’ﬂfﬂift OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

PENNSYLYANIA

CITY HALL = 340 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE @ SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 18503 e PHONE: 570-348-4101 o FAX;: 570-348-4251

September 2.7, 2019

Frank Dubas

¢/ o Sara Hailstone

HAILSTONE ECONOMIC, LLC
550 Clay Avenue

Suite 5B

Scranton, PA 18510

RE: LSA Grant Application (Montoe County) — Garden of Cedat
Growing Community, Jobs, and Food Patk Project

Dezﬁc Mz, Dubas:

Tt is my pleasute to offer the support of the City of Scranton fot the Gatden of Cedar Growing
Community, Jobs, and Food Patk Project. The City is committed to expanding setvices that meet
the needs of our community thtough public intetest, community improvement, econommic
development, and roadway improvement projects.

The proposed project plan to coordinate commmunity suppott to transform 715 cedatr Avenue to 2
patk that will cootdinate community suppott and create oppottunities for growing food, community
building, and job training cettainly suppotts and enhances community and economic well-being
which is the very putpose of the LSA Grant.

The Garden of Cedar projéct idea meets a public need for the City of Scranton and beyond. The
City’s Administration is m full support of this project and looks forwatd to wotking with you.

“Bvety day is out chance to make the City a little bettet.”

Mayor
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CHILD CARE
Administrative Qffice
570-344-9882
Bellevue Center
570-342-5251
Progressive Center
570-207-4950

Green Ridge Center
570-961-2224

COMMUNITY
YOUTH
Bellevue Center
570-342-5251
Progressive Center
570-207-4950
Leaders in Training
570-961-1592
Adventure Course
570-961-1592
Project Hope
570-344-9882
Creative Axts
570-961-1592

COMMUNITY
SERVICES
Emergency Assistance
570-343-8835

Energy Assistance
570-343-8835
Transitional Housing
570-343-8835

Permanent Supportive Housing

570-343-8835

One Stop Shop
570-343-8835

Rental Assistance
570-343-8835

Angel’s Attic
570-343-8835

Pirst Time Homebuyers
570-343-8835

Violence Intervention
570-343-8835
Foreclosure Prevention
570-343-8835

Post Foster Cave Housing
570-343-8835

* Community Organizing
570-343-8835

SENIOR CENTERS
‘West Side Center
570-961-1592

South Side Center
570-346-2487
Carbondale Center
570-282-6167

Mid Valley Center
570-489-4415

SCOLA
570-346-6203

UNITED NEIGHBORHOOD CENTERS
of Northeastern Pennsylvania

777 Keystone Industrial Park Road, Throop, Pennsylvania 18512

Phone: (570) 346-0759

www.uncnepa.org

To Whom It May Concern, 9/25/2019

lam writing this letter to show United Neighborhood Center’s support for the creation of
The Garden of Cedar at 715 Cedar Avenue in South Scranton. We feel this project will be a

welcome enhancement to the community, as well as fill a vital need for fresh food that
South Side is unfortunately lacking.

United Neighborhood Centers of NEPA has been doing community revitalization work in this
neighborhood since 2009, We have seen much positive community-led change which has
resulted in a 29% reduction in crime, redevelopment of the commercial areas and the
opening of new businesses. However, fresh food access continues to be lacking within the

community. Seeing private individuals begin to invest in the community is very exciting to
us. '

We have known Frank Dubas for several years in discussing this project as well as other
initiatives in the South Scranton neighborhoad. He can often be seen on foot walking

around the neighborhood chatting with residents, employees and business owners. Frank
has actively engaged community stakeholders as well as technical experts, such as university
programs, to ensure that this is truly a community led and high quality project.

After the closing of Weis Market in 2016, South Scranton was designated by “Food Desert”
by USDA, which means it is a low-income area with a substantial number of residents with
low levels of access to retail outlets selling healthy and affordable foods. To be considered a
“low-access community,” at least 500 people and/or at least 33 percent of the census tract's
population must reside more than one mile from a supermarket or large grocery store.

Scranton also has a rapidly growing immigrant populatfon. Almost 10% of the city’s
population are foreign-born and wide array of cultures are represented including
immigrants from Latin America, South Asia, the Middle East, and Africa, with a significant
portion of these populations living in the city's South Side, The neighborhood is made up of
over 60% renters who often do not have access to land with which to grow their own food.
The Garden at Cedar can help to address the issue of access while promoting cross-cultural
sharing and relationship building within the community.

We support this project and feel it will be an asset to the community, as well as help address
the vital issue of food access.

Sincerely,

Chrissy Manuel

Interim Director, Community Education and Revitalization Department
United Neighborhood Centers of NEPA
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Member, Unlted Way
of Lackawanna and
Wayne Counties
Member of

v
COMMUNITY HEALTH 631 Cedar Avenue, Scranton PA 18505

570-880-7130

Alllance for Strong
Families and Communities



MARTY FLYNN, MEMBER
113TH LEGISLATIVE DISTRICT

JAY'S COMMONS
409 NORTH MAIN AVENUE
SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 18504
{570) 342-4348
FAX: (570) 342-4353

323 MAIN CAPITOL BUILDING
R0, BOX 202113

HARRISBURG, PENNSYLVANIA 17120-2113 >
Mo Housge of Representatines
FAX: (717) 705-1958 .
TOLL FREE: 1-877-841-1450 Commonwealth of Penmsylvania

Harrisburg

Ms, Mandy Book

Department of Community and Economic Development
Center for Business Financing -~ Grants Division

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Deall Ms. Book:

COMMITTEES

APPROPRIATIONS
CONSUMER AFFAIRS
INSURANCE
PROFESSIONAL LICENSURE

-

Please accept this letter as my endorsement and recommendation of support for the (Lackawanna County) The

Garden of Cedar request in this PA DCED LSA Monroe County grant application.

The Garden of Cedar property is located at 715 Cedar Avenue in Scranton The Garden will be constructed in an
aesthetically pleasing park-like setting. The property will provide garden plots for the residents of the Cedar
Avenue community. Garden plots will be allocated to community residents, who will be encouraged to “showcase”
culturally significant vegetables and fruits. Also, a specific plot will be allocated to Lackawanna College for
cultivation of crops beneficial to the culinary degree program offered by the college. The eastern end of the
property will contain a small children’s playground which is also intended to be a “discovery™ station.

The goal of The Garden of Cedar is to offer a functional garden and a pleasing park to an ethnic community in a

manner that celebrates the diverse cultures of the United States of America. It will be a year-round functional park

capable of hosting seasonal events such as harvest festivals, a Halloween Spooktacular, winter holiday market,

scavenger hunts, Spring festivals, etc.

The primary accomplishment of the project is the enhancement of the Cedar Avenue community and the
surrounding area through the development and sustainment of a community garden/park in a densely populated area
currently designated as a food desert. The Garden of Cedar area is home to a diverse urban mix of recent

industrious immigrants as well as long-time residents.

Positive consideration for this grant will be a tremendous help and asset to this neighborhood.

I respectfully urge you to consider funding this worthy project for the people and businesses of this region.

Sincerely,

Représentative Marty Flynn
113th Legislative District
Pennsylvania House of Representatives
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7. Legislation
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Resolution

Please Note: Upon approval by Scranton City
- Council, legislation will be submitted regarding this
application.
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8. Funding Commitment Letter

157



Frank Dubas
Principal - The Garden of Cedar
485 Cheese Spring Road
New Canaan, CT 06840
fidubas@gmail.com
Cell - 203-807-6264

-September 30, 2019

Mr. Dennis M. Davin

Secretary

PA Department of Community & Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Dear Sir,

| wish to provide the following information to you with regard to my application for an LSA grant in the
amount of $100,000 to partially fund a community garden/park at 715 Cedar Avenue in Scranton, PA 18503.

Site Acquisition — | presently own the property (a vacant lot at 715 Cedar Avenue) free and clear. 1 have
engaged the law firm of Kreder Brooks Hailstone LLP in Scranton, PA to create a non-for-profit entity
(501c3) into which | will convey title to the property and relinguish all future economic interest. |
estimate the property has a fair market value of $12-15 thousand at present. | continue to pay all

expenses on the property such as property taxes, insurance, maintenance, etc. [ will do so until the
property is conveyed to the non-for-profit entity.

Financial Statements — The not-for-profit has not yet been established. The budget for construction of
The Garden of Cedar has been prepared by the landscape architectural firm of Thomas J. Mclane &
Associates in Scranton, PA. The construction budget is approximately $220 K.

A proforma balance sheet of The Garden of Cedar as of today looks like this -

Frank Dubas donor designated funds at the Scranton Area Foundation - $20,000

‘Frank Dubas property to be contributed - 115,000
Liabilities - 0
Total assets - 535,000
A proforma balance sheet of the Garden of Cedar as funded would look like this —

Frank Dubas donor designated funds at the Scranton Area Foundation - $20,000
Frank Dubas property to be contributed - 15,000
LSA grant - 100,000
Funding from additional sources - 100,000
Liabilities - 0
Total assets (i.e. The Garden of Cedar) $235,000

LSA Funding Request — The LSA funding request is specifically broken down below. All amounts are
derived from the total budget cost of $219,113.84.
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Land — NA the site has already been acquired
Buildings — NA
New Construction - $60,000 for portion of hardscape (item #3) per the architectural budget

Renovation - $15,000 for portion of soft scape (item #4) per the architectural budget
Roads/Streets - NA

Parking - NA

Water/Sewer - $15,000 for portion of connection to utilities (item #5-12)
Utilities — included in Water/Sewer

Demolition - NA

Excavation/Grading - $2,500 for portion of site preparation & stabilization (item #2)
Environmental Clean-up — included above

New Equipment Purchase - NA

Used Equipment Purchase - NA

Installation/Building Modification - NA

Vehicles - NA

Working Capital - NA

Salary - NA

Fringe Benefits - NA

Training/Technical Assistance - NA

Consumable Supplies - NA

Travel - NA

Promotion - NA

Office Equipment - NA

Space Costs — NA

Audit - NA

Indirect Costs - NA

Professional Service/Consultants - $7,500 included in professional services/administration (item #6)
Engineering — included in professional

Inspections - included in professional

Fees - included in professional

Insurance - included in professional

Environmental Assessment - included in professional
Legal Costs - included in professional

Closing - NA

Contingencies - NA

Other—NA

Project Schedule & Timeline — It is expected that all administrative and legal work will be completed by
December 31, 2019. Funding is to be completed by early spring 2020 in order that construction at the site
can begin soon thereafter. Construction would continue through the spring and conclude during the summer
0f 2020. Planting beds would be prepared during the fall of 2020 such that the actual planting would be

done in the spring of 2021. It is expected that The Garden of Cedar will be fully operational in the spring of
2021 and thereafter.

| hope you find this information useful to your needs in the evaluation my request fora $100,000. | consider
this project to be a vital component to the needs and aspirations of the vital Cedar Avenue and surrounding
South Side Scranton Community. To that extent | have already contributed $20,000 of my own private funds.
| have also made the commitment to donate the land that | presently own to the project.
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Duringthe remainder of 2019 and durirg early 2020 | will be seeking the additional funding necessary to:
tomplete-The Garden of €edar. | have had preliminary discussions with several potential sources of funds

| am available to answer your questions at any time. 1look for to hearing from you.

Respectfully submitted,‘

Frank Dubas
fidubas@gmail.com
Cell —203-807-6264

CC — Ms. Mary-Pat Ward, Executive Director, City of Scranton Office of Economic and Community
Development
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9. Applicant Financials
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Frank Dubas
Principal - The Garden of Cedar
485 Cheese Spring Road
New Canaan, CT 06840
fidubas@gmail.com
Cell —203-807-6264

September 30, 2019

Mr. Dennis M. Davin

Secretary

PA Department of Community & Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Dear Sir,

| wish to provide the following information to you with regard to my application for an LSA grant in the

amount of $100,000 to partially fund a community garden/park at 715 Cedar Avenue in Scranton, PA 18503.

Site Acquisition — | presently own the property (a vacant lot at 715 Cedar Avenue) free and clear. 1 have
engaged the law firm of Kreder Brooks Hailstone LLP in Scranton, PA to create a non-for-profit entity
(501c3) into which | will convey title to the property and relinquish all future economic interest. |
estimate the property has a fair market value of $12-15 thousand at present. | continue to pay all

expenses on the property such as property taxes, insurance, maintenance, etc. | will do so until the
property is conveyed to the non-for-profit entity.

! Financial Statements — The not-for-profit has riot yet been established, The budget for construction of
The Garden of Cedar has been prepared by the landscape architectural firm of Thomas J. McLane &
Associates in Scranton, PA. The construction budget is approximately $220 K.

A proforma balance sheet of The Garden of Cedar as of today looks like this -

Frank Dubas donor designated funds at the Scranton Area Foundation -

$20,000
Frank Dubas property to be contributed - 15,000
Liabilities - ’ 0
Total assets - $35,000
A proforma balance sheet of the Garden of Cedar as funded would look like this —
Frank Dubas donor designated funds at the Scranton Area Foundation - $20,000
Frank Dubas property to be contributed - 15,000
LSA grant - 100,000
Funding from additional sources - 100,000
Liabilities - 0
Total assets {i.e. The Garden of Cedar) $235,000

LSA Funding Request — The LSA funding request is specifically broken down below, All amounts are
derived from the total budget cost of $219,113.84.
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Land — NA the site has already been acquired
Buildings — NA
New Construction - $60,000 for portion of hardscape (item #3) per the architectural budget

Renovation - $15,000 for portion of soft scape (item #4) per the architectural budget
Roads/Streets - NA

Parking - NA

Water/Sewer - $15,000 for portion of connection to utilities (item #5-12)
Utilities — included in Water/Sewer

Demolition - NA

Excavation/Grading - $2,500 for portion of site preparation & stabilization (item #2)
Environmental Clean-up — included above

New Equipment Purchase - NA

Used Equipment Purchase - NA

installation/Building Modification - NA

Vehicles - NA

Working Capital - NA

Salary - NA

Fringe Benefits - NA

Training/Technical Assistance - NA

Consumable Supplies - NA

Travel - NA

Promotion - NA

Office Equipment - NA

Space Costs — NA

Audit - NA

Indirect Costs - NA

Professional Service/Consultants - $7,500 included in professional services/administration (item #6)
Engineering — included in professional

Inspections - included in professional

Fees - included in professional

Insurance - included in professional

Environmental Assessment - included in professional
Legal Costs - included in professional

Closing - NA

Contingencies - NA

Other —NA

Project Schedule & Timeline — It is expected that all administrative and legal work will be completed by
December 31, 2019. Funding is to be completed by early spring 2020 in order that construction at the site
can begin soon thereafter. Construction would continue through the spring and conclude during the summer
of 2020. Planting beds would be prepared during the fall of 2020 such that the actual planting would be

done in the spring of 2021, It is expected that The Garden of Cedar will be fully operational in the spring of
2021 and thereafter.

I hope you find this information useful to your needs in the evaluation my request for a $100,000. I consider

this project to be a vital component to the needs and aspirations of the vital Cedar Avenue and surrounding

~  South Side Scranton Community. To that extent | have already contributed $20,000 of my own private funds.
| have also made the commitment to donate the land that | presently own to the project.
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During the remainder of 2019 and during early 2020 [ will be seeking the additional funding necessary to
complete The Garden of Cedar. | have had preliminary discussions with several potential sources of funds

| am available to answer your questions at any time. 1 look for to hearing from you.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Dubas
fidubas@gmail.com
Cell - 203-807-6264

CC —Ms. Mary-Pat Ward, Executive Director, City of Scranton Office of Economic and Community
Development
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Sé’/ﬂWI/L DEPARTMENT OF LAW

PENNSYLVANIA CITY HALL ® 340 NORTH WASHINGTON AVENUE ® SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA 18503 ® PHONE: 570-348-4105 @ FAX: 570-348-4263

October 18, 2019

RECEIVE]D

To the Honorable Council

Of the City of Scranton 0CT 18 2019
Municipal Building

Scranton, PA 18503 OFFICE OF CITY

COUNCIL/CITY CLERK
Dear Honorable Council Membets:

ATTACHED IS A RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND APPROVING OF
THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF THE GRANT APPLICATION BY
THE CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF GARDEN OF CEDAR, TO THE
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA ACTING THROUGH THE
COMMONWEALTH FINANCING AUTHORITY FOR A LOCAL SHARE
ACCOUNT GRANT, PURSUANT TO THE PA RACE HORSE DEVELOPMENT
AND GAMING ACT IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000.00 FOR THE PROJECT
TO BE KNOWN AS " GARDEN OF CEDAR — GROWING COMMUNITY,
JOBS, AND FOOD PARK PROJECT" LOCATED AT 715 CEDAR AVENUE,
SCRANTON, PENNSYLVANIA, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND
OTHER APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON, PA,
TO ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE AND ENTER
INTO A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND
COMMITMENT LETTER WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF
PENNSYLVANIA TO ACCEPT AND UTILIZE THE GRANT IN THE
AMOUNT OF $100,000.00 AWARD ED BY THE COMMONWEALTH OF
PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

Respectfully,

ﬁ.« Elg .
Jessica L. Eskra, Esquire
City Solicitor

JLE/sl
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RESOLUTION NO.
2019

RATIFYING AND APPROVING OF THE EXECUTION AND SUBMISSION OF
THE GRANT APPLICATION BY THE CITY OF SCRANTON, ON BEHALF OF
THE SCRANTON CULTURAL CENTER , TO THE COMMONWEALTH OF
PENNSYLVANIA ACTING THROUGH THE COMMONWEALTH FINANCING
AUTHORITY FOR A LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT, PURSUANT TO THE
PA RACE HORSE DEVELOPMENT AND GAMING ACT IN THE AMOUNT OF
$140,000.00 FOR THE PROJECT TO BE KNOWN AS " SCRANTON CULTURAL
CENTER - ELEVATOR REPLACEMENT PROJECT" LOCATED AT 420 NORTH
WASHINGTON AVENUE, AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND OTHER
APPROPRIATE CITY OFFICIALS OF THE CITY OF SCRANTON, PA, TO
ACCEPT THE GRANT, IF SUCCESSFUL, AND EXECUTE AND ENTER INTO A
LOCAL SHARE ACCOUNT GRANT CONTRACT AND COMMITMENT LETTER
WITH THE COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA TO ACCEPT AND
UTILIZE THE GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $140,000.00 AWARDED BY THE
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA FOR SUCH PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the City of Scranton, through the Office of Economic and Community
Development, will submit a grant application on behalf of the Scranton Cultural Center to
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania ("the Commonwealth") acting through the
Commonwealth Financing Authority (the "Grantor”) for a Local Share Account Grant,
pursuant to the PA Race Horse Development and Gaming Act, for elevator replacement
("Project") located at 420 North Washington Avenue, Scranton, Pennsylvania. A copy of
such “Project” details is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" and incorporated herein as if set
forth at length; and

WHEREAS, the City of Scranton intends herein to ratify and approve the execution
and submission of the Grant Application; and

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania will review the Grant Application
for funding for the Local Share Account Grant in the amount of $140,000.00 ("Grant") for
the "Project"; and

WHEREAS, if the Grant Application is approved, the City of Scranton intends
herein to authorize the execution of the Local Share Account Grant Contract and
Commitment Letter, and the acceptance, disbursement, and utilization of the Grant for the
Project.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF SCRANTON that the execution and submission of the “Grant” Application is hereby

ratified and if approved, the Mayor and other appropriate City Officials are hereby
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authorized to enter into and execute and submit any additional related paperwork for this
“Grant”, and if successful, to accept the grant funds to be used for the “Project” as attached
hereto. This approval anticipates and authorizes the execution of any and all related
documentation necessary for the “Grant” or to accept, disburse, and utilize the “Grant” for
the “Project.”

SECTION 1. If any section, clause, provision or portion of this Resolution
shall be held invalid or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, such
decisions shall not affect any other section, clause, provision or portion of this
Ordinance so long as it remains legally enforceable minus the invalid portion. The
City reserves the right to amend this Ordinance or any portion thereof from time to
time as it shall deed advisable in the best interest of the promotion of the purposes
and intent of this Ordinance, and the effective administration thereof.

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon
approval.

SECTION 3. This Resolution is enacted by the Council of the City of
Scranton under the anthority of the Act of the Legislature, April 13, 1972, Act No.
62, known as the “Home Rule Charter and Optional Plans Law”, and any other

applicable law arising under the laws of the State of Pennsylvania.
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Scranton

OKD

Office of Economic and ) -
Community Development

Octobet 17,2019

Via Hand Delivery

Jessica Eskta, Bsquite

340 Nozth Washington Avenue
4™ Fl,, Law Department
Scranton, PA 18503

Re: Resolution '
City of Scranton, OECD on behalf of the Scranton Cultural Center — Elevatot
Replacement Project

Deat Attornéy Eskra:

The City of Scranton, speécifically OECD, is tequesting apptoval to submit a LSA Grant
application on behalf of the Scranton Cultural Center for their elevator teplacement project.

OECD is tequesting that you review the attached Resolution and submit it to City Council
_fot approval.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you should need additional information.

Sincex

3>

d

Maty-Pat Ward
Executive Ditector

/mpw

_ CITY OF SCRANTON OFFICE OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
340 N. Washington Avenue « Scranton, Pennsylvania 18503 « Tel: (570) 348-4216 « Fax (570)348-4123 + www.scrantonpa.gov
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Office of Economic and
Community Development

September 30, 2019

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

Attn: Customert Sexvice Center

400 North Street, 4™ Floot

Hatrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Re: LSA Grant Application (Monroe County)
Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple
Elevator Replacement
Single Application Id: 201909309207

To Whom It May Concetn:

Enclosed please find a Single Application for Assistance with Progtam Addenda regardjilg
the above-referenced mattet.

Thank you fot your time and consideration in this matter. Please do not hesitate to contact
me if you should need additional information.

Sincetely,

/e

Mary-Pat Ward
Executive Director

MPW/
Cc: John Cardoni

CITY OF SCRANTON OFFICE OF ECONOMIC AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
340 N. Washington Avenue + Scranton, Pennsylvania 18503 + Tel: (570) 348-4216 + Fax (570)348-4123 www.scranfonpa.gov



Single Application for Assistance Page 1 ¢

Agency: Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Applicant: City of Scranton

Web Application #: 8347392

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Fact Sheet Program Guidelines

Application Certification

A fee of $100.00 was collected for this application. Authorization code: 030599, Transaction ID:
4588463461 .

Single _Application ID #: 201909309207
The web application has been successfully submitted for processing.

| hereby certify that all information contained in the single application and supporting materials
submitted via the Internet, Single Application # 201909309207 and its attachments are true
and correct and accurately represent the status and economic condition of the Applicant, and |
also certify that, if applying on behalf of the applicant, | have verified with an authorized
representative of the Applicant that such informatien is true and correct and accurately
represents the status and economic condition of the Applicant. | also understand that if 1
knowingly make a false statement or overvalue a security to obtain a grant and/or loan from the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, | may be subject to criminal prosecution in accordance with
18 Pa.C.S. § 4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to autherities) and 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 and
3802 (relating to false claims and statements).

The signature page may also be printed now. You may also print submitted applications from
the Home page. Click the link labeled "Submitted Applications” in the top toolbar.

Print Signature Page only

Print Entire Application with Signature Page

The signature page along with any paper supporting documents can be mailed to the following
address:

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

Attn: Customer Service Center

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED)
Single Application for Assistance, Version Release 5.8.0.1n9

Tettoncs /exrxresr acn Aead atate na 11e/Certification asnx?requestkev=e6cd2058-6bab-46a6-8cd0... 9/30/2019



Single Application for Assistance

—
Pagel ol

Web Application Id: 8347392
Applicant: City of Scranton

Single Application for Assistance
Single Application Id: 201909309207

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Nlasonic Temple
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Applicant Information

Applicant Entity Type:

Government

Applicant Name:

[City of Scranton

NAICS Code

FEIN/SSN Number

XXXHXHXXXXX

DUNS Number:

CEOQO:

lWayne E. Evans

CEO Title:

SAP Vendor #:

Contact Name:

| Mary-Pat Ward

Contact Title:

‘Executive Director, OECD

Phone:

[(570)-348-4216 |

Ext,

Fax:

E-mail:

ﬁpward@scrantonpa.gov

Mailing Address:

340 North Washington Avenue

City:

State:

Zip Code

11118503

hHre oo eqa deed etate pa.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019



Single Application for Assistance
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Single Application for Assistance
Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application Id: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton
Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County
[ I |
Single Application for Assistance
Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application Id: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton
Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple
Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County
Company Information
Company Entity Type:|Non-Profit Corporation
Company Name: ‘Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple
Charitable organization?| True
NAICS Code||7113
FEIN: XXX XXX
DUNS Number:|[825457443 |
CEO: Eeborah M. Peterson
CEO Title: |Executive Director
SAP Vendor # | XXX
Contact Name: |{John Cardoni
Contact Title: Eeneral Manager
Phone: |[(570)-346-7369 |  Ext.
Fax:|| |
E-mail; |jcardoni@scrantonculturalcenter.org
Mailing Address:|420 Washington Avenue
City: IScranton
State:|PA
Zip Code:||18503
htins://fwww.esa.dced.state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance Page3 ol §

Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application Id: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

.Business Specifics

Current # of Full-time
Employees:

(World Wide:)

Minority Owned:|No

Woman Owned: |No

Total Sales $:
Total Export Sales $: E

R&D Investment: F)_—::l (% of Budget)

Employee Training !
Investment: D ffa of Buge

Enterprise Type

élndicate the types of enterprises that describe the organization listed above. You may select more than one type.

D Advanced Technology D Agri-Processor D Agri-Producer
DAuthority D Biotechnology / Life Sciences D Business Financial Services
D Call Center D Child Care Center D Commercial
D Community Dev. Provider E] Computer & Clerical Operators I:] Defense Related
D Economic Dev. Provider Iz Educational Facility D Emergency Responder
D Environment and Conservation @ Exempt Facility D Export Manufacturing
D Export Service D Food Processing L—_l Government
D Healthcare D Hospitality D Industrial
D Manufacturing I:l Mining Other
‘ D Professional Services D Recycling D Regional & National Headquarters
l:] Research & Development D Retail L__I Social Services Provider
: Tourism Promotion [ warehouse & Terminal
‘| Educational Facility, Exempt Facility,Other, Tourism Promotion,

: —

Tt Hxrmarar aea dead state na ne/Print.aspy 9/30/2019



Single Application for Assistance

<
Page 4 of 5

Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application Id: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Overview

Project Name: ‘
Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple - Elevator Replacement

Is this project related to another previously submitted project?
Yes

if yes, indicate previous project name:
Scranton Cultural Center - Elevator safety/Modernization

Have you contacted anyone at DCED about your project?

No

If yes, indicate who:

Todte o Ao mom Anad atate 1a 11¢/Print aenxs

9/30/2019



Single Application for Assistance Page 5 o E

Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application Id: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Site Locations

Address: |420 North Washington Avenue

City: |Scranton

State: |PA

Zip Code: [ 18503

County: {Lackawanna

Municipality: |Scranton City

PA House: |Kyle Mullins (112), Marty Flynn (113)
PA Senate: |John P. Blake (22)

Designated Areas: |Act 47 Distressed Community

https://www.esa.dced.state. pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance
Web Application Id: 8347392
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Single Application Id: 201909309207

Project Budget

Local Share sCC Total
Account Private
Fund
(Gaming
Funds)
Monroe
County
Machinery & Equipment $140,000.00| $125,000.00
New Equipment Purchase $140,000.00] $125,000.00 $265,000.00
Operating Costs / Working Capital $.00 $3,000.00
Audit $.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
Related Costs $.00 $20,000.00
Contingencies $.00 $20,000.00 $20,000.00
Miscellaneous $.00 $7,000.00
City Admin. Costs $.00 $7,000.00 $7,000.00
Total $140,000.00| $155,000.00
Budget $295,000.00
Total:

Basis of Cost
Provide the basis for calculating the costs that are identified in the Project Budget.

Bids/Quotations

Budget Narrative

qualify for that particular resource. Please read the Program Guidelines for details.

discussions with Otis Elevator and other professionals.
2 Overall elevator equipment costs and installation fees

4. City administration fee is based on

The narrative must specifically address each of the cost items identified in the Project Budget sect
categories, you must specify what the money will be used for. NOTE: Some programs have specific guidelines regarding the narrative necessary to

ion. If an amount is placed in any of the OTHER

1. The budget has been developed from the proposals submitted by Port Elevator Company as well as

are from a quote from Port Elevator.
3. Licenses, permits, and inspection fees are included in the proposal.
5% of the total grant award as per previous LSA projects.

Tttma Hararw eca deed state na.us/Print.aspx

9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application ld: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Project Narrative

What do you plan to accomplish with this project?

Identify the problem(s) that need to be resolved.

The original hoist mechanisms have been determined by Otis elevator technicians to not be able to be
repaired. This is due to the age (90 years) and construction (parts cast in place) and the unavailability of
parts either off the shelf or machined. One of the two elevators is now permanently out of service leaving
us one to be able to get people and equipment to other floors. Should the other car suffer a similar failure,
the building would most inoperable due to iack of both A.D.A. access and the inability to move people
and equipment to the other floors.

How do you plan to accomplish it?

Include expected outcomes that are measurable, obtainable, clear and understandable, and valid. Examples of measurable outcomes include jobs
created or retained, people trained, land or building acquired, housing units renovated or built, etc.

An investigation was done and bids were secured to attempt to repair the elevator that was taken out of
service. The winning submitter, Otis Elevator, sent in technicians to take apart the hoist motor to more
fully determine the failed components. During the investigation, it was determined that due to age and
lack of modern replacement parts, the unit could not be repaired or returned to service. We asked for
replacement options and pricing. From this, we developed a budget from which the submission was
developed. We will need to completely remove the existing 1930 hoist mechanisms, lift cables and all
associated hardware and control mechanisms. The control systems, through a single interface, must be
upgraded in order to handle additional safety mechanisms now required on modern elevators. The other
unit must also be upgraded to comply with code.

How do you plan to use the funds?
Should include specific use of funds and reflect the budget provided with the application.

The LSA funds would include the equipment purchase(s) required to fix the elevators including the hoist
mechanisms, lift cables, and associated hardware, and control mechanisms.

Projected Schedule and Key Milestones and Dates

A detailed schedule of activities, including key milestones and dates, must accompany this application if applicable to the project.
Completed - July through September 2019: Determine repair and replace status, secure inoperable
elevator, secure funding commitment through Masonic Temple Association, secure Board resolution
Ongoing - secure additional funding

October - November 2019: Award contract, pre-order site survey, order equipment, deposit due
April/May 2020 - Equipment arrival

April through June 2020 - change out hoist 1, install new cables, safety systems and controllers

June through August 2020 - change out hoist 2, install safety systems and controllers

August through September 2020 - testing, commissioning, inspections

LTIP VY ¥ S, iimn Anad atata mwa 11a/Print aeny 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application ld: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Addenda

In addition to the Single Application, the Applicant shall submit the following list of items. All items marked with a red diamond are required to be
uploaded to the application. The items that are not required should be uploaded if they are applicable to the project.

1. Provide a description of the project which discusses all of the following: (a) a detailed project description to include specific project activities and
expected results; (b) the specific location of the project site; (¢) whether the proposed project is consistent with an existing regional, county, or local
comprehensive plan; (d) whether the proposed project has been identified as a priority investment in a local or regional economic development plan or
strategy: (e) the anticipated employment, investment, and/or community impact of the project; (f) if a difference exists, the historical and proposed use

Uploaded Documents

1. 2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cuitural Center, Project Narrative.pdf ~ View

| Uploaded Documents

2. 2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cultu

ral Center, Project Schedule and Timeline.pdf  View

3. A budget accompanied by a description of the basis of costs for the project and sources of funding;

s} Uploaded Documents

i

3. 2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cuitur

al Center, Project Budget.pdf View

4. Copies of signed bids/quotations, contractor estimates, sales agreements, or engineer estimates verifying project costs. Bids should be current and
dated;

Uploaded Documents

i
!
i-% 4.2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cultural Center,

Bids Quotes Estimates.pdf  View

5. Evidence of conformity of the project with local and regional comprehensive plans and zoning (in the form of a letter from the applicable
planning/zoning office), if applicable;

i ESUS—— Rt SR ARSI - s s g et S—

; Uploaded Documents

5. 2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cultural Center, City Planning Support Letter.pdf View

6. A letter of support for the project from the affected community;

i Uploaded Documents !

Titncs ararar eea deed otate na.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Single Application for Assistance

Web Application Id: 8347392 Single Application Id: 201909309207
Applicant: City of Scranton

Company: Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Program Selected: Local Share Account Fund (Gaming Funds) Monroe County

Program Addenda

{
| 6. 2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cultural Center, Mayor and Community Support 3
! Letters.pdf  View }

7. Provide a resolution duly adopted by the applicant's governing board formally requesting the grant, designating an official to execute all documents,
describing briefly the project scope, and identifying the grant amount;

Uploaded Documents \
|
\

7.2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cultural

Center, Resolution.pdf  View

8. Copies of funding commitment letters from all other project funding sources, if applicable; and

Uploaded Documents

8. 2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cultural Center, Funding Commitment Letter.pdf ~ View

9. Copy of the Applicant's and/or project user's latest financials.

Once submitted, please print one (1) copy of the completed application, to include all required and additional applicable supplemental information, and
send via US Mail, Please reference the Application ID number on all mailed documents.

! Uploaded Documents

9. 2019 LSA Application, Scranton Cultural Center, Applicant Financials.pdf ~ View

Tddomes Hxymxrmxr oaa deed .q’m‘re.nale/Print.aSDX 9/3 0/201 9
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Pennsyl\iania Department of Community and Economic

Development
Single Application for Assistance

Single Application #: 201909309207

This page must accompany all required supplemental information Mail to:

Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development
Commonwealth Keystone Building

Attn: Customer Service Center

400 North Street, 4th Floor

Harrisburg, PA 17120-0225

| hereby certify that all information contained in the single application and supporting materials submitted to DCED via
the Internet, Single Application # 201909309207 and its attachments are true and correct and accurately represent the
status and economic condition of the Applicant, and | also certify that, if applying on behalf of the applicant, | have
verified with an authorized representative of the Applicant that such information is true and correct and accurately
represents the status and economic condition of the Applicant. | also understand that if | knowingly make a false
statement or overvalue a security to obtain a grant and/or loan from the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, | may be
subject to criminal prosecution in accordance with 18 Pa.C.S. § 4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to authorities)
and 31 U.S.C. §§ 3729 and 3802 (relating to false claims and statements).

Signature: Mary-Pat Ward

The Pennsylvania Department of Community and Economic Development reserves the right to accept or reject any or
all applications submitted on the Single Application for Assistance contingent upon available funding sources and
respective applicant eligibility.

e arorw eca deed state.pa.us/Print.aspx 9/30/2019
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Scranton

OE(D

Office of Economic and
Community Development

1. Desctiption of Project
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420 North Washington Avenue

SRR Nl SCRANTONCULTURALCENTER

Office: (570) 346.7369 oo y
Fax: (570) 346.7365  .g&n.7

al the Masontc Temple

LIFECELEBRATED.

www.ScrantonCulturalCenter.org 3

September 25, 2019

Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple

Elevator Replacement for A.D.A. Compliance and Public Safety and Access

Project Narrative

The Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple is a national, historic architectural treasure located in the
heart of the historic district of Scranton, Pennsylvania. It has been in continuous operation and available to the
community since 1930.

Request

The Scranton Cultural Center is seeking $140,000.00 of a $295,000.00 project to replace the irreparable hoist and
control mechanisms of the two 1930 Otis Elevators. The requested amount is to match existing and anticipated
funds of the project, of which the SCC has already secured $125,000.00.

Problem

The original hoist mechanisms have been determined by Otis elevator technicians to not be able to be repaired.
This is due to the age (90 years) and construction (parts cast in place) and unavailability of parts either off the
shelf or machined. One of the two elevators is now permanently out of service leaving us one to be able to get
people and equipment to other floors. Should the other car suffer a similar failure, the building would become
mostly inoperable due to lack of both A.D.A. access and the inability to move people and equipment to the other
floors.

The Otis elevators are original to the construction of the building dating back to 1930. A required upgrade to
meet ADA standards was done in 2002 / 2003 at which time the original hand operated floor doors, gates and
interior controls were replaced and automated. At that time, portions of the control systems were replaced to
remove the 1930 Direct Current generators and comply with then current National Electrical Codes. Due to
funding limitations we were unable to tackle replacing the actual lift mechanisms, cables, speed controllers and
related items in each hoist way. It was hoped that they would be able to remain in service for another twenty to
twenty-five years but time has not been kind and several mechanical components have failed.

Without operating elevators, the Scranton Cultural Center at the Masonic Temple will be forced to cancel
a majority of its events and could cease operations.
Solution

An investigation was done and bids were secured to attempt to repair the elevator that was taken out of service.
The winning submitter, Otis Elevator, sent in technicians to take apart the hoist motor to more fully determine the
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failed components. During this investigation it was determined that due to age and lack of modern replacement
parts, the unit could not be repaired or returned to service.

We then asked for replacement options and pricing. Two firms responded — Otis and Port Elevator. From this,
we developed a budget from which this submission was developed.

We will need to completely remove the existing 1930 Hoist mechanisms, lift cables and all associated hardware
and control mechanisms. New code compliant drive motors and hoi8st assemblies will be installed as well as
current code compliant safety mechanisms. A new controller will also be installed in order to comply with
regulations and safety requirements.

Unique Challenge

Due to the way these elevators were installed, it is impossible to upgrade just one of the two cars. The control
systems are integrated through a single interface that must be upgraded in order to be able to handle additional
safety mechanisms now required on modern elevators. Once the controller is replaced and the inoperative car
brought back into service, the other unit must then be upgraded to comply with code.

Need

The elevators are a necessary component of operations at the SCC as they represent the only way for equipment to
be transported from floor to floor. More importantly, they are the only A.D.A. access for the public, guests and
staff to access the other floors and A.D.A. equipped restrooms. There are no other options for individuals with
special needs / challenges to access other floors for events or make use of the restrooms without these elevators.

History

Originally known as the Masonic Temple and Scottish Rite Cathedral, the building is a significant example of the
work of world-renowned architect, Raymond Hood, one of the principal founders of the Art-Deco movement in
the United States and designer of several important structures including the Chicago Tribune Building, the New
York Daily News Building and Rockefeller Center. Containing approximately 180,000 square feet, the building
houses two theaters, a grand ballroom, an art studio, several meeting rooms as well as the associated support
spaces required for such an operation.

Over time, the Masonic Fraternity realized the need to utilize the facility in more non-traditional ways and a grass
roots effort was launched to form a not-for-profit organization dedicated to both preserving the physical structure
of the temple and providing an ongoing programming, cultural and arts source for the community.

Historic and Cultural Plan Compliance

This project is consistent with the Lackawanna County Comprehensive Plan in the HISTORIC AND
CULTURAL RESOURCES Plan and the COMMUNITY FACILTIES PLAN.

Under the HISTORIC and CULTURAL RESOURCES PLAN, the SCC roof repair project provides options to

preserve and rehabilitate the historic resources in existing communities in ways that are sympathetic to economic
and other community concerns.

Page 2 of 4



185

The project also falls under Lackawanna County's COMMUNITY FACILITIES PLAN that is Priority Areas are
the places targeted for future residential, retail, and employment growth. It makes sense for community facilities
to locate here, where concentrations of people are and where accessibility is good.

Public libraries, educational institutions, hospitals and other healthcare services, and emergency services such as
police, fire companies, and ambulance corps should be focused on these locations. Each of the two-county area’s
116 municipalities has traditionally been responsible for providing its citizens with basic public services and
facilities; however, greater intergovernmental cooperation is needed so that services and facilities can be provided
more efficiently and economically.

Economic and Community Impact

According to an economic impact study completed in 2016, states that the Scranton Cultural Center at the
Masonic Temple is a major economic contributor for the region through revenue generated by SCC events.

During the year 2016, the SCC generated $5.9 million in total economic impact that included visitor and crew
spending to demonstrate the variety of impact. Multiple business sectors derive benefit through increased revenue
as the money flows through the economy. The operations and programming of the SCC supports nearly 100 jobs.

Regionally, $6.3 million in economic impact is generated with 110 jobs supported through the direct, indirect and
induced efforts of the SCC. The dollars ripple through the economy influencing businesses and individuals in
northeastern PA and the Commonwealth PA. At the state level, $7.6 million generated and 140 jobs were
supported through the direct, indirect and induced efforts of the SCC.

In 2016, nearly 96,000 people passed through the doors of the Scranton Cultural Center for a variety of events<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>